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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) (the "Directors”)
of Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
| report on the financial results and operations of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2020.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s revenue was
approximately HK$26,507,000 (2019: approximately HK$539,266,000).
The Group's loss attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$7,390,265,000 (2019: loss of approximately
HK$3,904,270,000). Basic loss per share and diluted loss per share
were both HK$1.03 (2019: basic and diluted loss per share were both
HK$0.55 (restated)).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

APPRECIATION

The Group is well prepared to meet the challenges ahead with our
prudent strategy as well as loyalty and professionalism of our staff. |
would like to thank the professional advisors, my fellow Directors

and our shareholders for their support during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board
Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited

Xu Zhongxiang
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company, and the Group is
principally engaged in the gaming and resort business including
the development and operation of integrated resorts on the Island
of Saipan.

Integrated Resort Business

In August 2014, Imperial Pacific International (CNMI), LLC (the
"Licensee”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and the CNMI entered into a casino license agreement (as
amended) in respect of the exclusive casino resort developer
license for the Island of Saipan pursuant to which the Casino Resort
Developer License was granted subject to the terms and conditions
as stipulated therein.

Imperial Palace ¢ Saipan

On 6 July 2017, the casino portion of Imperial Palace ¢ Saipan
commenced operation (with maximum capacity of up to 193 tables
and 365 slot machines upon completion of Imperial Palace ® Saipan).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, unaudited VIP table
games rolling of United States Dollars ("US$") 109 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$846 million) (2019: HK$14,022
million) was generated from the operations of Imperial Palace
Saipan. The VIP table games rolling showed a drastic decline
compared to last year due to the coronavirus disease 2019
("COVID-19") pandemic and adverse market conditions.

Since the outbreak of COVID-19, a number of travel restrictions
remain in place all over the world, which are significantly affecting
the number of visitors to Saipan. From 2 February 2020, all foreign
nationals who were physically present within Mainland China during
the 14-day period preceding their attempted entry are not
permitted to enter into the US, including Saipan. To cope with the
measures imposed by local government, the casino in Imperial
Palace ® Saipan has suspended operations since 17 March 2020 to
help curb the spread of the COVID-19.

On 23 April 2021, the Licensee received an order from the
Commonwealth Casino Commission (“CCC") that, among other
matters, the casino resort developer license as granted under the
Casino License Agreement (as amended) between the Licensee
and the CNMI is suspended, the Licensee shall pay the Annual
License Fee of US$15,500,000 (equivalent to HK$120 million) and
the Casino Regulatory Fee of US$3,100,000 (equivalent to HK$24
million) immediately and that the Licensee shall pay penalties of
US$6,600,000 (equivalent to HK$51 million).
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Imperial Palace ¢ Saipan (Continued)

The Board considered that pursuant to the force majeure clause
under the Casino License Agreement, the Licensee is not required
to pay the Annual License Fee in the event of natural disasters.
However, the CCC raised disputes and alleged that the COVID-19
pandemic does not constitute a natural disaster or force majeure.
As a result, the Licensee has filed a review with Superior Court in
Saipan to determine whether the pandemic constitutes a natural
disaster or force majeure. If it is determined that the pandemic
constitutes a natural disaster or force majeure, the Licensee will not
be required to pay the Annual License Fee. As of the date of this
report, such review is still ongoing.

Major global construction companies, consulting firms, design and
engineering firms as well as local sub-contractors have been
engaged. As at 31 December 2020, approximately US$913 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$7,083 million) (31 December 2019:
US$879 million (equivalent to approximately HK$6,890 million) has
been invested in design, consulting, engineering, construction
material and labour. Affected by the COVID-19 pandemic,
construction progress has slowed down considerably during the year.

Imperial Casha Hotel
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, construction for Imperial Casha
Hotel has been temporarily suspended.
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Management Discussion and Analysis<

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Integrated Resort Development

Imperial Palace ® Saipan, perched on the water front of downtown
Garapan, will boast 10 restaurants of Michelin grade standard, in
addition to the 193 gaming tables and 365 slot machines, and 329
hotel rooms and 15 villas upon completion of construction. An
additional approximately US$34 million has been invested in design
and construction of this integrated resort during the year which has
brought the total investment to approximately US$913 million by
the end of 2020.

The CNMI has welcomed the first batch travel bubble tourists in
July 2021. In addition, the US government has also approved re-
including Hong Kong in the CNMI Visa Waiver program.

Throughout the recovery process our Group remains committed to
our mission of enhancing the tourism of Saipan and creating local
opportunities. Despite the current impact from the COVID-19, we
believe visitation to the Island of Saipan still has great potential in
the long run benefiting from the island’s favorable weather,
stunning attractions, proximity location and flexible visa policies,
with more hotels to be built and opened. Once the travel
restrictions in Saipan are lifted, the casino in Imperial Palace
Saipan shall resume operations and be opened to public. We
expect the successional opening of villas and hotel rooms of
Imperial Palace ® Saipan, subject to the lifting of the global travel

restrictions, will enhance our capacity to welcome visitors to Saipan.

Debt/Equity Fund Raising and Refinancing

The Board does not rule out the possibility that the Company may
carry out debt and/or equity fund raising plan(s) to further
strengthen the financial position of the Group in the event that
suitable fund raising opportunities arise in support of the
development of the Group, including the casino and the integrated
resort on the Island of Saipan. As at the date of this report, the
Company has not yet concluded on any concrete fund raising

opportunities.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group achieved
revenue of approximately HK$27 million, which is principally
contributed by the casino gaming operations. Loss attributable to
owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 of
approximately HK$7,390 million, as compared with a loss
attributable to owners of approximately HK$3,904 million in last
year. Basic and diluted loss per share were HK$1.03 and HK$1.03
respectively, as compared with basic and diluted loss per share of
HK$0.55 (restated) and HK$0.55 (restated) respectively in last year.

VIP Gaming Operations

A significant portion of our VIP casino customers is sourced through
the Group's own marketing channels. Such high-spending VIP
customers generally receive, commissions and allowances based on
a percentage of the rolling chip turnover. The allowances can be
utilised for expenses incurred on hotel rooms, food and beverages
and other discretionary customer-related expenses. The Group's
VIP players are also brought to us via intensive marketing

campaigns.

VIP gaming operations also include premium mass customers that
are smaller in scale and entitled to the same scheme of

commissions and allowances as the VIP casino customers.

In addition, a minor operation of the Group’s VIP customers has
been sourced via a licenced junket operator since August 2016. The
establishment of a licenced junket incentive allowed the Group to

bring in new players which mitigated the Group's credit concerns.

VIP rolling chip volume reached approximately HK$846 million
(2019: HK$14,022 million) for the year of 2020. Our VIP customers
primarily consist of credit players. Geographically, most of our
direct VIP patrons come from Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau

and Korea.

As aforementioned, to cope with the measures imposed by local
government, the casino in Imperial Palace ® Saipan has suspended
operations since 17 March 2020 to help curb the spread of the
COVID-19.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Impairment of trade receivables

The gross trade receivables decreased to approximately HK$9,055
million (2019: HK$9,086 million) from VIP gaming operations as at
31 December 2020. While the scale of VIP gaming operations had a
significant impact to the Group, the Group regularly reviews the
recoverability of trade receivables to ensure that adequate

impairments are made for irrecoverable amounts.

Impairment of the Group's trade receivables was estimated based
on expected credit losses model which has taken into consideration
the collectability of individual customers, debts’ ageing profile,
security provided in the form of front money and guarantee
deposits as well as experience with collection trends in the casino
industry and forward looking factors including the economic
outlook and business conditions and provision for impairment was

made on certain customers’ trade receivables as follows:

(i) as at 31 December 2020, the provision for impairment of
trade receivables due from the Group's largest and the ten
largest debtors amounted to approximately HK$1,081 million
and approximately HK$2,760 million (2019: HK$1,086 million
and HK$2,738 million) respectively. The aforementioned
provisions were made based on the expected credit losses,
which includes a review of individual customer’s facts and
circumstances (such as financial position and ongoing
dialogue on settlement arrangements, etc), ageing of the
outstanding amounts, securities provided and past repayment

records;

(i)  as at 31 December 2020, the provision for impairment of
trade receivables due from the remaining customers of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$5,289 million (2019:
HK$4,223 million) arising from regular review of the overdue

balances by the management.

The Board has also prudently benchmarked against its industry
peers on the impairment provision of trade receivables and
considered that the impairment of trade receivables as estimated
by the Company in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2020

to be comparable and in line with global industry standard.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)
The Board also wishes to elaborate below measures taken by the

Group to recover the trade receivables:

(i) credit terms extended by the Group are generally 30 days for
gaming operations. The Group’s credit and collection
department, along with representatives of the VIP marketing
department, regularly meet on a monthly basis to identify
customers whose debts are due and the VIP marketing
department will make contact with customers for recovery of

the outstanding debts; and

(i) once the receivables are overdue for repayment and if the
customers still have not repaid the outstanding debts within
six months of the programme end date, the Group's credit
and collection department will then issue demand letters to
the customers, along with its guarantors (if applicable), for
demand of immediate payments. If no responses were
received thereafter, the Group’s management may consider
bringing legal actions against the customers in order to
collect the outstanding debits.

Mass Gaming Operations

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue from mass gaming
operations amounted to approximately HK$33 million (2019:
HK$186 million) and mass gaming drop reached approximately
HK$110 million (2019: HK$648 million). Customers from the mass
gaming operations do not receive rebate and commissions from

the Group.

As aforementioned, to cope with the measures imposed by local
government, the casino in Imperial Palace ® Saipan has suspended
operations since 17 March 2020 to help curb the spread of the
COVID-19.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Slot Machines and ETG Gaming Operations

Revenue from the slot machines and ETG amounted to
approximately HK$13 million (2019: HK$63 million) and hold
percentage reached 7.30% (2019: 6.84%) for the year ended 31
December 2020.

As aforementioned, to cope with the measures imposed by local
government, the casino in Imperial Palace ® Saipan has suspended
operations since 17 March 2020 to help curb the spread of the
COVID-19.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$52 million (2019: HK$219 million) which comprise
principally the direct casino costs such as casino licence fees of
approximately HK$44 million (2019: HK$119 million) and Saipan’s
business gross revenue tax of approximately HK$0.2 million (2019:
HK$26 million).

Other income, gains and losses

Other income, gains and losses for the year ended 31 December
2020 mainly represented gain on disposal of subsidiaries of
approximately HK$48 million (2019: Nil).

Other gains and losses for year ended 31 December 2019 mainly
represented compensation received from insurance claims of
approximately HK$10 million (2020: Nil) and bad debts recovery of
approximately HK$18 million (2020: Nil).

Operating expenses

Operating expenses, excluding impairment of trade receivables,
increased to approximately HK$1,316 million. The increase is mainly
attributable to increase in provision of regulatory matters and
certain legal cases of approximately HK$551 million, a decrease in
staff costs of HK$537 million and an increase in other operating
expenses of approximately HK$137 million during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had carrying amounts of
certain property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
before impairment amounting to HK$6,721 million and HK$57
million respectively in relation to the construction and development
of Imperial Palace ® Saipan. In accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets, the Board is required to test property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets for impairment annually.
The Board is also required to determine whether there are any
impairment indicators for the property, plant and equipment and

right-of-use assets as at the date of the reporting period.

As aforementioned, the Licensee received an order from the CCC
on 23 April 2021 in relation to, among other matters, the suspension
of the casino resort developer license as granted under the Casino
License Agreement (as amended). While the Licensee has filed a
review with Superior Court in Saipan and such review is still
ongoing, the Board considers that there was indication for
impairment and conducted impairment assessments on recoverable
amounts of certain property, plant and equipment and right-of-use

assets.

Detailed basis of impairment assessments and disclosures in
relation to the impairment of certain property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are included in Note 13 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Significant Investment, Acquisition and Disposal

Apart from the development of integrated resorts on the Island of
Saipan, the Company did not have any significant investment,
acquisition or disposal during the year that should be notified to

the shareholders of the Company.

Capital expenditure

The Group incurred capital expenditure of approximately HK$82
million (2019: HK$889 million) during the year ended 31 December
2020, mainly for construction of the Imperial Palace e Saipan and

acquisition of gaming related equipment.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Going Concern

The Group generally finances its operation with internal resources
and borrowings. As at 31 December 2020, cash and bank balances
amounted to approximately HK$10 million (2019: HK$100 million).
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. Net debt includes,
unsecured bonds and notes, lease liability, loans from related
parties, other borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Capital
represents total equity attributable to owners of the Company. The
gearing ratios as at 31 December 2020 was approximately 270.1%
(31 December 2019: positive 97.1%).

Despite that the Group reported net losses of HK$7,390 million and
HK$3,904 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
respectively and had net current liabilities of HK$9,436 million and
net liabilities of HK$7,266 million and capital commitments of
HK$512 million as at 31 December 2020 and the adverse impact
from the COVID-19 pandemic, which has also resulted in the
temporary closure of its casino operation in Saipan since 17 March
2020, the Directors consider that the Group will have adequate
funds available to enable it to operate as a going concern, based
on the Group's business forecast and cash flow projection which,
inter alia, take into account the past actual operating performance
of the Group and the following:
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liqu

idity, Financial Resources and Going Concern

(Continued)

(i)

14

On 23 April 2021, Imperial Pacific International (CNMI), LLC
(the “Licensee”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, received an order from the CCC that, among other
matters, the casino resort developer license as granted under
the Casino License Agreement (as amended) between the
Licensee and the CNMI is suspended, the Licensee shall pay
the Annual License Fee of US$15,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$120,373,000) and the Casino Regulatory Fee of
US$3,100,000 (equivalent to HK$24,075,000) immediately and
that the Licensee shall pay penalties of US$6,600,000
(equivalent to HK$51,256,000). The Board considered that
pursuant to the force majeure clause under the Casino
License Agreement, the Licensee is not required to pay the
Annual License Fee in the event of natural disasters. However,
the CCC raised disputes and alleged that the COVID-19
pandemic does not constitute a natural disaster or force
majeure. As a result, the Licensee has filed a review with
Superior Court in Saipan to determine whether the pandemic
constitutes a natural disaster or force majeure. If it is
determined that the pandemic constitutes a natural disaster
or force majeure, the Licensee will not be required to pay the
Annual License Fee. As of the date of this report, such review

is still ongoing.

the Company has been contacting certain major lenders and
bond and note holders to renew certain other borrowing and
unsecured bonds and notes with aggregate principal amounts
to approximately HK$3,765 million outstanding as at 31
December 2020 which were originally due for repayment in
2021, for extension of the repayment tenure to 2022 and/or
beyond,;

BAESEI 8 (&)

2=
AL

0]

BET  UBERRESELE (B

N-ZE-—FWUA-+=8  ARAZMEE
% & K )& 2 &) Imperial Pacific International
(CNMI), LLC(THEBR A ) WRIBBESEZ B
eMne  NAEH(EReE) ZEREE
R B3 55 BB S ANRT N 2 IR EAIS hE PR 15 ok (4
B BEEZIRESEBRNHAEEER - B
FB 77 & 37 BN 3% 415,500,000 7T (#8 & R
120,373,000 7 7T ) 89 5 E k& B8 2 70 3,100,000
F T (FEE TR 24,075,000 7T ) K IR 2415 85
B - I hg R 5 FE 2 14 815K 6,600,000 % 7T (46
B 51,256,000 7T) c EFERA - RIE
IREUSIERIBH 2 T A M AN IGER - BAKE
EERATRRIDEARIFEERRE - A
M - BWHEESZESERLFH TRE
COVID-19Z IE K B AL EL M T -
T LA R BR 75 [7) 2B ¥t =y 5592 FE (Superior Court)
REBZ  UHTEEBREBREBAKLEK
A - M ERBEEXBALEHTA
mh ERFUEFTARFERRE  -HBZE
NiREAE - BRABZDIT#TT -

ARB—HEAETEIEERAURES R
EBEBEAEA WEER-ZT-_ZTF+=A
ST —BREBZETHEMERARSTSLE
BBHI37186,5008 BT 2 EIERES LR -
ZEFEREN-_ZZ—FEIHEE  BE
HHEE T -—FER K%

Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited % K ¥ EIBIZRGR A A



FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Going Concern

(Continued)

(iiiy as at the end of the reporting period, the Company has
unutilised credit facility of US$350,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,726 million) from an independent third party. The total
facility amount is US$500,000,000 (equivalent to HK$3,895
million), of which an amount of US$150,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,169 million) was drawn down during the year ended 31
December 2019 and outstanding as at the end of the
reporting period. The Company will draw down the unutilised

credit facility when necessary;

(iv) Inventive Star Limited (the controlling shareholder of the
Company) and other related parties have undertaken to
provide additional funding to settle the Group’s operations,
liabilities, potential liabilities related to litigation, the casino
annual license fee and the community benefit fund and

capital investments as and when necessary;

(v)  the management will consider other financing arrangements
with a view to increasing the Group's capitalisation/equity;
and

(vi)  the management will continue to refinance and/or roll-over
the Group's existing loans with a view to improving the

Group's liquidity.

The Directors believe that, taking into account the abovementioned
factors, the Group will have sufficient working capital to satisfy its
present requirements for at least the next 12 months from the end
of the reporting period. However, should the above financing be
unavailable, the Group may be unable to continue as a going
concern, in which case adjustments might have to be made to the
carrying values of the Group's assets to write down to their
realisable values, to provide for any further liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify its non-current assets and non-current
liabilities to current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The

effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in this report.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Going Concern
(Continued)

Further, the Group was subject to a Bank Secrecy Act ("BSA”")
compliance examination during 2017 by the Financial Crimes
Enforcement Network (“FinCEN"). On 4 March 2020, the Group
received a letter from the FinCEN, which requested the Group to
provide certain information and documents relevant to compliance
with the BSA requirements from October 2016 through the present.
FinCEN has indicated in the letter that there were apparent
violations of the BSA and its implementing regulations and it is
considering whether to impose civil money penalty or take
additional enforcement action against the Group. As of the date of
approve for issuance of this report, the Group is still in the process
of preparing for the required information and documents. The
Directors believe it is not practicable for the Company to accurately
predict the resolution of this matter, including timing and amount
of any possible impact to the Group. Notwithstanding the
aforesaid, the Directors have made a provision for the estimated
civil money penalty in respect of the identified and potential

violations.

However, should the above matter be construed as a material
breach of the provisions of the Group’s Casino License Agreement
("CLA") or the Commonwealth Casino Commission’s regulations,
the Group might then not be able to continue operation of its
gaming and resort business and hence might not be a going
concern, in which case adjustments might have to be made to the
carrying values of the Group's assets to state them at their
realisable values, to provide for any further liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify its non-current assets and non-current
liabilities to current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The

effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in this report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Capital structure

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no change to
the authorised and issued share capital of the Company (2019: no
change).

As at 31 December 2020, the total number of issued ordinary shares
with the par value of HK$0.0005 each was 142,984,807,678 (31
December 2019: 142,984,807,678).

Risk of Foreign Exchange Fluctuation

The business transactions of the Group are mainly carried in HK$
and US$ meaning that it will be subject to limited exchange rate
exposure given HK$ and US$ are pegged. However, the Group will
closely monitor this risk exposure and would take prudent measures

as and when appropriate.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$512 million (31 December 2019: HK$545 million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Contingent Liabilities

(a)

18

Regulatory oversight — BSA compliance

The Group is subject to the jurisdiction of the Regulatory
Authorities in the conduct of its casino operations through
Imperial Pacific International (CNMI), LLC (“IP1"), its wholly-
owned subsidiary. Specifically, IPl is required to comply with
the rules and regulations of the CCC in the conduct of its
gaming operations. IPl is also under the jurisdiction of the
FinCEN in terms of its compliance with the anti-money
laundering provisions of the BSA. Should IPI violate the
requirements of the Regulatory Authorities, it could be
subject to various sanctions and disciplinary actions including
monetary fines and penalties, restrictions and conditions in
the scope of operations, and the potential suspension or

revocation of its gaming license.

In March 2019, the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS"”) issued a
report ("IRS Report”) with findings on IPI's compliance with
the BSA. IPI, through its external legal counsel, had
responded to the IRS Report and acknowledged certain of
the findings of violations noted in the IRS Report. IPI then
received a letter from FinCEN dated 4 March 2020, which has
requested IPIl to provide certain information and documents
relevant to compliance with these regulatory requirements
from October 2016 through the present. FInCEN has
indicated in the letter that there were apparent violations of
the BSA and its implementing regulations and it is
considering whether to impose civil money penalties or take
additional enforcement action against IPl. As of the date of
this report, IPIl is still in the process of preparing for the
information to be submitted to FInCEN. Accordingly, it is not
practicable for the Company to accurately predict the
resolution of this matter, including timing and amount of any
possible impact to the Group. Notwithstanding the aforesaid,
as at 31 December 2020, the Directors, based on external
advice, have made a provision for the estimated civil money

penalty in respect of the identified and potential violations.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Contingent Liabilities (Continued)

(b)

Investigation by Federal Government Authorities

On 7 November 2019, the Federal Government Authorities
conducted a search of I[Pl offices requesting certain
documents and information. Subsequently, a federal grand
jury issued two grand jury subpoenas on IPI to provide
additional documents and information in December 2019. IPI
has fully cooperated with the Federal Government Authorities

in providing documents and information.

The Group has engaged external legal counsels to conduct
an independent investigation on the financial transactions
undertaken by the Group with the named parties in the two
subpoenas for the period from 2013 to 2019. Based on the
findings from the investigation reports, the Directors have not
identified any transactions which were assessed to be either
of a high or moderate risk to a criminal liability exposure. The
external legal counsels of IPI have also opined that the
criminal liability exposures which were assessed to be of a low
to moderate risk in the investigation reports do not amount
to a material breach of any provisions of IPI's CLA or the
CCC's regulations. The Directors also believe that IPI had not
undertaken any unlawful activities, and IPI has sound defenses
that it had acted in good faith and conduct. The Group
continues to cooperate with the Federal Government
Authorities. As of the date of this report, the investigation is
still ongoing and it is premature to predict the eventual
outcome. Accordingly, the potential for any fines, penalties or
other consequences cannot currently be assessed. It is also
not yet possible to identify the timescale in which these issues

might be resolved.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Contingent Liabilities (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Commonwealth Casino Commission

As of the date of issuance of this report, there were five
individual cases pending before the CCC of aggregate
amount of US$19,800,000 (equivalent to HK$153 million)
which related to failure of payment annual license fee,
payment of community benefit, lack of cash reserves and
payment of regulator fee. The Group did not dispute that it
owes this money and instead has argued that a Force Majeure
clause contained within the Casino License Agreement should
be applicable as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and that
payment should be delayed. On 23 April 2021, the Licensee
received an order from the CCC that, among other matters,
the casino resort developer license as granted under the
Casino License Agreement (as amended) between the
Licensee and the CNMI is suspended, the Licensee shall pay
the Annual License Fee of US$15,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$120 million) and the Casino Regulatory Fee of
US$3,100,000 (equivalent to HK$24 million) immediately and
that the Licensee shall pay penalties of US$6,600,000
(equivalent to HK$51 million). The Board considered that
pursuant to the force majeure clause under the Casino
License Agreement, the Licensee is not required to pay the
Annual License Fee in the event of natural disasters. However,
the CCC raised disputes and alleged that the COVID-19
pandemic does not constitute a natural disaster or force
majeure. As a result, the Licensee has filed a review with
Superior Court in Saipan to determine whether the pandemic
constitutes a natural disaster or force majeure. If it is
determined that the pandemic constitutes a natural disaster
or force majeure, the Licensee will not be required to pay the
Annual License Fee. As of the date of this report, such review
is still ongoing. A provision has been made in the
consolidated financial statements.

Other litigation matters

As at the end of the reporting period and up to the date of
this report, apart from expressly stated above, the Group is a
party to a number of civil litigation cases, as either a plaintiff
or defendant. In the opinion of the Directors, after taking into
account of the respective legal advices, adequate provision
has been made in financial information.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other

significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group pledged an item of property,
plant and equipment with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$92 million (31 December 2019: HK$103 million) and the issued
shares of a subsidiary of the Company (the relevant share charge
arrangement has not been completed as of the date of this report),
as securities for interest-bearing loans with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$27 million (31 December 2019: HK$43 million)
and HK$1,163 million (31 December 2019: HK$1,168 million),
respectively.

ADDRESSING ALL CONCERNS RAISED BY THE
COMPANY’S AUDITORS

In the audited report of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2020, the Company's auditors issued disclaimer of
opinion on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

The Group reported net losses of HK$7,390,265,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and had net current liabilities of
HK$9,436,403,000 and net liabilities of HK$7,265,548,000 and capital
commitments of HK$512,000,000 as at 31 December 2020. In this
regard, the Board will use their best endeavours to take practicable
and feasible actions to resolve the issue including, but not limited
to, the following means:

a.  Since the receipt of the order from the Commonwealth
Casino Commission to suspend the casino resort developer
license in late April 2021, the Group has been actively
exploring and negotiating with the Commonwealth Casino
Commission ("CCC") on the settlement of the casino annual
license fee of amount US$15,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$116,250,000) and community benefit fund
contribution of amount US$30,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$232,590,000), and the related penalties in
addition to the amounts claimed which range from US$50,000
to US$100,000 per day (equivalent to approximately range
from HK$387,000 to HK$775,000 per day) and expect to
resume its casino operation when the global travel restrictions
are lifted.
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ADDRESSING ALL CONCERNS RAISED BY THE
COMPANY'’S AUDITORS (Continued)

b.

22

The Company has been contacting certain major lenders and
bond and note holders to renew certain other borrowing and
unsecured bonds and notes with which were originally due for
repayment in 2021, for extension of the repayment tenure to
2024 and/or beyond. In addition, certain major lenders and
bond and note holders agreed to explore the possibility to
settle the indebted amount by way of issuing new shares of
the Company if the indebted amount cannot be settled by
way of cash within the next 12 months.

The Company has received an indicative offer of a credit
facility of US$100,000,000 (equivalent to HK$780,000,000),
which is valid until 27 September 2022 from an independent
financial institution. As at the date of this report, no drawn
down has been made;

Inventive Star and other related parties have undertaken to
provide additional funding to settle the Group's operations,
liabilities, potential liabilities related to litigation, the casino
annual license fee and the community benefit fund and

capital investments as and when necessary;

The management will consider other financing arrangements
with a view to increasing the Group's capitalisation/equity;

The management will continue to refinance and/or rollover
the Group's existing loans with a view to improving the
Group's liquidity;

Imperial Pacific International (CNMI), LLC, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company has the intention to enter into an
exclusive cooperation agreement with an independent third
party. Under the agreement, the independent third party will
be granted the exclusive right to operate a shopping mall
with an area of 8,000 sgq.m. located at the Imperial Palace.
Saipan for a period of 4 years. In return, the independent
third party has undertaken that the shopping mall will
generate a minimum annual revenue and gross profit in the
sum of HK$300 million and HK$20 million respectively during
the term of the agreement and the Group is entitled to share
60% of the gross profit.
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ADDRESSING ALL CONCERNS RAISED BY THE

COMPANY'S AUDITORS (Continued)

h. Imperial Pacific International (CNMI), LLC, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company has entered into a construction
agreement with an independent construction company which
has undertaken to finance and complete the remaining
constructions of Imperial Palace.Saipan within 24 months after
the relief of all the measures, for the purpose to prevent the
spread of COVID-19, imposed by local government;

i Imperial Pacific International (CNMI), LLC, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, has been negotiating with an
independent travel agency which has the intention to
underwrite the leasing of 250 hotel rooms and 15 villas at
Imperial Palace. Saipan for a period of 4 years at an average
rate of US$1,060 per hotel room per day and US$2,400 per
villa per day; and

j- On 30 March 2022, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with, CNI Securities Group Limited, an
independent placing agent pursuant to which the placing
agent has agreed to act as the sole placing agent, on a best
effort basis, for the purposed of arranging independent
placees to subscribe for the Bonds up to an aggregate
principal amount of HK$800,000,000 at 6% per annum.

k. The Company has been approaching legal firms in Hong
Kong and Saipan for the preparation of legal updates on the
latest progress of litigations concerning the Group.

The Board and the Audit Committee agreed with the
Management's position based on the proposals above and
requested the Management to take all necessary actions to address
the effect on the basis for disclaimer of opinion. The Group will
publish further announcement regarding the above matters if there
is any progress on the abovementioned action plans.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The total number of staff of the Group as at 31 December 2020 was
844 (31 December 2019: 1,086).

Remuneration packages are reviewed annually and determined
with reference to market and individual performance. In addition to
salary payments, the Group also provides other employment
benefits such as mandatory provident fund and medical insurance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance within a sensible framework with an
emphasis on the principles of transparency, accountability and
independence. The Board believes that good corporate
governance is essential to the success of the Group and the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company was in full
compliance with the Code Provisions set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules (the "CG Code”), except for the following deviation:

Code Provision A.1.8

Code provision A.1.8 of the CG Code provides that appropriate
insurance cover in respect of legal action against directors should
be arranged. Currently, the Company does not have insurance
cover for legal action against its Directors as the previous insurance
cover has just expired. The Board is seeking to obtain appropriate
insurance cover in this regard.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive should be clearly
established and set out in writing. The Company currently does not
have any officer with the title chief executive. At present, Ms. Cui Li
Jie, being the Chairperson and an Executive Director of the
Company and who has considerable industry experience, is
responsible for the strategic planning, formulation of overall
corporate development policies and managing the businesses of
the Group. Notwithstanding the aforementioned, the Board will
review the current structure from time to time and as and when
appropriate if candidate with suitable leadership, knowledge, skills
and experience is identified, the Company may make the necessary
modification to the management structure.

Code Provision A.2.7

Code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code provides that the chairman
should at least annually hold meetings with the independent non-
executive directors without the presence of other directors. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, a formal meeting could not be
arranged between the chairperson of the Board and all the
independent non-executive Directors without the executive
Directors present due to their tight schedules. Although such
meeting was not held during the year ended 31 December 2020,
the chairperson of the Board could be contacted by email or phone
to discuss any potential concerns and/or questions that any
independent non-executive Directors might have and would
arrange to set up follow-up meetings, whenever necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES (Continued)
Code Provision A.6.7

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
the general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders. Due to other engagements, a non-
executive Director and an independent non-executive Director of
the Company, Mr. Ma Wentao and Mr. Robert James Woolsey,
were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 29 June 2020. However, the Board believes that the
presence of the other independent non-executive Directors at such
general meeting allowed the Board to develop a balanced

understanding of the views of shareholders.

Code Provision C.1.2

Code Provision C.1.2 of the CG Code provides that management
should provide all members of the board with monthly updates
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the issuer’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable
the board as a whole and each director to discharge their duties
under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules. Although
monthly updates to the members of the Board were not arranged
regularly during the year ended 31 December 2020, the
management provided information and updates to the members of
the Board as and when appropriate to ensure that all members of
the Board properly receives adequate, complete and reliable

information in a timely manner.

Code Provision E.1.2

According to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. Ms. Cui Li Jie,
being the Chairperson and an Executive Director of the Company,
was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 29 June 2020. Other Directors, including three independent
non-executive Directors, attended and Mr. Ng Hoi Yue chaired the
aforementioned meeting. All resolutions proposed were duly

passed by shareholders’ voting at the meeting.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS BEEg

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors and four EEZG@RA=ZHRITEELNELBIIENTES
independent non-executive Directors. The brief biographical details 485 - EEF €K E v BRESBDH R NERE 39
of Board members are set out in the Biographical Details of the BZEF43BEENSRERABRBREEEN -
Directors and Senior Management on pages 39 to 43 of this annual EHE&DRVINAESEEZES  BHEHNTEES -
report. The Board has established four board committees, namely BZELZE @ REZEShFMEES -HE—
Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee ZE2-—T&+-_A=+—H | FERKEEHFESE
and Remuneration Committee. Attendance of the board meetings, @& E=LZE8e@HEMRERSHNEEH7T
the meetings of the board committees and the general meetings T - EEZ@REBEEZES K ANBE BN AR
for the year ended 31 December 2020 is given below. The ‘EHREERERBIEL AR -

respective responsibilities of the Board and board committees are

discussed later in this report.

|
No. of meetings attended/eligible to attend

HE/CERLEEENRE
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Executive
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ERZEE REZEE §FMZEEE HTZEEE
ETgeE g3 £ g5 g% EVN-
|
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Xia Yuki Yu Xia Yuki Yu 1/8 N/A N/A N/A 0/0 0/0
TEHA NEHA TEA
Mr. Teng Sio | THEEAE 0 N/A N/A N/A 0/0 0/0
NER TER qy i
Ms. Cui Li Jie ("Ms. Cui") EBART((ExL)) 3 N/A N/A N/A 0/0 0/1
@R NER il
Ms. Cui Limei EBRLL 0/0 N/A N/A N/A 0/0 0N
NEH NiEH NEA
Mr. Xu Zhongxiang ("Mr. Xu") rEEEE(TH%EE]D) 0/0 N/A N/A N/A 0/0 0/0
NER TER qy i
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Ma Wentao BXERE 110 N/A N/A N/A N/A Al

TER TR TEm TEM
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTESE

Mr. Ng Hoi Yue ("Mr. Ng") mETEE(EEED) 10/11 202 17 11 N/A 1
TER

Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco (“Mr. Tso") EzERAL([ExE)) 6/10 202 17 11 N/A 17
T

Mr. Lee Kwok Leung ("Mr. Lee") FERLA(ZRE]) 3/11 212 17 11 N/A 17
@A

Mr. Robert James Woolsey Robert James 0/11 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0/1
("Mr. Woolsey”) Woolsey %4 gl TR TER &R

(IWoolsey &4 |)
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing the business and
affairs of the Group and aims at protecting and enhancing
stakeholders’ values. Currently, Ms. Cui, being the Chairperson of
the Board and an Executive Director and who has considerable
industry experience, is responsible for the strategic planning,
formulation of corporate policies and managing businesses. She is

responsible for the leadership and effective running of the Board.

All Directors are regularly updated on governance and regulatory
matters. There is an established procedure for all Directors to
obtain independent professional advice at the expense of the
Company in discharge of their duties.

The Board held meetings from time to time whenever necessary.
Notice of at least 14 days has been given to all Directors for all
regular board meetings and the Directors can include matters for
discussion in the agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying
board papers in respect of regular board meetings are sent out in full
to all Directors within reasonable time before the board meeting.
Draft minutes of all board meetings are circulated to all Directors for

comment within a reasonable time prior to confirmation.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are
kept by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and
all Directors have access to board papers and related materials,
and are provided with adequate information on a timely manner,
which enable the Board to make an informed decision on matters
placed before it. The Company held eleven Board meetings and

one general meeting in 2020.

The existing Board composition reflects an appropriate mix of skills,
experience and diversity among its members that are relevant to
the Company’s businesses and contribute to an effective Board. All
Directors, including the Independent Non-executive Directors, have
contributed a wide range of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board, ensuring its effective
and efficient operations. The Independent Non-executive Directors
contribute to the Group and its strategies and policies by providing

independent, constructive and informed comments.

An updated list of Directors, identifying their roles and functions at
the Company, is available on the websites of the Company and the

Stock Exchange.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board currently has four independent non-executive Directors,
one of the independent non-executive Directors holds appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial

management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors had entered into
an appointment letter with the Company an initial term of one year,
which is automatically renewable for successive terms of one year

upon the expiry of the said term.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has given the
Company an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent and meet
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing

Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

Under code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, Directors of the
Company should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Each newly appointed Director receives induction on the first
occasion of his or her appointment, so as to ensure that he or she
has appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and that he or she is fully aware of his or her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements. Directors are also regularly updated on
the Group's business and industry environments where appropriate
in the management’s monthly reports to the Board as well as
briefings and materials circulated to the Board before board

meeting.

During the year, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills so as to ensure that their contribution to the Board

remains informed and relevant.
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DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE
Currently, the Company does not have insurance cover for legal
actions against its Directors. The Board is considering to seek

suitable insurance cover in this regard.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board sets the Group's objectives and strategies and monitors
its performance. The Board also decides on matters such as major
transactions, director appointments, and dividend and accounting
policies and monitors the internal controls of the Group's business
operation. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
of overseeing the Group's day to day operations to management

executives.

When the Board delegates aspect of its management and
administration functions to management, clear directions would be
given as to the power of management, in particular, the circumstances
where management should report back to the Board before making

decision or entering into any commitments on behalf of the Group.

Principal functions that are specifically delegated by the Board to
the management include (i) implementation of corporate strategy
and policy initiatives; (i) provision of management reports to the
Board in respect of Group's performance, financial position and
prospects; and (iii) day-to-day management of the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee to ensure that
there are formal and transparent procedures for setting policies on
the remuneration of Directors. The Remuneration Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ng, Mr. Ip and Mr. Lee. The Remuneration Committee
is chaired by Mr. Ng.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to: (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure for Directors and senior management; (i) ensure that they
are fairly rewarded for their individual contribution to the Group's
overall performance, having regard to the interests of shareholders;
(iii) determine the specific remuneration packages to all executive
Directors and senior management; and (iv) review and approve
performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate goals

and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held to
review the remuneration packages of the Directors and to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the
Directors. The Remuneration Committee ensures that no Director is
involved in deciding his own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties
and can seek advice from consultants or other independent external
professional advisers if and when necessary. The terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee, a copy of which is posted on the
Stock Exchange’s and Company's website, are consistent with the

terms set out in the relevant section of the CG Code.

Details of the remuneration of each Director are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 132 to 135 of this annual

report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Nomination Committee to ensure fair
and transparent procedures for the appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors to the Board. The Nomination Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ng, Mr. Ip and Mr. Lee. The Nomination Committee is
chaired by Mr. Ng.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to: (i) review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;
(i) make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment and succession
planning of Directors; (iii) identify individuals suitably qualified to
become board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;
and (iv) assess the independence of independent non-executive

Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

In selecting and recommending candidates for directorship, the
Nomination Committee will consider the criteria, including
character and integrity, qualifications (cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills and experience and
diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy), the potential
contributions and willingness and ability to devote time and
diligence as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s).
The Board will approve the recommendations based on the same
criteria. During the year, one Nomination Committee meeting was
held to review the structure, size and composition of the Board,
make recommendation for appointment of Directors and access
the independence of each of the independent non-executive
Directors. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, a
copy of which is posted on the Stock Exchange’s and Company's
website, are consistent with the terms set out in the relevant section
of the CG Code.

DIVERSIFICATION OF THE BOARD

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board, and sees diversity at Board level as an essential
element in the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. As such, the Board and the Nomination
Committee have adopted the Board Diversity Policy on 24 March

2014 with principles as summarized below.

The Nomination Committee of the Company reviews and assesses
the composition of the Board and makes recommendations to the
Board on appointment of new Directors. The Nomination Committee
also oversees the conduct of the annual review of the effectiveness
of the Board. In reviewing and assessing the composition of the
Board, the Nomination Committee will consider the benefits of all
aspects of diversity in order to maintain an appropriate range and
balance of talents, skills, experience and background on the Board.
In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider candidates on merit against
objective criteria and with due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board, including but not limit to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,

knowledge, length of service etc.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of the Directors have been set out in the bye-laws of the
Company (the "Bye-laws”). According to the Bye-laws, one-third of
the Directors (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but no less than one-third) are subject to
retirement by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election and re-
appointment at least once every three years. Directors who are
required to retire by rotation shall be those who have held the
longest term of office since their last appointment or re-election.
Any new Director appointed to fill casual vacancy shall hold office
until the next general meeting of the Company. Any Director
appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company. All
following appointment, resignation, removal or re-designation of
Directors will be timely disclosed to the Shareholders by
announcement and shall include in such announcement the reasons

given by the Director for his resignation.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Ng, Mr. Ip and Mr. Lee. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. Ng.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review and monitor
the preparation of the Group's financial statements and annual and
half-year reports and accounts; (i) monitor, develop and implement
the Group's policy on appointment of external auditor; (i) recommend
the appointment and reappointment of the Group’s external auditor;
(iv) supervise the Group's financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems and (v) develop and review the
Company's policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee has reviewed
with the management and the external auditors the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and have discussed
auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters. During the
year, two Audit Committee meetings were held to review the financial
reporting matters and internal control procedures of the Group and
appointment of external auditor. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, a copy of which is posted on the Stock Exchange's and
Company'’s website, are consistent with the terms set out in the

relevant section of the CG Code.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
the external auditor and oversees the objectivity and effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable standards. It also
monitors the integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
their compliance with legal requirements and the Listing Rules in

relation to financial reporting.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee currently comprises two executive
Directors, namely Ms. Cui and Mr. Xu. The Executive Committee is
chaired by Ms. Cui.

The Executive Committee is vested with all the general powers of
management and control of the activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries as are vested in the Board, save and except for the
approval of the Company's interim and annual reports and
accounts, matters requiring a public announcement or discloseable
or major transactions or other major disposals or acquisitions or
corporate actions outside the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group which shall require the Board'’s approval.

The Executive Committee may exercise all such other powers and
perform all such other acts as may be exercised and performed by
the Board, save and except for those powers that may only be
exercised by the Board pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the "Companies Act”), the Listing Rules or the Bye-laws.
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CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
for securities transactions by the Directors. Following a specific
enquiry, all Directors confirmed they have complied with the
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2020.

To comply with the code provision A.6.4 of the CG Code, the
Company has also adopted the Model Code as the code of
conduct for securities transactions by relevant employees of the
Group to regulate the dealings in the securities of the Company by
certain employees of the Group who are considered to be likely in
possession of unpublished price sensitive information of the

Company.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. As at 31 December 2020, the
Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the

Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Board understands the importance of presenting a clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group's overall performance,
financial position as well as prospects in a timely manner; and the
Board is pleased to report that the annual and interim results of the
Group are announced within three months and two months limit

respectively after the end of the relevant periods.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of risks in achieving the Group's
objectives and maintaining sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems for the Group to safeguard investments
of the shareholders and assets of the Group at all times. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

The Audit Committee reviews risk management and internal control
issues, if any, identified by the external auditor, regulatory authorities
and management, and evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee in turn reports material issues, if any, to the Board. The
Board and management have conducted regular reviews during the
year on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems covering all material controls in areas of financial, operational
and compliance controls and various functions for risk management.
The Group has its own internal audit function assessing and
commenting on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk

management and internal control systems during the year.

For the year under review, the Board considered that the Group's
internal control systems are adequate and effective and the Group
has complied with the code provisions on internal control of the CG

Code and report except for the deviations previously disclosed.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the independent auditor of
the Company provided audit and non-audit services to the

Company and the Group.

The auditor’'s remuneration in relation to the audit and non-audit
services for the year amounted to HK$3,480,000 and HK$507,000

respectively.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in

the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 60 to 68.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lee Yuen Ting (“Ms. Lee") has been the company secretary of
the Company since 21 November 2013. She reports to the
Chairperson of the Board and is responsible for advising the Board
on corporate governance matters and ensuring that board
procedures are followed and board activities are efficiently and
effectively conducted. Ms. Lee has completed not less than 15

hours of relevant professional training.

EEERRE

BERABEE @)

ERZESENIERHNN EERBRERE
PREETE < Rl B M ARREE R I (INF) » &Y
EARERREENMAMEEFE 2R ERE
Mt BRZEENREAFTRMA)NESE
BE-FRN BEFEREEETHRNARERE
RAMEENEZ BT BEMBEEKRME -
BENARERRAONANLZERRBER T &K
SEERAMBEZSDN > RFALERREERA
RSN E R D B M AARCEITRHE RIFHFHE -

EREFERN REXAREZ RSN &
ZER/ANEENAMEEFEEERBMER
AEBEDETEEEATRRBENE @A
EPERYST RIS »

A B A 5 B
BE_T-_TF+-A=+—HIFE FA7F
BB AAR R RAEEREEB RIS
AR -

FA - ZBE SR E B IR RIS G 2 #
Bl 3 511 %% 3,480,000 7 7T %2 507,000 4 7T

ARRZHBERM BRERAEL PR B TERH
MEOBERE 68 A 2 B ZHBANMENA °

DNEAWE

FREprE((Fx+ DB =-FT—=F+—A
“t-BRE-EBEEEARBZATMNE - KAE
EZRTRMS YRAEMESSRUABLRE
AEEMER  MEREREFEREFMAESS
TEIEN R BB ETT - FHLETK TR
15 &/ N RO R B AR

35

Annual Report 2020 FE#{ &

Corporate Governance Repog

N\



////

N/

N
)

>(It:)rporate Governance Report

ERERRE

HANDLING INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company regulates the handling and propagation of inside
information with reference to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of
Inside Information” published by the Securities and Futures
Commission. Unless any inside information falls within any of the
safe harbors as permitted under the Securities and Future
Ordinance, the Group is required to disseminate such information

to the public in a timely manner.

The Board of Directors and relevant employees are regularly
reminded of the importance of due compliance with policies
regarding the applicable inside information regulatory updates. All
Directors and relevant employees are required to take reasonable
precautions for preserving the confidentiality of inside information
and the relevant announcement (if applicable) before publication. If
the Board believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality
cannot be maintained, it will disclose the information to the public

as soon as reasonably practicable.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the
Company according to the provisions as set out in the Bye-laws and

the Companies Act.

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws, any one or
more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in accordance with the provisions of the

Companies Act.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting right of all the
shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at
the meeting to which the requisition relates; or not less than 100
shareholders are entitled to request the Company to give
shareholders notice of a resolution which is intended to be moved
at the general meeting. A written notice to that effect signed by the
requisitionist(s) with details contact information must be deposited
the Company'’s principle place of business in Hong Kong at Units
05-06, 16th Floor, Global Trade Square, No. 21 Wong Chuk Hang
Road, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary. The
notice shall contain, inter alia, a description of the proposed
resolution desired to be put forward the general meeting, the
reasons for such a proposal and any material interest of the

proposing shareholder in such a proposal.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar in
Bermuda or Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Company will ask the Board to

include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

Making Enquiry to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing to the company secretary at the Company's
office in Hong Kong at Units 05-06, 16th Floor, Global Trade
Square, No. 21 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor’s understanding
of the Group's business performance and strategies. The Company has
established a range of communication channels between itself, its
shareholders and investors, including answering questions through the
annual general meeting, the publications of annual and interim reports,
notices, announcements and circulars on the website of the Company at

http://www.equitynet.com.hk/1076.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS BEXH

During the year, there has been no significant change to the FR W KRR ZEEXHWEEKESH - KR A
Company'’s constitutional documents. An updated version of the — #RBIAYFE FAR AN R A D 7] 523 a8 o
Bye-Laws of the Company is available on the websites of the

Company and the Stock Exchange.

On behalf of the Board REREED

Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited BERLFBERERERAT
Xu Zhongxiang HITEF

Executive Director ®mAEH

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022 BEA T _F=A=1+—H

3 8 Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited & KX ¥ BB ZERER A A



EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Cui Li Jie (“Ms. Cui"), aged 62, the Chairlady of both the Board
and the Executive Committee of the Board, has been appointed as
an executive Director of the Company with effect from 4 May 2017.
She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She
has been engaged in real estate projects and building materials
trading, and has gained extensive experience in investment. Ms.
Cui is also the sole director and sole shareholder of Inventive Star
Limited, the controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company. Save as disclosed above, Ms. Cui did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the past three years

and does not hold any other positions with the Group.

Mr. Xu Zhongxiang (“Mr. Xu"), aged 67, has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company with effect from 30 December
2020. He is also a member of the Executive Committee of the
Board. Mr. Xu graduated from Harbin Light Industry College, has a
wealth of leadership experience in human resources and
management. Over the past 30 years, he has proven to possess
progressive and comprehensive business knowledge. Mr. Xu is
familiar with a variety of management functions of an organization
including initiating, developing and implementing procedures to
improve business performance. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Xu had keenly led and managed established organizations in
Heilongjiang. He is currently the director of certain subsidiaries of

the Company.

Mr. Chen Feng (“Mr. Chen”), aged 48, has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company with effect from 25 March 2022.
Mr. Chen obtained a diploma in accounting and auditing from the
Fujian Provincial Institute of Accounting and Management Cadres
in 1995. He has been awarded the qualification of intermediate
accountant by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of
China in 1999. From 1995 to 1997, he served as a trade center
financial incharge and financial chief in Fuzhou. From 1997 to 2009,
he worked in Fuzhou Zhongwei Industrial Co., Ltd., and successively
served as financial manager, financial director and supervisor. From
2009 to 2012, he served as the financial controller and executive
deputy general manager of Shanghai Zhongfu Enterprise
Investment Development Co., Ltd. He has been the managing
director of Xiamen Lurun Financial Management Consulting Co.,
Ltd since 2012 and the senior partner and investment director of an

investment partnership since 2017.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Hoi Yue (“Mr. Ng”), aged 57, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 21 November 2013. He is also the Chairman of each of the
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Board. He is a fellow member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He has been practising as a
certified public accountant in Hong Kong since 1989. Mr. Ng is
currently an executive director and the Deputy Chief Executive
Officer of Asian Citrus Holdings Limited (stock code: 73) and an
independent non-executive director Ulferts International Limited
(stock code: 1711), both are companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of
Emperor Cultural Group Limited (stock code: 491), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, for the period from 16 May 2002 to
13 November 2018.

Mr. Lee Kwok Leung (“Mr. Lee"), aged 67, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 21 November 2013. He is also a member of each of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of
the Board. He has years of direct investment, fund management
and banking experience. Mr. Lee holds an investment advisor status
from the Securities and Futures Commissions from 2000. He has
been appointed as an executive director of China Internet
Investment Finance Holdings Limited (stock code: 810) since 8 May
2014, the chairman and executive director of Mayer Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1116) from 9 October 2014 to 15 January 2021
and executive director since 15 January 2021 and an independent
non-executive director of Guoan International Limited (stock code:
143) since 1 June 2020, all being companies listed on the Stock

Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Ip Mei Shun (“Mr. Ip”), aged 46, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 1 February 2021, and a
member of each of the audit committee, remuneration committee
and nomination committee of the Company. He is currently the
Director of Logic Global Assets Management Limited, which is
licensed by the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission (the
SFC) for carrying out Type 9 (Asset Management) regulated activity.
Prior to that, he was the Managing Partner of Avantfaire Investment
Management Limited from 2018 to 2020, and the Executive Director
of Tairos Investment Management Company Limited from 2017 to
2018, which are both licensed by the SFC for carrying out Type 4
(Advising on Securities) and Type 9 (Asset Management) regulated
activities. Mr. lp started his career at Hong Kong Exchanges &
Clearing Limited followed by Hong Kong Monetary Authority
during the period between from 1997 to 2004. He was then
employed by Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce and Toronto
Dominion Bank in Canada during the period between 2004 and
2008. He served as the Assistant Vice President of Citigroup Global
Markets Asia Limited from 2008 to 2010, and the Director of CTBC
Private Bank responsible for investment advisory and portfolio
management from 2012 to 2017. He obtained an MBA degree from
the Schulich School of Business at York University in Canada, an
MSc Systems Engineering & Engineering Management degree
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, and a BSc Finance
degree from the City University of Hong Kong. He also holds the
designations of Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA), Financial Risk
Manager (FRM), Certified Private Wealth Professional (CPWP) and
Certified International Wealth Manager (CIWM). He has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of Bisu Technology Group
International Limited (Hong Kong Stock Code: 1372) since 12 April
2019.
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EERGREEAEBBERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Mr. Robert James Woolsey (“Ambassador Woolsey”), aged 79, has
been appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 16 May 2016, held Presidential
appointments in two Republican and two Democratic
administrations, most recently, from 1993 to 1995, as Director of
Central Intelligence under President Bill Clinton. During his twelve
years of government service, in addition to heading the CIA and
the Intelligence Community, Ambassador Woolsey was
Ambassador to the Negotiation on Conventional Armed Forces in
Europe from 1989 to 1991, Under Secretary of the Navy from 1977
to 1979, and General Counsel to the U.S. Senate Committee on
Armed Services from 1970 to 1973. He was appointed by the
President to serve in Geneva, Switzerland, from 1983 to 1986 as
Delegate at Large to the U.S. Soviet Strategic Arms Reduction Talks
(START) and Nuclear and Space Arms Talks (NST). As an officer in
the U.S. Army, he was an adviser on the U.S. Delegation to the
Strategic Arms Limitation Talks (SALT 1), in Helsinki and Vienna,
from 1969 to 1970. He has served on numerous government and
non-profit advisory boards such as the National Commission on
Energy Policy and chaired the Clean Fuels Foundation and the New
Uses Council. He also served as a Trustee of Stanford University
and chaired the Executive Committee of the Board of Regents of
The Smithsonian Institution. He has been a member of The National
Commission on Terrorism, The Commission to Assess the Ballistic
Missile Threat to the U.S., The President’'s Commission on Federal
Ethics Law Reform, The President’s Blue Ribbon Commission on
Defense Management, and The President’'s Commission on
Strategic Forces. Ambassador Woolsey has also been a law partner
at Shea & Gardner and a Vice President with the consulting firm of
Booz Allen Hamilton. He also served on the boards of directors of a
number of companies, including British Aerospace, Inc., Martin
Marietta and Fairchild Industries. In 2009, he was the Annenberg
Distinguished Visiting Fellow at the Hoover Institution at Stanford
University; and from 2010 to 2011 he was a Senior Fellow at Yale
University, where he taught in the Jackson Institute for Global
Affairs. Ambassador Woolsey received his B.A. degree from
Stanford University, where he graduated Magna Cum Laude and
Phi Beta Kappa; an M.A. from Oxford University, where he was a
Rhodes Scholar; and an LL.B from Yale Law School, where he was
Managing Editor of the Yale Law Journal.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Chi Yuan (“Mr. Chi"”), aged 48, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 25 March 2022. He is also the chairman of each of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee.
Mr. Chi this a graduate of Fujian Huagiao University in accounting.
He has been engaged in financial management related to the
capital operation of various enterprises since 2007, including the
enterprises of food manufacturing, textile, shoe manufacturing,
catering chain, valve manufacturing and leather manufacturing,
education. He successively responsible for serval projects in
different regions of People’s Republic of China from 2007 to 2019,
including participate in auditing, financial, business operation

management, internal control, mergers and acquisitions.

The Board has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of its independent non-executive Directors. Save as disclosed,
the Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material relationships with each other or with the senior
management, substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of

the Company.
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The Board hereby presents the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the business review and future development of the
Group's businesses are set out in the sections headed "Business
Review” and “Business Outlook” under “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report. The discussion forms part of
this directors’ report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
An analysis of the Group's revenue and segment information for
the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 69 to 70 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group understands the success of its businesses depends on
the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, professional advisers and regulators. The
Group will continue to ensure effective communication and
maintain good relationships with each of its key stakeholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 196 of this

annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESERVES
As at 31 December 2020, the Directors were of the opinion that the
Company has no distributable reserves.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the “Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity” on page 73, respectively.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Corporate social responsibility and sustainability play an important
role in our everyday business, and it is deeply rooted in our
corporate value. We strive to make a difference in the CNMI and
shoulder the responsibilities of a corporate citizen to grow with the
community. We have a dedicated Corporate Social Responsibility
Team that serves the community through charitable events, and
seeks opportunities to empower the community by connecting

them with education and employment.

In 2020, in order to implement the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Reporting Guide in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules, the Company has further attached
great importance to organizing and arranging relevant preparation
and disclosure, and the Company’s ESG Report for the year ended
2020 was published on the websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance of
applicable rules and regulations. The Group has been allocating
system and staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules
and regulations and to maintain cordial working relationships with
regulators through effective communications. During the year, the
Group has complied with, among others, to the best of our

knowledge, the following major laws and regulations:
Hong Kong

—  the Listing Rules;

—  the Securities and Futures Ordinance;

—  the Companies Ordinance; and

—  the Gambling Ordinance.

Saipan

—  The Commonwealth Gaming Act, codified at 4 CMC §§ 2301

et. seq.
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at4 CMC §§ 2301 et. seq.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the beginning of the financial year ended 31 December 2020,
1,521,268,016 share options were outstanding pursuant to the share
option scheme of the Company adopted on 27 June 2013 (the
“Share Option Scheme”) (each share option shall entitle the
holder of the option to subscribe for one new Share) and
13,623,880,768 Shares, being 9.53% of the Shares then in issue,

were available for issue under the Share Option Scheme.

During the year, no grantee had exercised any share options, no
share options were granted and 77,234,168 share options lapsed.
As at 31 December 2020, there were 1,444,033,848 share options
outstanding pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

The total number of the shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant, together with
all options granted and to be granted to him/her under any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company, within the 12-month
period immediately preceding the proposed date of grant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of the shares in issue as at the
proposed date of grant. The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the Board, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company'’s shares on the
date of the offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer.
The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
options must not exceed 30% of the number of shares in issue from
time to time. No options may be granted if such grant would result

in the 30% limit being exceeded.
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OTHER INFORMATION Hib &R
Movement of the share options under the Share Option Scheme #BHEZZ-_ZF+_A=+—HLFE BRE
during the year ended 31 December 2020 is as follows: TEIETIEREZ 8T -
Asat Asat Exercise
Categories of 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December Price
Participants 2020 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2020 (HKS)  Grant Date Exercise Period
it i
ka3 Bi#/ 2%-%% k@
SEERH -B-# Bk if:d BX%  TZA=1-H (871) RERH s
|
Directors
-]
Ms. Xia Yuki Yu 3521212 - - - 3521212 022 18June 2015 18 June 2018-17 June 2025
3521212 - - - 352,12 022 18June 2015 18 June 2019~ 17 June 2025
3501212 - - - 3521212 022 18 June 2015 18 June 2020- 17 June 2025
3521212 - - - 3521212 022 18June 2015 18 June 2021-17 June 2025
2864000 - - - 2464000 015 5Apil 2017 5 Aprl 20184 Aprl 2007
2,664,000 - - - 2,664,000 015 SApil 2017 5 April 2019 - 4 April 2027
2612000 - - - 2672000 015 SApil 2017 5 April 2020~ 4 April 2027
Xia Yuki Yu L2 ZE-RERATIA Z5-\ERETNRECZECRERATHA
“E-RERATAA CE-NEAATNREZECREAATLA
“E-RE5AHIA CECEERATNRECTCREAATLR
“I-RE/ATIA ZEC-ERATNREZECREAA TR
“E-tEmARA Z5-/\EBARAECECLEMARA
Z3-tEmARA ZS-NERARRECECrENARA
Z5-t5MARA CECREMARAZ-E-LEMARA
Mr. Teng Sio 6,600,000 - - - 6,600,000 015 5Apil 2017 5 April 2018 - 4 April 2027
6,660,000 - - - 6,660,000 015 5SApil 2017 5 April 2019 - 4 April 2027
6,680,000 - - - 6,680,000 015 SApil 2017 5 April 2020- 4 April 2027
ThERE “E-tEmARA Z5-/\EBARAECECLEMARA
Z3-tEmARA ZE-NERARRECECrERARE
Z5-t5MARA CECREMARAZ-E-LEMARA
Mr. Robert James Woolsey 286,793 - - - 26,753 015 5Apil 2017 5 April 2018 - 4 April 2027
286,753 - - - 26753 015 5SApil 2017 5 April 2019 - 4 April 2027
281,614 - - - 27614 015 SApil 2017 5 April 2020- 4 April 2027
Robert James Woolsey “E-tEMARRA “E-\§MARAZ-E_LEMARA
i Z3-tEmARA ZE-NERARRECECrERARE
Z5-t5MARA CECREMARAZ-E-LEMARA
Mr. Ng Hoi Yue 66,600 - - - 66,600 015 5Apil 2017 5 April 2018 - 4 April 2027
66,600 - - - 66,600 015 5SApil 2017 5 April 2019 - 4 April 2027
66,800 - - - 66,800 015 SApil 2017 5 April 2020- 4 April 2027
sFEsE “E-tEmARA Z5-/\EmARAECECLEMARA
Z3-tEmARA CE-NERARRECECrERARE
Z5-t5MmARA CECREMARAZ-E-LEMARA
Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco 66,600 - - 66,600 - 015 5Apil 2017 5 April 2018 - 4 April 2027
66,600 - - 66,600 - 015 5SApil 2017 5 April 2019 - 4 April 2027
66,800 - - 66,600 - 015 SApil 2017 5 April 2020- 4 April 2027
EEBLHE “E-tEmARA Z5-/\EBARAECECLEMARA
Z3-tEmARA ZE-NERARRECECrERARE
Z5-t5MmARA CECREMARAZ-E-LEMARA
Mr. Lee Kwok Leung 66,600 - - - 66,600 015 5Apil 2017 5 April 2018 - 4 April 2027
66,600 - - - 66,600 015 5SApil 2017 5 April 2019 - 4 April 2027
66,800 - - - 66,800 015 SApil 2017 5 April 2020- 4 April 2027
FEREE “E-tEmARA Z5-/\EBARAECECLEMARA
Z3-tEmARA ZE-NERARRECECrERARA
Z5-t5MmARA CECREMARAZ-E-LEMARA
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OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) Hit &R ()
Asat Asat Exercise
Categories of 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December Price
Participants 2020 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2020 (HKS)  Grant Date Exercise Period
it i
ogo%f BE#/ k2.3 i@
SEEEH -B-H 2R Bfif BEY  tzR=t-B (B7)  REAH s
|
Employees and others 1,120,000,000 - - - 1120000000 01055 3 December 2014 3 December 2014 - 2 December 2024
(in aggregate) 49,995,452 - - 03nm 678,180 02 18June 2015 18 June 201817 June 2025
49995452 - - 10317.212 39678180 02 18 June 2015 18 June 2019-17 June 2025
49,995,452 - - 03m 2678180 02 18June 2015 18 June 202017 June 2025
49,995,452 - - 03nm 678,180 02 18June 2015 18 June 2021 -17 June 2025
950,000 - - - 950,000 0255 26November 2015 26 November 2016 - 25 November 2025
950,000 - - - 950,000 025 26November 2015 26 November 2017 - 25 November 2025
950,000 - - - 950,000 025 26November 2015 26 November 2018 - 25 November 2025
950,000 - - - 950,000 025 26November 2015 26 Noverber 2019 - 25 November 2025
51,254,028 - - 11,903,110 39350918 0.15 5 April 2017 5 April 2018 - 4 April 2027
51,254,028 - - 11903110 39350918 015 SAprl 2017 5 April 2019 -4 April 2027
5140794 - - 11,958,860 39,449,084 0.15 5 April 2017 5 April 2020~ 4 April 2027
EERAM(23) “I-RETZAZR Z5-FEt-AZRZ-F-RETCACH
“T-RERATIA “E-\ENBTNBE-E-REAATLA
“F-257A1T/A CE-NERETRECZCRERATHA
“Z-14xAHNR CECEERAT\RECECREAATLE
“T-RERATIA “E-ERBT\BECECREAATLA
ZF-RFt-AotRB ZE-REt-ACTARE
ZICRET-AZTEA
“E-REt-BotRR CE-tEt-AofRRE
ZECREr-AoTEA
TE-REt-fotRR 0 CE-NEt-AotREE
ZECRET-ACTEA
ZF-RFt-AztRE ZE-AEt-ACTARE
ZICRET-AZTEA
“5-tEmARA “E-\EMARRZ-E-LEMANA
ZE-+ERATA “3-N\EMARAZ-Z_+FNARA
ZT-tERATA “5-FEMARAZ-E-LEMARA
Total 1,521,28801 - S TR 144403388
&3t
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in Note 2.5 to

the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction
in which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the existing

shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SHARES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$3,000
(2019: HK$92,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate amount of sales attributable to the
Group's 5 largest customers accounted for approximately 22%
(2019: 32%) of the total sales for the year and sales attributable to
the largest customer accounted for approximately 14% (2019: 13%)
of the total sales for the year. Our suppliers provide products and
services such as food and beverages products, gaming equipment
and machines, and construction services. Purchases from the
Group's 5 largest suppliers accounted for approximately 40% (2019:
66%) of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 19% (2019: 20%) of
the total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) has any interest in the Group's five largest

customers and suppliers during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 8 December 2017, Best Fortune Corporation Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into an
employment agreement ("Employment Agreement”) with Mr. Ji
Xiao Bo (“Mr. Ji") pursuant to which Mr. Ji will continue to be
appointed as the Project Director of the casino resort project on
the Island of Saipan. According to the Employment Agreement, Mr.
Ji'is entitled to a basic annual salary of US$1 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$7.75 million). The Employment Agreement was
fixed to a term that expires on 31 December 2020 but is, in any
event, terminable on three months’ notice in writing by either party.
To cater for the possibility of discretionary bonus being awarded,
the Board had set a cap on the total amount (inclusive of
discretionary bonus) that may be paid to Mr. Ji under the New
Employment Agreement for each of the financial year ended/
ending 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 of US$2 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$15.6 million). Mr. Ji is the son of
Ms. Cui and Ms. Cui is a Director of the Company and the sole
shareholder of Inventive Star Limited (“Inventive Star”), the
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company. Mr. Ji is therefore a connected person (as defined in the
Listing Rules) and the Employment Agreement therefore
constituted a continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules and subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements, but was exempt from the
independent shareholder’s approval requirement. Details of the
Employment Agreement have been disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 8 December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no remuneration has

paid to Mr. Ji and the Employment Agreement has not renewed.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors
Ms. Cui Li Jie (Chairperson) (resigned on 4 June 2021)
Mr. Xu Zhongxiang (appointed on 30 December 2020)
Ms. Cui Limei
(appointed on 15 June 2020 and retired on 29 June 2020)
Ms. Xia Yuki Yu (resigned on 15 June 2020)
Mr. Teng Sio | (resigned on é April 2020)
Mr. Chen Feng (appointed on 25 March 2022)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ma Wentao (resigned on 30 December 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Robert James Woolsey

Mr. Ng Hoi Yue (resigned on 11 March 2022)

Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco (resigned on 31 October 2020)
Mr. Lee Kwok Leung

Mr. Ip Mei Shun (appointed on 1 February 2021)

Mr. Chi Yuan (appointed on 25 March 2022)

At the Annual General Meeting of the Company which was held at
2:30 p.m. on 29 September 2021, the proposed resolutions as set
out in the notice of Annual General Meeting in relation to the re-
election of each of Mr. Lee Kwok Leung, Mr. Ng Hoi Yue and Mr. Ip
Mei Shun as independent non-executive Director were duly
approved by the Shareholders by way of poll. Details of the poll
results of the Annual General Meeting were set out in the

announcement of the Company dated 29 September 2021.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT
The biographical details of the Directors and Senior Management

are set out on pages 39 to 43 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICES CONTRACTS

No Director eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 8 to the

consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

According to the available information, the Board is not aware of
any contract during the year entered into with the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the

business of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to bye-law 166 of the Company’s Bye-Laws and relevant
provisions of the regulations stipulated, every Director and other
officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
losses and liabilities which he or she may incur or sustain in or about
the execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise in relation
thereto, and no Director or other officer shall be liable for any loss,
damages or misfortune which may happen to or be incurred by the
Company in the execution of the duties of his or her office or in
relation thereto, provided that this Bye-Law shall only have effect in

so far as its provisions are not avoided by the Companies Act.

The Company has taken out and maintained Directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance throughout the year, which provides

appropriate cover for the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors has

any interest in competing business to the Group during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there was no contract of
significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party to and in which a
Director has a material interest in, whether directly or indirectly, or
between the Company, or its subsidiary companies, and a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries, and subsisted at
the end of the financial year under review or at any time during the

financial year under review.

DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")), which are required (i) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Division 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); (ii) pursuant to section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (i) pursuant to the
Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING REHHPzREEZRARE (&)
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares/underlying shares of the

Company:

Directors’ Rep0ﬂ<</\/é

EEEHE

N

EERFETHRAERKRG HERSD

RARNBE B HEKRGDZ2HR

Number of Percentage of
Shares/ issued share
Long position/ underlying capital of the
Name of Director Capacity Short position shares held Company
FisRe,/ RN
Y] 8) Be/ %A HEROHE ERITREBIE
|
Ms. Cui Li Jie Interest of controlled  Long position 86,917,669,280 60.80%
corporation
EEATT R ERER 55 ) 86,917,669,280 60.80%
Interest of controlled  Short position 72,310,855,333 (Note 1) 50.57%
corporation
REHAEES RE 72,310,855,333 (PizE 1) 50.57%
Mr. Robert James Woolsey Beneficial owner Long position 861,120 (Note 2) 0.00%
Robert James Woolsey 5t 4 EmEEA e 861,120 (Ki7£2) 0.00%
Mr. Ng Hoi Yue Beneficial owner Long position 200,000 (Note 3) 0.00%
mEFEE 837 2PN R 200,000 (Fff3E 3) 0.00%
Mr. Lee Kwok Leung Beneficial owner Long position 200,000 (Note 3) 0.00%
FERESE EmEAA 1) 200,000 (K7t 3) 0.00%
Mr. Xu Zhongxiang Beneficial owner Long position 14,400,000 0.01%
REHEE EmEAA e 14,400,000 0.01%
Notes: FieE
1. Inventive Star had granted options over its shares of the Company at the 1. Inventive Star 2 Bt A R B IR D & L B IR - 17(F
exercise price of HK$0.24 per share, exercisable to purchase a maximum HEBEREANRTEESROUELBERS
of 3,268,733,333 shares. On 19 November 2019, Inventive Star entered 3,268,733 333 WM - R—_ZE—NLF+—FA+h
into a contract with Brave Access Investments Limited (“Brave Access”) A Inventive Star Bl RITEFR A A ([#EE ) AT
granting Brave Access rights to purchase from Inventive Star an aggregate SLEH) - DA ke T E R A Inventive Star B & H
of 7,000,000,000 Shares of the Company. 7,000,000,000 ML A A &AL ©
2. On 5 April 2017, 861,120 share options were granted to Mr. Robert James 2. MZZF—+FAAAB  Robert James Woolsey %t
Woolsey pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. EIREIEAR T BB 861,120 1D BB AR HE -
3. On 5 April 2017, 200,000 share options were granted to Mr. Ng Hoi Yue 3. RZZE—+FMNARA MEBTEERFTERLER

and Mr. Lee Kwok Leung respectively pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme.

IRRERCRERT 85 B 4% 200,000 1 BE AL HE -
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors is a director or employee of a company which has an
interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and none
of the Directors, the chief executive of the Company nor their
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any other interests
or short positions in the shares of the Company, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which any such Director or the chief executive of the
Company is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) were required to be entered into the register
maintained by the Company, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO;
or (c) were required to be notified to the Company or the Stock
Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transaction

by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

As at 31 December 2020, in accordance with the register of the
substantial shareholders kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO, or to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and the Listing Rules, the following
person was interested (including short positions) in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company:

Long positions in the ordinary shares/underlying shares of the

Company:

Name of shareholder

BRREB A

Inventive Star Limited (Note 1)
Inventive Star Limited (F7E 1)

Ms. Cui Li Jie (Note 1)

EBEALL ()

Mr. Ji Xiaobo (Note 3)

AeBES e A (FHEE3)

Super Champion Global Limited
(Note 3)
HBERRER AR (FHFE3)

Fresh Idea Ventures Limited

Huarong International
Financial Holdings Limited

China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd.
TEEREETERNDERAT

Capacity

55

Beneficial owner

Emfa A

Interest of controlled
corporation
SPEHEE S

Interest of controlled

corporation
TS EE S

Beneficial owner

ERmBAA

Beneficial owner

BEmla A

Interest of controlled
corporation
SEHABE R

Interest of controlled
corporation
SIS EEE R

FERR

RZZ_ZEF+_A=1+—H0 REXRIFER
& 7 R HIE IR 5 336 15
fit - HAREE R EEOIFEXVEF 2 %30 &
ZHEX R ETRAATHRE  WFATHEBEAR
A SRR 2w (BREAR)

Long position/
Short position

R RR

Long position
ey}
Short position

R

mp

Long position

A
Short position

S
xR

mp

Long position

Sy
Long position

7R

Long position
Sy

Long position

Directors’ Report<</\/
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FEZEFEBRRER

RARBE B BEBRNDZHE

Approximate

Number of percentage of
shares interest
ROEE BTt
86,917,669,280 60.80%
86,917,669,280 60.80%
72,310,855,333 50.57%
(Note 2)
72,310,855,333 50.57%
(PfF5E2)
86,917,669,280 60.80%
86,917,669,280 60.80%
72,310,855,333 50.57%
(Note 2)
72,310,855,333 50.57%
(M5E2)
128,689,860,000 90.00%
128,689,860,000 90.00%
128,000,000,000 89.52%
128,000,000,000 89.52%
62,375,642,000 43.62%
62,375,642,000 43.62%
62,375,642,000 43.62%
62,375,642,000 43.62%
62,375,642,000 43.62%
62,375,642,000 43.62%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER (Continued)

Notes:
1. Inventive Star is wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Cui.
2. Inventive Star had granted options over its shares of the Company at the

exercise price of HK$0.24 per share, exercisable to purchase a maximum
of 3,268,733,333 shares. On 8 July 2019, Inventive Star entered into a
contract with Guan Lian Capital to grant rights to Guan Lian Capital to
purchase 14,000,000,000 Shares of the Company. On 19 November 2019,
Inventive Star entered into a contract with Brave Access granting Brave
Access rights to purchase from Inventive Star an aggregate of
7,000,000,000 Shares of the Company.

3 Super Champion Global Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Ji
Xiaobo and Super Champion Global Limited held the convertible notes
issued by the Company in the principal amount of HK$400,000,000 which
were convertible to 128,000,000,000 conversion shares if the underlying
conversion rights were exercised in full.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person (other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had registered
an interest or short position in the securities or underlying shares of
the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 26 to 38 of this annual

report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

On 26 February 2021, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited was re-
appointed as the auditor of the Company until the conclusion of
the next annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution for
the reappointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing

Rules throughout the year and up to the date of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board
Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited

Xu Zhongxiang

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022

In the event of any inconsistency, the English text of this annual

report shall prevail over the Chinese text.
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HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

To the shareholders of
Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out
on pages 69 to 195, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our
report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements and as to whether the
consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Material uncertainties relating to the going concern basis
As described in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group incurred net loss of approximately HK$7,390,265,000
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and, as of 31 December
2020, the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of
approximately HK$9,436,403,000 and approximately
HK$7,265,548,000 respectively. The Group's other borrowings with
aggregate principal amounts of HK$466,240,000 were overdue for
repayment as at 31 December 2020 and together with the overdue
interests thereon of HK$27,691,000 were not repaid as at 31
December 2020 or subsequently up to the date of this report. The
Group's aggregate other borrowings and unsecured bonds and
notes amounted to approximately HK$4,166,339,000 and
approximately HK$152,752,000 respectively as at 31 December
2020 respectively, out of which HK$3,765,237,000 were repayable
on demand or were due for repayment within twelve months from
31 December 2020; while its cash and cash equivalents amounted
to approximately HK$10,013,000 only as at 31 December 2020. In
addition, the contingent liabilities described below may result in
outflows of cash from the Group for which no provision has been
recognized as at 31 December 2020 in the consolidated financial
statements, or in excess of the amount of provision recognized,
thus causing the financial performance and financial position of the
Group to be worse than that referred to above.

As described in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements,
the principal subsidiary of the Group, Imperial Pacific International
(CNMI), LLC (“IP1"), that holds the gaming license required for the
conduct of the Group's casino operations is subject to regulatory
oversight in respect of its compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations including, inter alia, the Bank Secrecy Act (“BSA"). This
subsidiary received a letter from the Financial Crimes Enforcement
Network (“FinCEN") of the US Department of the Treasury dated 4
March 2020, which indicated that there were apparent violations of
the BSA and its implementing regulations based on its prior
examination, and has requested the subsidiary to provide certain
information and documents relevant to its compliance with these
regulatory requirements from 2016 and up to the current date,
before FInCEN evaluates the assessment of any civil money
penalties or to take additional enforcement action. The Group is in
the process of preparing for the required information and
documents for submission to FINCEN. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the investigation can lead to fines,
penalties or other implications to the Group's casino license subject
to the term of the CLA and hence to the Group's casino operations.
However, the ultimate outcome of these matters cannot be
assessed with reasonable certainty as at the date of this report.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

Material uncertainties relating to the going concern basis
(Continued)

As disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Company had made an announcement that a subsidiary of the
Company in Saipan, the Commonwealth of Northern Mariana
Islands, has assisted in an investigation by the Federal Government
Authorities and provided relevant information and documents as
required by the Federal Government Authorities. As at the date of
this report, the investigation by the Federal Government Authorities
is still ongoing. The Group has engaged external legal counsels to
conduct an independent investigation on the documents and
information submitted and to be submitted to the authorities (the
“Independent Investigation”). Based on the findings from the
independent investigation, the Directors have not identified any
transactions which were assessed to be either of a high or moderate
risk to a criminal liability exposure and the external legal counsels
of this subsidiary have opined that the criminal liability exposures
which were assessed to be of a low to moderate risk in their
investigation reports do not amount to a material breach of any
provisions of CLA or the Commonwealth Casino Commission
("CCC") regulations. As at the date of this report, the investigation
by the Federal Government Authorities is still ongoing and the
investigation can lead to fines, penalties or other implications to
the Group's casino license subject to the terms of the CLA and
hence to the Group's casino operations. However, the ultimate
outcome of these matters cannot be assessed with reasonable
certainty as at the date of this report.

As disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements,
on 23 April 2021, the subsidiary received an order from the CCC
that, among other matters, the casino resort developer license as
granted under the CLA between the subsidiary and the CNMI is
suspended, the IPI shall pay the annual license fee (“Annual
License Fee”) of US$15,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$120,373,000) and the Casino Regulatory Fee of US$3,100,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$24,075,000) immediately and that
IPI shall pay penalties of US$6,600,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$51,256,000). The Board considered that pursuant to the force
majeure clause under the CLA, the IPl is not required to pay the
Annual License Fee in the event of natural disasters. However, the
CCC raised disputes and alleged that the COVID-19 pandemic
does not constitute a natural disaster or force majeure. As a result,
IPI has filed a review with Superior Court in Saipan to determine
whether the pandemic constitutes a natural disaster or force
majeure. As of the date of this report, such review is still ongoing
and the casino gaming license have been suspended.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)
Material uncertainties relating to the going concern basis
(Continued)

As disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group is a defendant to a number of civil litigation cases as at
31 December 2020. The claims can potentially lead to further
insufficiency of working capital and loss of rights to hire foreign
workers for the next five years for the Group because of the alleged
breaches of the settlement with the US Department of Labor and
the alleged failure to properly pay construction workers and expose
the Group to the risk of a total loss of its investment in the casino
resort. Should the Group be unable to succeed in its defense of
these civil litigation cases, adjustments would have to be made to
recognize provisions for the losses, to impair the Group's assets
and to provide for further liabilities. The ultimate outcome of these
litigation cases are subject to the judgement of the relevant court
and cannot be assessed with reasonable certainty as at the date of

this report.

The directors of the Company are undertaking a number of plans
and measures to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial
position, as set out in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends
on the successful eventual outcome of these plans and measures

and are subject to multiple uncertainties, including:

(i) whether the Group is able to reactivate the casino license
from the suspension by CCC's order dated 22 April 2021 as
the IPl is in breach of its CLA due to the failure to pay the
annual license fee of approximately US$15,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$120,373,000) in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2020 and the breach of the license
agreement for failing to pay Casino Regulatory Fee of
US$3,100,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$24,075,000),
failure to maintain a required amount of expected obligations
in cash and cash equivalents in a restricted account in the
bank in the CNMI or United States of America of amount
US$8,400,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$65,130,000)
and penalties in addition to the amounts claimed of
US$6,600,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$51,256,000);
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

Material uncertainties relating to the going concern basis
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

64

whether the Group is able to defend with Superior Court in
Saipan to determine the pandemic constitutes a natural
disaster or force majeure and reactivate the casino gaming

license and resume the casino gaming operation business;

whether the Group is able to successfully extend the dates of
maturity of the other borrowings and unsecured bonds and
notes which were overdue for repayment or will be due for
repayment within twelve months from the date of approval of

the consolidated financial statements;

whether Inventive Star Limited and other related parties are
able to provide adequate financial support to the Group to
enable the Group to continue to operate as a going concern
in the foreseeable future and to settle the Group's liabilities
as and when they fall due, including the liabilities from the
potential claims in relation to the litigation cases, the casino
annual license fees, the payment of Casino Regulatory Fee
and the penalty;

whether the Group is able to continue secure necessary credit
facilities to enable the Group to meet its working capital and
financial requirements on the construction development and
operation of Imperial Palace ® Saipan and other matters in the
foreseeable future since the gaming license have been

suspended;

whether the Company is able to successfully undertake other
financing arrangements with a view to increasing the Group's

capitalisation/equity; and

whether the Company is able to refinance and/or rollover the
Group's existing loans with a view to improving the Group's
liquidity.

TEREENEEW)

B35

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

BEENMBENERTHBRE (&)

BIEAREBREREMNEENBESEERN
oUEBEERBEEREAXEXTARTS
W B RREN RIS ERPE R RIREIREEIS1E
WEER

BT BEEESKINERH A ER RS
REBRBRGE VB REME B BT
TZEARIBAEENEEFES LR
E|H5H -

Inventive Star Limited & H fib B 5t 5 = 4 6
Hm BEERHEEANTESIG & &
EEEENER B REBENFELLEHFAE

B WRBIMEEN SRENHEE 825
ke

LRMRTAEROEERE RESFER
RE - XNRVZEEENABNER

Smo

HRBEEREEME  RY SRERES
HEBUSIIBEERE £ BESRERME

NERABHKRIBERE « EIIMRBRE
REEBENREMEENLEES RUBE
Sk

BF BRAIEEKRMETEMRE LS -
PAsEIn BEREMER fEm K

fT BEAFRESH BEXENREENA
BMERHIER - UE EEENRDE
ﬁ o

Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited % K ¥ EIBIZRGR A A



BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

Material uncertainties relating to the going concern basis
(Continued)

Should the Group fail to achieve successful outcomes from the
above-mentioned plans and measures, it might not be able to
continue to operate as a going concern. We have not been
provided with sufficient appropriate audit evidence to conclude on
the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements because of the lack of detailed analysis provided by
management in relation to its plans and measures for future actions
in its going concern assessment which take into account the
uncertainty of outcome of these plans and measures and how
variability in outcome would affect the future cash flows of the
Group. Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities respectively. The effects of these adjustments
have not been reflected in these consolidated financial statements
and we were unable to determine whether such adjustment were
necessary.

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment

As disclosed in Note 13 and Note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements, included in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group as at 31 December 2020 are certain property, plant and
equipment, including right-of-use assets and construction in
progress, of the Imperial Palace Saipan resort.

As aforementioned above, due to the closure of the casino
operations in the Imperial Palace Saipan resort since 17 March 2020
as a result of the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic and the
suspension order from the Commonwealth Casino Commission
dated 22 April 2021, the management considered that impairment
indicators for the property, plant and equipment of the Imperial
Palace Saipan resort existed as at 31 December 2020. Based on the
impairment review conducted, impairment losses of
HK$1,892,604,000 and HK$2,574,776,000 on the property, plant and
equipment and construction in progress respectively have been
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2020 to write down the carrying amounts of the
property, plant and equipment of the Imperial Palace Saipan resort
to their recoverable amounts as at 31 December 2020, which were
determined based on their fair value less costs of disposal using the
income approach.

N
Independent Auditor’s Report<<//

38 3 B BR8] S

TEREENEEW)
RSECEMBANERTHBER (&)

i BERBEREERINETT L s 8 KA - RIA]
RREZBEASERETAZE - ANEEEHR
HiS @ a i i W B KR RITE MG 8
IR AN - B EZ BRI FA 8 G
RROTETENE - URTEE SR NEZ
2 FEENARKEDRE  WRMALKRERM
EHNEEEZERE  UREREERRGAY
BHREABERAFSELLETERRLTRESHS
e f BEEEEIEENRELETREE
QAL AE - S EEMREERRZEE A KE
T URAIRRELNEMBEFELEE Uk
KIERBEENFFRBAEDHIERDERRE
BEMRBEE ZFHENFZELREUEFLR
EPBHRPRE  MEMATEEZEEEEFE
TEHZ S AR -

M - BERZENBERSE

PG AT BHRERMFE1IRMFEMFAHE  HE
TECTFF A=+ —HN EEEYE-R®
EBhEEoREEEEEZMEBRNNETHE
B K& BiEFERAREERTEELIRE -

BN _EXCFral R AEEE 2 I T AT A IR 2L
HEBECOVID- 19 Bk RS REREHESEEE
CHHA- T - —FWNA-_+-_HWNEEES

BT -_TF-_At+LtHAREE EEEBERAR
“EEF+_A=+-—H BEETENER
Nz BEMEETEREDR - BRIEDETT
BESE EREE_Z-EF+-_A=+—8H
IFFENGEBETR D RERYE MEMEER
FETIRERTE1,892,604,000/8 7T K 2,574,776,000
BT WEHBEETZMEERNNYDE  BEX
REEEEMREAR -_Z_F+_A=1+—
AR E £ FlSEIERRAEREER
NABEREEKRAERE

65

Annual Report 2020 FE#{ &

N



////

N/

/

\//\>>|ndependent Auditor’s Report

38 3 B BR8] S

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)
Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

When applying the income approach for the purpose of estimating
the fair values of the properties of the Imperial Palace Saipan resort
as at 31 December 2020, the valuer engaged by the Group to
perform the valuation of the properties has taken into consideration
the fact that the casino license of the resort was suspended under
an order from the Commonwealth Casino Commission dated 22
April 2021. The valuer has assumed that (i) the proposed
development of the resort will be completed in accordance with
the provided development scheme and timeline and will be
completed all phases and ready for immediate occupation in
December 2023 with the benefits of all approvals and permits,
planning, building regulations, guidelines and consents required
from all relevant government authorities will be issued without
onerous conditions and delays; and (ii) there are no any legal,
planning nor construction impediments to interrupt the completion

of the proposed development.

We were not provided with sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
satisfy ourselves that the above-mentioned assumptions underlying
were reasonable under the prevailing facts and circumstances,
particularly in relation to the uncertainties concerning the resort
development completion date and additional development costs
to be incurred due to the prolonged suspension of development
since early 2020. Accordingly, we were unable to satisfy ourselves
as to whether there were material misstatements in the fair value
less costs of disposal as at 31 December 2020 of the property, plant
and equipment of the Imperial Palace Saipan resort and the
resulting provision for impairment loss of property, plant and
equipment of HK$4,467,380,000 recognised in consolidated profit
or loss for the year then ended. Any adjustments to the recoverable
amounts of these property, plant and equipment including
construction in progress found to be necessary would affect the
Group's net liabilities as at 31 December 2020, the Group's financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended and the
elements making up the consolidated financial statements and

related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)
Events after the reporting period and contingent
liabilities

The Group has disclosed the current status of the various litigations
concerning the Group in Note 33 and Note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements. However, we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves that events that
occurred after the end of the financial reporting period up to the
date of this audit report that require adjustment of, or disclosure in,
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 have been identified by the Group,
including that the latest updates on the progress of the litigations
concerning the Group have been provided to us by the
management and its legal counsels. There were no alternative
audit procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves as to
whether there had occurred significant events or transactions
during the period from 1 January 2021 to the date of this report
which might require adjustments to or disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements which have not been identified
by management and disclosed to us during the course of our audit,
and whether the contingent liabilities set out in Note 33 and Note
41 to the consolidated financial statements were properly recorded
and accounted for in the consolidated financial statements. Any
such unidentified or undisclosed events or transactions found to
have occurred during this subsequent event period or material
amounts of contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020 which
were not accounted for or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements found to be in existence at 31 December 2020 may have
a consequential significant effect on the net liabilities of the Group
as at 31 December 2020, the Group's financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended and the elements making up
and related disclosures thereof in the consolidated financial

statements.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019, were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on these statements on 31 March
2020 with a separate section to draw attention to material

uncertainty related to going concern.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and the disclosure requirement of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditors’ report
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. However, because of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our
report, we were not able to form an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

The engagement director of the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai Alex
Practicing Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income<//

mEeEBERkHEMEEHKER
Year ended 31 December 2020
HE_ZT-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
— i —F-hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b FET FET
Revenue W zs 5 26,507 539,266
Cost of sales FHE A (51,515) (219,456)
Gross (loss)/profit ESWES (25,008) 319,810
Other income, gains and losses, net EHMUA - s REE 49,137 29,134
Selling and marketing expenses SHE R i H B X (1,582) (14,032)
Operating and administrative expenses T R ITH R X (1,316,252) (1,164,696)
Allowance for expected credit losses on W E SRk 2 Ta Hf
trade receivables, net EEEIERE R 19 (1,119,764) (2,322,910)
Allowance for expected credit losses on E At JE U /1B 2 TE BR
other receivables EEEERE 16 (11,078) -
Impairment of property, plant and Y - BB RERERE
equipment 13 (4,467,380) -
Impairment of investment in a joint venture A —HA& LM% 2R ERIE 15 (92,424) -
Share-based payments VARR 19 I B 2 1~ 3R 29 (932) (6,805)
Finance costs B 1% & A 7 (404,055) (362,974)
Share of loss of a joint venture ElE—REAaEEEE (927) (4,852)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRBAT RS 1R 6 (7,390,265) (3,527,325)
Income tax expense FriSfiF 10 - (376,945)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO A2 Fl#4A A B
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY FRER (7,390,265) (3,904,270)
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mEBERkHEMEEHKER
Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_Z-_ZF+-A=1+—RItEE

\ Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

2020 2019
— i —F-hF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
b FET THBT
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Hit2mEKE(FR)
(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that REZEMAEEFHES
may be reclassified to profit or loss Bz HMmemikes
in subsequent periods: (E518) -
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINEBEEZER
foreign operations et 4,711 (28,464)
Share of other comprehensive income of  [E{EA &Y
joint venture HAth 2 WS 54 -
Reclassification of cumulative exchange HEBIINEBRENSE
reserve upon disposal of a Z5HE R HE
foreign operation (9) -
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) REZBERIRE S EE
that may be reclassified to profit or B Hih 2 e
loss in subsequent periods (B1#8R) 58 4,756 (28,464)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that ~ REZHMASEFHHES
will not be reclassified to profit or Bz EMmEmikss
loss in subsequent periods: (FBE)
Equity investments designated B RRAREBERT AHM
at fair value through other PERAZBARIRE
comprehensive income:
— Change in fair value — AREEEY (1,884) (9,998)
Net other comprehensive loss that will not REEHIB TS EHHES
be reclassified to profit or loss in Baz Bt 2 EEEFE
subsequent periods (1,884) (9,998)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FREMmEEERE(BE)
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 2,872 (38,462)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS AAFEREAREFREAE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO BIRAE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (7,387,393) (3,942,732)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO RAFFEAREERER 12 (Restated)
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (&E75))
Basic and diluted EANES HK$(1.03)87T  HK$(0.55) 87T
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment in a joint venture
Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Equity investments in listed shares
designated at fair value through

other comprehensive income

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Restricted bank deposit

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Other borrowings

Lease liabilities

Unsecured bonds and notes
Loans from a joint venture

Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

FRBEE
e

R—HARZEEEZERE

BNHRIR - 2E REMER
IR
BERBRAABEA
Hip 2EBMAZ EHR
A E

FREBEERE

RBEE

&

&Y E 5 B
BNFR - 1E REMER
IR

SRHRITER

Re MREEFEY

mBEERE

RBAEE

e E 5 BRK

Ho At & A5 SRR e AT IR
HAB R

HEAE
BERAMEZFLER
XE—BEEREZER
eI IR

mEBRERE

RBREFHE

EERERRBAEE

—ZE-RF+-A=+—H

2020 2019

—g-®F TN

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
fi it TR B
13 2,650,641 7,317,813
15 55,986 149,283
16 32,058 29,069
17 5,121 8,473
2,743,806 7,504,638

18 24,118 23,466
19 1,005,677 2,124,660
16 138,321 346,362
20 - 44,621
20 10,013 100,497
1,178,129 2,639,606

21 72,096 77,023
22 6,744,063 5,266,054
24 3,662,240 1,358,405
14 3,611 23,240
26 102,997 480,357
15 8,477 10,046
21,048 99,063

10,614,532 7,314,188
(9,436,403) (4,674,582)
(6,692,597) 2,830,056
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>(Ionsolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R &
31 December 2020
—ECTF+-A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
I TEx FETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Other payables and accruals B b A A M BT FUA 22 - 418,157
Lease liabilities HEBE 14 19,097 21,741
Other borrowings HibEz 24 504,099 2,092,351
Unsecured bonds and notes HmIKHESE R EE 26 49,755 176,894
Total non-current liabilities R aERE 572,951 2,709,143
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (BEEH) EEFE (7,265,548) 120,913
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXREE
Share capital R 28 71,492 71,492
Reserves s 30 (7,337,040) 49,421
(Deficiency in assets)/total equity (BEEBH) ez (7,265,548) 120,913

Approved and authorised for issued by the board of directorson  RZZE-——F = A=+ —AKEET 2 ERFEE

31 March 2022: Tz -
Xu Zhongxiang Chen Feng
Director Director
BF 5F
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At1 January 2019
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive loss

for the year:

Changes in fair value of equity
investments designated at
fair value through other
comprehensive income, net

Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
operations

EfZE

Total comprehensive loss ERIEEREE
for the year

Equity-settled share option EREERRRRH
amangements

Transfer of reserve upon the lapse  BikIERREERHiE
of share options

Deemed capital contribution from &~ &R EHE
ashareholder

Reclassification upon amendment BT ZE R A2 N E
of payment auses of notesand ~~ EFH 8
borrowings

At31 December 2019 R-E-NE+-A=+-B

)
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

/\

RERBEHR

Year ended 31 December 2020

BE_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—RHIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RATRHEAEL
Convertble Share Share Investment
Share notes premium option Exchange Other Perpetual reseve Accumulated Total
Notes capital reserve account reserve reserve reserve loans  (non-recycling) losses equity
RREE filn B » ) RERE )
fist A Ei HEE G ELGR Eo KERT (F7EE) ZiHER figg
HK$000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 K$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000
Fin FEL TER Fin Fin i FA Fin Fin FER
(Note 25) (Note 30) (Note 30)
() (H£30) (H30)

7149

1480332

226579

73218

38374

45,000

(2,986,377) 890,253
(3,904.270) (3,904,270)

- - - - - - - (9.9%) - (79%)
- - - - (28464) - - - - (28464
- - - - (28464) - - (9,9%) (3904270) (3,942732)
- - - 6,805 - - - - - 6805
- - - (2,264 - - - - 2264 -
- - - - - 54217 - - - 54217
30 - - - - - - 3112310 - - 3112310
1492 1480332 2,205,196 7759 9,910 ®217 312310 (107,580) (6,888,383) 120913
Attributable to owners of the Company
ADARAARE
Convertible Share Share Investment
Share notes premium option Exchange Other Perpetual reserve  Accumulated Total
capital reserve account reserve reserve reserve loans  (non-recycling) losses equity
RV Y] #BA 528k o
& @ Rk i ESifE ] & LE (FU8E) ZithE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn Tin T TiEn TR Tin FiEn TiEn TR Tin

(Note 25) (Note 30) (Note 30)

(W&25) (RzE30) (H&30)

At 1 January 2020 R-E_24-A-H
Loss for the year FREE
Other comprehensive loss EREMRERS
for the year:
Changes in fairvalue of equity ~ BEARAS BE AL
investments designated at PEYAZIRRS

fair value through other MEEEHIE
comprehensive income, net o
Reclassification edjustment from — (HEMBATHES B
translation reserve upon ENSRER
Elh

disposal of subsidlaries
Share of other comprehensive BEMEZAL
income of joint venture 2EhE
Exchange differences on BEENERELL
translation of foreign ERZR
operations

Total comprehensive income/(loss) - FAZ2ENE/ (Kl
for the year

)&%

Transfer of reserve upon disposal i ERAA BE ALH
of the investment in an equity 2ERAEZRATIAY
instrument measured at fair value AR EHBEE
through other comprehensive
income

Equity-settled share option EagERRERE
arangement

Transfer of reserve upon the lapse ~ BIRIEXMEER B

of share options

At 31 December 2020 RZERFT-A=T-R

A2 1480332 22657% 71759 9910 927 312310 (107,580 (6,888,383) 120913
- - - - - - - - (1390265 (7,390,265)
R - - - - - - (1,88) - (1,884)
- - - - 0 - - - - 0
- - - - 54 - - - - 54
- - - - 4m - - - - 47
- - - - 4,756 - - (1884)  (7390265) (7,387,393
- - - - - - - 998 (998) -
- - - 932 - - - - - 932
- - - (7,046) - - - - 7,046 -
7492 1480332 22657% 71,645 14,666 91 312310 (108466) (14,272,600 (7,265,548)
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Consolidated Statement of

Cash Flows
MERERER
Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_Z-_ZF+-_A-+—BLFE
2020 2019
—BCBF —E-NEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BiEE THERT FiET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RELEXBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BRIy AR 1B (7,390,265) (3,527,325)
Adjustments for: HEIER
Finance costs s EA 7 404,055 362,974
Share of loss of a joint venture ElE—EeEbEBE 15 927 4,852
Bank interest income RITRSBA 6 - 2
Dividend income from equity investments KREEERZANBETA
designated at fair value through other Hz2mk A 2RI E
comprehensive income ZBREHA 6 (333) (544)
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, HE/MEME - BERE
plant and equipment, net pd Vet 6 9 807
Gain on termination of leases BIFHE 2 W 6 - (232)
Fair value loss on derivative financial TEEBMIAEZAREE
instruments, net EEEE 6 - 23
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% « = KR EITE 6 171,789 208,865
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEINE 6 27,008 33,069
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBER R 2 W 23 (47,756) -
Impairment of investment in a joint venture R—RaEhEIREZNE 15 92,424 -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment  #1% » BE & ERE 13 4,467,380 -
Allowance for expected credit losses on FEUS & 5 BR 0 % A FE U
trade and other receivables PR EHEEERERE 16 1,130,842 2,322,910
Share-based payments VAR 19 Rl 2 PR 6 932 6,805
Foreign exchange gains P& 5 e (6,845) (13,752)
(1,149,833) (601,550)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEM, B (759) 13,243
Increase in trade receivables W 5 BR FR3E hn (10,055) (345,802)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and FBFIE - Ze REAMEK
other receivables TIER D 103,973 56,151
Decrease in trade payables BN E SRR (4,193) (13,640)
Increase in other payables and accruals E B {5 008 K FE ST IR L AN 891,284 278,773
Cash used in operations LEAZES (169,583) (612,825)
Overseas taxes paid BREINRIE - -
Net cash flows used in operating activities REXBRBZRESRNEFE (169,583) (612,825)
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v é IE: ﬁ ;Jiﬁw ==} %
Year ended 31 December 2020
HE_ZT-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—BCBF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FiET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREXEZ2RERE
ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received BHERITHE - 2
Dividends received from equity investments REEERZANEBTA
designated at fair value through other Hi2ERAZRERE
comprehensive income 2 BIAR R 333 544
Purchases of items of property, BEWE BEX
plant and equipment #iEEE (31,773) (478,513)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal of HEMBRRIEEZ
subsidiaries BembFaE (4) -
Proceed from disposal of equity investments HEEEREAABEA
in listed shares designated at fair value Hih2HEWA 2 Ll
through other comprehensive income RARE 2 PG 5IR 1,468 -
Decrease in restricted bank deposit SRR EIRITFERR D - 11,066
Net cash flows used in investing activities REEBMBZREREFH (29,976) (466,901)
Annual Report 2020 FE#E 7 5
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MEBRERER
Year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_TF+_A=+T—HILFE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2020 2019
b i 32 —T-NEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BT THERT FiET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REMEXKZ2RERE
ACTIVITIES
Repayment of unsecured bonds BEREERES (7,283) -
Proceeds from other borrowings REEMERZFERIE 296,353 2,758,404
Repayment of other borrowings EEEMER (46,163) (1,357,928)
Proceeds from loans from related parties RERBEE A 2 ERZFEF0A - 246,837
Repayment of loans from related parties BEXRBEH T ZER - (302,160)
Proceeds from loans from a joint venture RE—HEETEZER
Z R38R - 10,046
Repayment of loans from a joint venture BERE—FAEEEECER (1,569) -
Redemption of convertible bonds BRIk ES 25 - (50,000)
Principal portion of lease payments MERNFRZAEEH (24,160) (27,725)
Interest paid BERFIE (108,064) (155,22¢6)
Net cash flows from financing activities RERMEEB RS REFE 109,114 1,122,248
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH REREEEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (B2),/ 8B inFE (90,445) 42,522
Cash and cash equivalents FzRERRLEED
at beginning of year 100,497 58,153
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net fE R H) s B TR (39) (178)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZAERASEEN
AT END OF YEAR 10,013 100,497
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBEZENGHRIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RRTTHES 10,013 100,497

7 6 Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited & KX ¥ BB ZERER A A




CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda as an investment
holding company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.
The principal place of business is located at Units 05-06, 16th
Floor, Global Trade Square, No. 21 Wong Chuk Hang Road,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
gaming and resort business, including the development of an
integrated resort on the Island of Saipan, Commonwealth of
the Northern Mariana Islands (“CNMI").

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), Inventive Star Limited (“Inventive Star”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, is the
ultimate holding company of the Company and Ms. Cui Li Jie
("Ms. Cui") is the ultimate controlling party.

1.

e BHRRME

31 December 2020
—ETF+-RA=+—H

RAREBEHR
BEAFEEZERAR AR ([A28)]) J51R
BERE-NN\—FAERBEREEIMA
RIREERBRAGE - AT Emitit R
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda » A E& ¥ REEE
P38 21 SR IRIE 5 1612 05-06 = » ARAFIR
IR EBBA XS AERAE (B3R E1R
ke

FRN - AR LEMBAR (8 [ A5£6H])
IBRE[/ELERNES - ERERILS
BTHHEEA(LEEDM) EBINSEGS
RARA

KAREZES(EE]) RA - Inventive Star
Limited ([ Inventive Star| + —fEIR R B L
HEEMKL AR BERESRKZERA
Al MEBAXT([BZL ) BREEGIA -
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e BHRRHME

31 December 2020
—ECTF+-A=+—H

78

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries

REAREBESR (@)

FRNBLATRZER
ARBEEBHBATZFHBWT

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company
APRELREEZBDL
Place of
incorporation/

registration Issued ordinary/

Name and business registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
SR, BRITER/
£ BERERBH HMER B B FEXH
% %
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Best Fortune Corporation Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Provision of management
("Best Fortune”) and consultancy services
EHEZERAR ((RREX]) FE 187 100 - RUERREARE
Imperial Pacific International CNMI Us$100 - 100 Development and operation
(CNMI), LLC ("1PI™) of a hotel and casino resort
Imperial Pacific International TEETH 100%7T - 100 BREEEBER
(CNMI), LLC( T1PI]) REZE
Imperial Pacific Properties, LLC CNMI Us$100 - 100 Holding of leasehold land
in Saipan
Imperial Pacific Properties, LLC TEETH 1003 7T - 100 RERSHEHELH
East Gain Global (CNMI) Limited ~ CNMI US$100 - 100 Holding of leasehold land
in Saipan
East Gain Global (CNMI) Limited ~ tHE T4 E - 100 RERSHEEELH
Oceanic Choice Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Holding of aircraft
Oceanic Choice Limited EERAHE 1%7T 100 - FERIK
Pride Keen Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Holding of yachts
HEERRA RERUES 1%7T 100 - HRER
Rich Surplus Ventures (CNMI), LLC  CNMI US$100 - 100 Holding of leasehold land
in Saipan
Rich Surplus Ventures (CNMI), LLC 3t 55 B a5 4 1003%7T - 100 RERSHEHELH
Colour Palace CNMI LLC CNMI US$100 - 100 Holding of leasehold land
in Saipan
Colour Palace CNMILLC Bl 1005%7T - 100 RERSHERE LM

Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited & KX ¥ BB ZERER A A



\/é
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements <

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

BANBREME \

—ZE-RF+-A=+—H

1. RAIREEBER (&)

FENBARZER (#)

Place of

incorporation/

registration Issued ordinary/
Name and business registered capital

S BRTER/
1 BRREELH A ER

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

ARREEREZADL
Direct Indirect Principal activities
B B FTEEK
% %

Imperial Pacific Macau Limited Macau MOP25,000
BEATHRMERAF BFI 25,000;2F9 7T
Imperial Consultancy Macau MOP25,000
Macau Limited
BERRRM-ABRAA BFI 25,000;2F9 7T
Green Estate Holdings (CNMI), LLC  CNMI US$100
Green Estate Holdings (CNMI), LLC 1t 5 E 4 100%7T
Leading Chief (CNMI), LLC CNMI US$100
Leading Chief (CNMI), LLC IEHETH 10057
Proper Grand (CNMI) LLC CNMI US$100
Proper Grand (CNMI) LLC LEEDM 100%7T
Unity Sense (CNMI) LLC CNMI US$100
Unity Sense (CNMI) LLC IEHETM 100%7T
Metro Time (CNMI), LLC CNMI Us$100
Metro Time (CNMI), LLC EEEEH 1005%7T

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion

of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

- 100 Marketing and promotion of
a hotel and casino resort

- 100 mskERSEEER
IREIFE AT

- 100 Marketing and consultancy
services

- 100 iR Rk RS

- 100 Holding of leasehold
land in Saipan

- 100 REMSHEHELH

- 100 Holding of leasehold
land in Saipan

- 100 REMSHEHELH

- 100 Holding of leasehold
land in Saipan

- 100 REMSHEHELH

- 100 Holding of leasehold
land in Saipan

- 100 REMSHEHELH

- 100 Holding of leasehold
land in Saipan

- 100 REMSHEHELH

BEERR - LRAESIZAREMERRSY
RERFREFEEAIBUAEEEERE
ZEEHD c EFRR FHREMBHEAR
HEHAAEFHBRITE

Annual Report 2020 FE#E 7 9
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e BHRRHME

31 December 2020
—ECTF+-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Going Concern

Despite that the Group reported net losses of
HK$7,390,265,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020, net
current liabilities of HK$9,436,403,000 and net liabilities of
HK$7,265,548,000 and capital commitments of
HK$512,166,000 as at 31 December 2020 and was facing the
adverse impact from the coronavirus disease 2019
("COVID-19") pandemic which had caused the temporary
closure of its casino operation in Saipan since 17 March 2020,
the Directors are of the view that the Group will be able to
raise adequate funds to enable it to operate as a going
concern, based on the Group's business forecast and cash
flow projection which, inter alia, take into account the past
actual operating performance of the Group and the following:

80

(a)

On 23 April 2021, Imperial Pacific International (CNMI),
LLC (the "Licensee”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, received an order from the
Commonwealth Casino Commission (“CCC") dated 22
April 2021 that, among other matters, the casino resort
developer license as granted under the Casino License
Agreement (as amended) between the Licensee and the
CNMI was suspended, the Licensee shall pay the Annual
License Fee of approximately US$15,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$120,373,000) and the Casino
Regulatory Fee of US$3,100,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$24,075,000) immediately, maintain a
required amount of expected obligations in cash or
cash equivalents in a restricted account in the bank in
the CNMI or United States of America of amount
US$8,400,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$65,130,000) and that the Licensee should pay
penalties of US$6,600,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$51,256,000). The Board considered that pursuant to
the force majeure clause under the Casino License
Agreement, the Licensee is not required to pay the
Annual License Fee in the event of natural disasters.

However, the CCC raised disputes and alleged that the
COVID-19 pandemic does not constitute a natural
disaster or force majeure. As a result, the Licensee has
filed a review with Superior Court in Saipan to
determine whether the pandemic constitutes a natural
disaster or force majeure. If it is determined that the
pandemic constitutes a natural disaster or force
majeure, the Licensee will not be required to pay the
Annual License Fee and reactivate the casino gaming
licence and resume the casino gaming operation
business. As of the date of this report, such review is still
ongoing.

21 25|EE
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2.1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

Going Concern (Continued)

(b)

The Company has been contacting certain major
lenders and bond and note holders to renew certain
other borrowings and unsecured bonds and notes with
aggregate principal amounts to approximately
HK$3,765,237,000 outstanding as at 31 December 2020,
which were originally due for repayment in 2021, for
extension of the repayment tenure to 2022 and/or
beyond.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company has unutilised
credit facility of US$350,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,726,150,000) from an independent third party.
The total facility amount is US$500,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$3,894,500,000), of which an amount of
US$150,000,000 (equivalent to HK$1,168,350,000) was
drawn down during the year ended 31 December 2019
and still outstanding. The Company will draw down the

unutilised credit facility when necessary.

Inventive Star and other related parties have undertaken
to provide additional funding to settle the Group's
operations, liabilities, potential liabilities related to
litigation, the casino annual license fee and the
community benefit fund and capital investments as and

when necessary.

The management will consider other financing
arrangements with a view to increasing the Group'’s

capitalisation/equity.

The management will continue to refinance and/or
rollover the Group's existing loans with a view to

improving the Group's liquidity.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

Going Concern (Continued)

The Directors believe that, taking into account the above
factors, the Group will have sufficient working capital to satisfy
its present requirements for at least the next 12 months from
the end of the reporting period. However, should the above
financing be unavailable, the Group may be unable to
continue as a going concern, in which case adjustments might
have to be made to the carrying values of the Group's assets
to write down to their realisable values, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify its
noncurrent assets and non-current liabilities to current assets
and current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

Compliance with Casino License Agreement

The Group was subject to a Bank Secrecy Act ("BSA”")
compliance examination during 2017 by the Financial Crimes
Enforcement Network (“FinCEN"). On 4 March 2020, the
Group received a letter from the FInCEN, which requested
the Group to provide certain information and documents
relevant to compliance with the BSA requirements from
October 2016 through the present. FInCEN has indicated in
the letter that there were apparent violations of the BSA and
its implementing regulations and it is considering whether to
impose civil money penalty or take additional enforcement
action against the Group. As of the date of approve for
issuance of this consolidated financial statements, the Group
is still in the process of preparing for the required information
and documents. The Directors believe it is not practicable for
the Company to accurately predict the resolution of this
matter, including timing and amount of any possible impact
to the Group. Notwithstanding the aforesaid, the Directors
have made a provision for the estimated civil money penalty
in respect of the identified and potential violations.

However, should the above matter be construed as a material
breach of the provisions of the Group’s Casino License
Agreement ("CLA") or the CCC's regulations, the Group
might then not be able to continue operation of its gaming
and resort business and hence might not be a going concern,
in which case adjustments might have to be made to the
carrying values of the Group's assets to state them at their
realisable values, to provide for any further liabilities which
might arise and to reclassify its non-current assets and non-
current liabilities to current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

2.1 2HEE @)

BEKE (B

EERERLARRERA  ~AEEKER
HwEEESRNEAREMREFRKED
1218 A2 HEFFER - Al - EEERE E
ARE - AEBEF R EARISER e A Y
BEE NEEBERT  HBAHAEEEEZ
FREEELAR  SEREAERREE 2
REE URAkE—PELZRENERE
BREEIERDEENERBAED B EH
DHEERDEENRDEE - RFHBLFY
BWENR A M REARR -

8P IR G5 0 R M
AEER_T—LFRISRFTHIEBE
((EBMBTHERE ) ETZRITREZE
([B|ITREZDARRE - N_T_TF=
AMA - AEEEESRIFITHEEME
HEkf - BRAKEREE T —RETA
ESRBTRITRTEAREEBZETER
Rt - & FETHEBBERFEPIEL
FHEAEERBITREAREBIRIRDZE
o WIEEEEEGHAREBINRFIHK
KEREEAMPETTE) - BEDRS M B RE
HAETEBRS  AKBNERBRRERR
Xt BEME ARAEBBEAMERZ
AT R(BEFERENE A EEEE
Rz B2EE)L AT BEWNL - &
SERMATHER REEERBR ZEFTRES
HETER R -

Al W ELEERRERBRERRASE
ZIREES IR R ek ([ IR RS R R IR |) 15X
ARG REGZRE  AIAKEREE
ERBEREHEBY RERMNER - EUtAsE
BRIRRGEEELE  BERHBERT A
RAHAEEEE ZREEEITHE - AR
HAZREEYIE LAt EE 2 EEM
BEFHREE  USEIFRDEENRIFRD
BENRNEFSBER/RBEELRBAR -
I ERE 2 RN AL A SRR R -

Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited % K ¥ EIBIZRGR A A



2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
and derivative financial instruments, which have been
measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the
same as functional currency of the Company, and the
functional currency of the most of the subsidiaries are United
States Dollar (“US$"). The Board of Directors considered that
it is more appropriate to present the consolidated financial
statements in HK$ as the shares of the Company are listed on
the Stock Exchange. The consolidated financial statements
are rounded to the nearest thousands (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.2 mREEE )

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity

transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or accumulated losses,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.3 APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs

THAT ARE MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR
THE CURRENT YEAR
In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily effective
for the annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material
HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Definition of a Business
Interest Rate

Benchmark Reform

The application of the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group's financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or the disclosures set out

in this consolidated financial statements.
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2.4 NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN
ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments’

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions *

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent

Concessions beyond
30 June 2021 ¢

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 Reform — Phase 2°
and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5

(2020)'
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Accounting Policies'
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates'
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax related to assets

and liabilities arising from a
single transaction’
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2018-2020?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

The directors anticipate that the application of all the new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities

require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Appropriate adjustments have been made to
conform the joint venture's accounting policies to those of
the Group. Under the equity method, an investment in a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group's share of losses of a joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group's net investment in the joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments

on behalf of the joint venture.
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88

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investment in a joint venture (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in

profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investment in a joint venture (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the joint venture and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of the relevant interest in the joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of

the relevant joint venture.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed

as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded

derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is

accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss

as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group

are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is

not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit

retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the

asset in its highest and best use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable

inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeng

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the

impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating

units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable
amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable

amount.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets other than goodwill (Continued)
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a
cash-generating unit, the Group compares the carrying
amount of a group of cash-generating units, including the
carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-generating
units, with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group
of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group;
or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

() the entity and the Group are members of the

same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow

subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)y  the entity and the Group are a joint venture of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or

an entity related to the Group;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is

a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working

condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful

lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeng

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used

for this purpose are as follows:

Owned assets

Buildings 2.5%-4%
Yachts 10%
Motor vehicles 20%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of

the lease terms and 20%

Gaming machines and equipment 20%
Furniture and equipment 20%
Computer hardware and software 33%
Aircraft 10%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on
a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales

proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the year of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed

and ready for use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition
of ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless
such allocation cannot be made reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office premises that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another

systematic basis over the lease term.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in

dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and

adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter

of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant
and equipment”, the same line item within which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they

were owned.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value
at initial recognition are considered as additional lease

payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily

determinable.
The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)

less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under

residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted

by interest accretion and lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)
The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised

discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial

discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on

the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate

lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;

and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of

the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the

effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the

aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or

loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial assets at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance

with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest ("SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through

profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value

through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchase or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on

their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss

when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeng

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (equity instruments)

Investments in equity instruments at fair value of equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are subsequently measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the investment reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity

investments, and will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income, gain and losses,

net” in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the consolidated statement

of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of

the asset.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 TESHBERBE#)
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POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum

amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at fair
value of equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to accumulated

losses.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements

that are integral to the contractual terms.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,

including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to
be in default when internal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of

recovering the contractual cash flows.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment

under the general approach and they are classified within the

following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade

receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed

below.

Stage1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at

an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeng

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at loans and borrowings or payables, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of

directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, loan from a joint venture, lease liabilities, other

borrowings and unsecured bonds and notes.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends

on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities including trade
payable, other payables and accruals, other borrowings, lease
liabilities, unsecured bonds and notes and loan from a joint
venture are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through

the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit

or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible bonds and notes

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the
statement of financial position, net of transaction costs. On
issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using a market rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried
as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of
the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is
recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of
transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion
option is not remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation
of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the

instruments are first recognised.

If the conversion option of convertible bonds exhibits
characteristics of an embedded derivative, it is separated
from its liability component. On initial recognition, the
derivative component of the convertible bonds is measured
at fair value and presented as part of derivative financial
instruments. Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the derivative component is recognised as the
liability component. Transaction costs are apportioned
between the liability and derivative components of the
convertible bonds based on the allocation of proceeds to the
liability and derivative components when the instruments are
initially recognised. The portion of the transaction costs
relating to the liability component is recognised initially as
part of the liability. The portion relating to the derivative
component is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements</<

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under

the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in profit or loss.

Mandatorily convertible notes

Mandatorily convertible note issued by the Company is an
instrument that, at a certain time in the future, is convertible
into shares of the Company. A mandatorily convertible note is
recognised as equity in its entirety if the fixed stated principal
will be settled through delivery of a fixed number of the
Company'’s own shares; the principal of the convertible note
is in the same currency as the functional currency of the
Company; and the interest on the note is payable only at the
discretion of the Company. On initial recognition, the note is
measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and included
in shareholders’ equity. The carrying amount of the note is

not remeasured in subsequent years.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a

net basis, or to realise and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any

estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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2.5

11

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash

management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in

nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of

time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss) before tax
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 TESHBERBE#)

114

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and

liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the

right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of

remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation

authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is

included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or

services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is

subsequently resolved.

When the contract, contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group a significant financial benefit for more
than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical expedient
in HKFRS 15.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a)

116

Casino revenues

Gross casino revenues are measured by the aggregate
net difference between gaming wins and losses. The
Group accounts for its casino wagering transactions on
a portfolio basis versus an individual basis as all wagers
have similar characteristics. Commissions rebated to
customers either directly or indirectly through gaming
promoters and cash discounts and other cash incentives
earned by customers are recorded as a reduction of
gross casino revenues. In addition to the wager, casino
transactions typically include performance obligations
related to complimentary goods or services provided in
exchange for complimentary commissions or points

earned under the Group’s loyalty programs.

For casino transactions that include complimentary
goods or services provided by the Group, the Group
allocates the standalone selling price of each good or
service to the appropriate revenue type based on the
good or service provided. Complimentary goods or
services that are provided under the Group's control
and discretion and supplied by third parties are
recorded as an operating expense.

>Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Casino revenues (Continued)

The Group operates different non-discretionary
incentives programs which include the loyalty programs
("Loyalty Programs”) to encourage repeat business
mainly from loyal slot machine customers and table
games patrons. Customers earn complimentary
commissions or points primarily based on gaming
activity and such points can be redeemed for free play
and other free goods and services. For casino
transactions that include complimentary commissions or
points earned under the Loyalty Programs, the Group
defers a portion of the revenue by recording the
estimated standalone selling price of the complimentary
commissions or earned points that are expected to be
redeemed as a liability. Upon redemption of the
complimentary commissions or points for Group-owned
goods or services, the standalone selling price of each
good or service is allocated to the appropriate revenue
type based on the good or service provided. Upon the
redemption of the complimentary commissions or
points with third parties, the redemption amount is
deducted from the liability and paid directly to the third

party.

After allocating amounts to the complimentary goods
or services provided and to the points earned under the
Loyalty Programs, the residual amount is recorded as

casino revenue.

Food and beverage income
Food and beverage income is recognised when the
food and beverage have been provided to the

customers.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 TESHBERBE#)
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POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest rate method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial

asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be

measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e. transfers control of the

related goods or services to the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for

equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in Note 30 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeng

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that

period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also

service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service

conditions are satisfied.
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2.5

12

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the

date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as

described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per

share.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’'s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in

connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated

financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.
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12

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in

profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of
a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance

consideration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong

dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular

foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange

rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the

future.

2.5

e BHRRME

31 December 2020
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are described below.

Allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables
The Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a loss rate approach to measure expected credit
losses. The credit risk categorisation is determined based on
a number of factors which include (i) debtors’ ageing; (i)
historical repayment behaviour of debtors; (iii) availability of
collateral in front money or guarantee deposits; (iv) wealth
proof; (v) other debtors’ specific information available to the
Group which is relevant for credit risk assessment; and (vi)
current industry conditions and future economic outlook. The
credit risk categorisation is adjusted to reflect subsequent
information uncovered to an extent that such information
provides evidence of conditions existed as at the year end
date and forward-looking information. The expected loss
rates are estimated based on the expected cash flows that
can be recovered from the collateral and other estimated

repayments based on historical recovery ratios.

The assessment of the correlation among historical recovery
ratio, estimated repayment and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances
and conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience
and estimates may also not be representative of a customer’s
actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs
on the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in Notes 19 and

38 to the consolidated financial statements.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including right-of-use
assets) at the end of each reporting period. Non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset and
income approach that includes assumptions regarding the
prospective cash flow to operate business. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group recognised the impairment
loss on the property, plant and equipment of amount
HK$4,467,380,000. Further details are set out in Note 13 to

the consolidated financial statements.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment — owned
assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and residual
values for the Group's property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will
revise the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual
values are different from previous estimates, or it will write off
or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. The carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2020 was
HK$2,474,605,000 (2019: HK$7,086,635,000). Further details
are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial

statements.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Income tax provision

The Group is subject to corporate income tax in the CNMI. As
certain matters relating to income taxes are subject to the
agreement by the local tax bureau, objective estimation and
judgement based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations
and other related policies are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts originally
recorded, the differences will impact on the income tax

provisions in the period in which the differences are realised.

Provision for regulatory matters

As disclosed in Note 34(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group is subject to the jurisdiction of various
local and the Federal Government Authorities (the
"Regulatory Authorities”) in the conduct of its casino
operations. During the year and as of the date of issuance of
these financial statements, the Group is subject to an
investigation by FinCEN for compliance with the BSA. The
Group has made a provision for the estimated civil money
penalty which may be payable on the violations of the BSA,
based on assumptions and estimates including the estimated
number of violations and penalty amount per violation. The
Group will revise the provision as more information is
available from future communications with FinCEN, and any
differences will impact on the provision for regulatory matters

in the period in which the differences are realised.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeng

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the gaming and resort
business, including the development of an integrated resort
on the Island of Saipan. No separate operating segment
information is presented as the Group has only one operating

segment.

Geographical information

Geographical information is not presented since all of the
Group's revenue was derived from the Island of Saipan, where
the Group provides the services to its customers. Over 90%
(2019: over 90%) of the Group's non-current assets are located
in the Island of Saipan. Accordingly, the presentation of
geographical information would provide no additional useful
information to the users of these consolidated financial

statements.

Information about major customers

Revenue from gaming operations of approximately
HK$3,667,000 (2019: HK$71,487,000) was derived from a single
external customer during the year.

4.
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e BHRRHME

31 December 2020
—ECTF+-A=+—H

5. REVENUE 5. Wz
The Group's revenue is as follows: REEZWEINT
2020 2019
—EIEF —E-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FETT
|
VIP gaming operations BEEEUER (24,713) 253,787
Mass gaming operations RIS ER 32,818 186,381
Slot machines and Electronic Table Game MAFH R EF S EIEF %55
gaming operations 12,754 63,237
Food and beverage Z 5,648 35,861
26,507 539,266
Contract and contract related liabilities EHREHNIEREE

There is often a timing difference between the cash payment
by the customers and recognition of revenue for each of the
associated performance obligations. The Group has the
following main types of liabilities associated with contracts
with customers: (1) outstanding chip liabilities, (2) loyalty
program liabilities, and (3) patron deposits and other gaming
liabilities for gaming and non-gaming products and services

yet to be provided.

The outstanding chip liabilities represent the collective
amounts owed to junket operators and patrons in exchange
for gaming chips in their possession. Outstanding chips are
expected to be recognised as revenue or redeemed for cash
within one year of being purchased which assume that the
casino operation can be resumed. The loyalty program
liabilities represent a deferral of revenue until patron’s
redemption of complimentary commissions or points earned.
The loyalty program liabilities are expected to be redeemed
and recognised as revenue within one year of being earned.
Patron deposits and other gaming liabilities represent cash
deposits made by customers for future services provided by
the Group. The majority of these patron deposits and other
gaming liabilities are expected to be recognised as revenue
or refunded to the customer within one year of the date the
deposit was recorded which assume that the casino operation

can be resumed.

128
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REVENUE (Continued)

The following table summarizes the activities related to

contract and contract-related liabilities:

e BHRRME

31 December 2020
—ETF+-RA=+—H

5. W@ #)

TERBMEEORENEREERRE
&) :

Outstanding Loyalty program Patron deposits and
chip liabilities liabilities other gaming liabilities
AMEEBBEE REEHEAE EFRERAMBYAR
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEIRE  “T-NF ZBIBf “T-NF BB _"T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TR FAT TR FHET
Balance at 1 January R—A—BZ & 4,857 4,847 232,451 233819 2,385,052 2,846,612
Balance at 31 December B+ -A=+—H
A 4,158 4,857 232,612 232451 2,414,064 2,385,052
Increase/(decrease) 8/ (Fid) (699) 10 161 (1,368) 29,012 (461,560)

The changes of outstanding chips liabilities, loyalty program
liabilities and patron deposits and other gaming liabilities
mainly represent realization to revenue by gaming play,
redemption for cash and utilization of the funds previous
deposited by customers for gaming play which were recorded
as revenue during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

AMEEEHEE FPAHFBABEBALE
FreAMBYAB 2T EABE
FEEERWE  BORe RBAELZH
FAZBREBRZES RBEE-_FT_FF
RZZB-NF+ZA=+—BILFEARR
Yz e
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31 December 2020
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6. LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. KRBAEE
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBBRBAEBEDHR,GEA) LA TE
(crediting): 15 :
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
|
Cost of inventories sold BHETFERA 1,760 8,342
Business gross revenue tax (“BGRT") BRI ([ EEAWER]) 1,181 26,075
Depreciation of property, plant M - B REETE
and equipment 171,789 208,865
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 27,008 33,069
Casino licence fees* IREE IS R IR B 116,250 119,192
Auditors’ remuneration &R 5 A 3,480 12,800
Rental expenses of short-term leases FEEHE v HeMX 16,034 15,594
Share-based payments LARRAD A BT 2 PR 932 6,805
Employee benefit expenses EERBAMFAX
(including directors’ remuneration): (BEEEHM)
Wages and salaries*** SREM Ko 3 & o 187,818 724,165
Pension scheme contributions RRESEEIHR 1,365 2,296
189,183 726,461
Foreign exchange differences, net M N A RRERE (6,845) (13,752)
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, HE M E - BERREEE
plant and equipment, net** SRR > 9 807
Gain on termination of leases** RIS 2 Y v - (232)
Bad debts recovery** AR E] +* - (18,281)
Fair value loss on derivative financial PESRMIAZARBE
instruments, net E R - 23

Dividend income from equity investments R BZ A EBET AEMEEUYA
BT E 2 BB+

at fair value through other

comprehensive income** (333) (544)
Bank interest income** RITF] B ULA ** - %)
Compensation received from BRBRRERGEE

insurance claims** - (9,901)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 23)** & [ B A &) 2 W ek (H5E 23) ** (47,756) -
Penalties for failure of payment of AENFERRBRE  H2REAK

annual license fee, community EEEMEE RS

benefit and regulator fee 51,256 -

1 3 O Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited & KX ¥ BB ZERER A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements</<

LOSS BEFORE TAX (Continued) 6. BEAIEE®)

* Included in “Cost of sales” and “Operating and administrative * o Rl #743,629,000% w( = & — L F
expense” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or 119,192,000/ 7T ) 72,621,000 o( = &
loss and other comprehensive income of approximately —NEF TR )T AGEBEREME2EI
HK$43,629,000 (2019: HK$119,192,000) and HK$72,621,000 (2019: mRZ [HERA] R [&EMTHREASIA -

HK$NIl) respectively.

*x Included in “Other income, gains and losses, net” on the face of *k FAGZEEREEMEEMWERZ [FHMI
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other A WS RERE] A -

comprehensive income.

***  No staff costs have been capitalized under property, plant and ko HE-T-TE4 - F[=+—HI|FFE AR
equipment for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: ZCOVID-19ZIBFE  TREE  FEitivE
HK$282,576,000) as the construction has been suspended due to EA] B THRA(—Z—NF : 282,576,000/ 7T)
the COVID-19 pandemic. Y BEREBEBETETER -

FINANCE COSTS 7. BBEA

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BRSO

2020 2019

—EZEF —E-NEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET
|

Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZNE 5,456 9,265

Interest on other borrowings and loans HE b fEsk M2k 8 Bl 5 2 BB

from related parties 375,490 472,383

Interest on convertible bonds and notes AIBRRES R EE 2 F B - 2,091

Interest on unsecured bonds and notes EIRHEENEE B 54,882 107,856

435,828 591,595

Less: Interest capitalised B BRI E (31,773) (228,621)

404,055 362,974

Annual Report 2020 FE#E 1 3 1
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EEHMH

REBRZAES EMANT LEHRUD - F
B A T 6515 383(1)@) ~ (b) ~ (0 & () AR
RE|(WEEENEER) ROIF 28 EN
AEFERHFMMT -

e

Fees

HiME
e R NEDH S
DA AR 7R BB 2 R
RIS BIHR

Other emoluments:
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Share-based payments

Pension scheme contributions

Total directors’ remuneration EEH MR

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2017, certain
directors were granted share options, in respect of their
services to the Group, under the share option scheme of the
Company, further details of which are set out in Note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and
the amount included in the consolidated financial statements
for the current year is included in the above directors’

remuneration disclosures.

2

2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
1,492 3,724

778 3,703

130 543

50 203

958 4,449

2,450 8,173

HE-_Z—AFNK-_ZT—+F+-_A=+—
BIEFE  ETESHERAEERENR
BIRBEARR R ERET SRR ERE - &
— B BENRE BRI E29 o 5% FE

BRENAANBEELFE BN BETE
R RBETEBE  MEAFELEETH
BEPHEANSBEETLAESZEM B

3= o
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31 December 2020
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEHM®
Independent non-executive directors () BIAFHTES
Salaries,

allowances Share- Pension
and benefits based scheme Total
Fees in kind payments contributions remuneration

¢ DN iF-]

EHR HEffz Eire
ik BYRIE HREX BE LA BEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET TET TET T

2020

Ng Hoi Yue (resigned on
11 March 2022)
Tso Hon Sai Bosco (resigned on
31 October2020)
Lee Kwok Leung
Robert James Woolsey
Ip Mei Shum (appointed on
1 February 2021)
Chi Yuan (appointed on
25 March 2022)

2019

Ng Hoi Yue

Tso Hon Sai Bosco

Lee Kwok Leung
Robert James Woolsey

mETFR=Z==F

=RA+—R#Eft) 180 - 1 - 181
BEE(R-T_TF
TA=+—HEE) 150 - - - 150
FER 180 - - 181
Robert James Woolsey 775 - 2 - 777
EXR(R -2 ——F
“A-REZE) - - - - -
HR(R=_F=—F
ZRAZTRBAEZEA) - - - - -
1,285 - 4 - 1,289
—E-NF
mEF 180 - 2 - 182
EEHE 180 - 2 - 182
ZER 180 - 2 - 182
Robert James Woolsey 784 - 10 - 794
1,324 - 16 - 1,340
Annual Report 2020 FE#{ & 1 3 3
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31 December 2020
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8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEHM&)
(b) Executive directors (b) #HITE=S
Salaries,
allowances Share- Pension
and benefits based scheme Total
Fees in kind payments contributions remuneration
F¢ 2HR UROGHER e
ik ENFE PANES BE L3 B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET TAET FAET

2020

Xia Yuki Yu (resigned on 15 June 2020)

Teng Sio | (resigned on 6 April 2020)

Cui Limei (appointed on 15 June 2020
and resigned on 29 June 2020)

Xu Zhongxing (appointed on
30 December 2020)

Cui Li Jie (resigned on 4 June 2021)

Chen Feng
(appointed on 25 March 2022)

2019

Xia Yuki Yu
Teng Sio |

Cui Li Jie

(¢) Non-executive director

2020 and 2019

Ma Wentao (appointed on
3 September 2019 and resigned

Xia Yuki Yu
(R=Z=TF
NATHEBET)

TOrER=ZZE-_ZTF
MANBEIT)

EBE(N-_Z-ZF
~NATEA
EEER
RZZZZF
NAZTNBES)

BhEREWN-Z-ZTF
+ZA=+H
EZT)

EBARZZ=—%
NAMBET)

PRl
(R=—B-=—%=A
“+HAEZE)

—T-NE

Xia Yuki Yu
T ok

EBA

“ECTERE-NF

BXER-_E-—1F
NAZREZER

207 - 62 5 274
- 778 64 45 887
207 778 126 50 1,161
2,400 - 318 18 2,736
- 3,703 209 185 4,097
2,400 3,703 527 203 6,833

134

on 30 December 2020)

RZTZZF
+-AZ+HEHT)

Fees

fikn
HK$'000
TR

(c) FHTEE

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind

e 2R
BWRIE
HK$'000
FHET

Share-

based
payments
LR B ER
PASE
HK$'000
FET

Pension
scheme
contributions
EBiRE
BE L3
HK$'000
FET

Total
remuneration

B
HK$'000

TET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements</<

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEFM#
(c) Non-executive director (Continued) (c) FEHITEE#E)
There was no arrangement under which a director FR MEEFITETAHREXRAE
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the METAFH ZLZHE(ZZE—LF:
year (2019: Nil). ) o
No bonus was paid or receivable by directors or five highest KEBAEBEH I T -_FTFL-_T—NHF
paid employees after considering the Group's operational + A=+ HIFENELERYERER
and financial performance during the years ended 31 % EELAHFLELERTMEEWEES R
December 2020 and 2019. Sk EAEAT
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. BLERSFMHESR
The five highest paid employees during the year do not TN BRARDHFNOEES T IETA
included any director (2019: one), details of whose (ZE—NF: —REEF EFHFWNFEBER
remuneration are set out in Note 8 above. Details of the EXWES FAR - BINRB(ZE—RF -
remuneration for the year of the remaining five (2019: four) NEZ) &= EHMERRBEEREE NN
highest paid employees who are not a director of the BT

Company are as follows:

2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
|
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBEREWFER 9,499 32,697
Pension scheme contributions BIREEHEIER 45 298
9,544 32,995
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose HME T BN IEE SRS T MEEY
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: AEMT :

Number of employees

BEAZ

2020 2019

—E=TF —T—NF
I

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 8 7T % 2,000,000 % 7T 3 -

HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 77T & 3,000,000 78 7T 2 -

HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 78 7T % 6,000,000 7% 7T - 2

HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,500,001 77T = 8,000,000 78 7T - 1

HK$10,000,001 to HK$15,000,000 10,000,001 /% 7T % 15,000,000 7T - !

5 4
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10. INCOME TAX 10. FriS®t
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the R AN E B R F R EETBEEERER
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Fonf MTEREBFESHIEHEE(Z
Kong during the year (2019: Nil). No provision for the CNMI T—NF &) ARAEELF AN ELE
corporate income tax has been made on casino operations 155 B T N EE AR FEERBUA A - B A ph
for the subsidiaries operating in the CNMI as the Group did RIS B E 2 B AR RS S E
not generate any assessable profits arising in the CNMI Bzt EE RN EMSFRIERBE(Z
during the year (2019: Nil). TNFE) -
|
2020 2019
— —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
I
Current tax — CNMI BNEARITE — b S B an 4Y
Over-provision in prior years R R R - (135,529)
Deferred tax IRAER IR
Credit for the year FRELE - (170,886)
Impairment of deferred tax assets RN IAE ERE - 683,360
Total tax charge for the year FRBIEMA 25 - 376,945

1 3 6 Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited & KX ¥ BB ZERER A A



10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

The income tax charge/(credit) for the year is reconciled to
the loss before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

FR LA B 18

Loss before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate

Income not subject to tax BRMT 2 WA
Expenses not deductible for tax ANETHO 2 B2
Tax losses not recognised RERZBIBEE

Temporary differences recognised

Temporary differences not recognised RER 2GR EER
Impairment of deferred tax assets RIER IR & ERE

Tax charge at the Group's
PHIAF X

effective rate

The Covenant of the CNMI provides for the imposition of the
Internal Revenue Code of the United States as the local
income tax. CNMI legislation provides for income tax rebates
with descending graduated percentages ranging from 90% to
50% on local income tax on CNMI source income. The CNMI
also imposes graduated (1.5% to 5%) BGRT. For casino
gaming revenue, the rebate offset amount shall be 100% of
the income tax imposed on net gaming revenue taxable
income up to US$15 million. For casino net gaming taxable
income in excess of US$15 million, the rebate offset amount

ranges from 90% to 50% of the income tax imposed.

The legislation requires the payment of corporate income tax
on CNMI source income only to the extent the pre-rebate
income tax exceeds BGRT. The Group records its income tax
expenses net of the aforementioned BGRT credit, gaming tax

rebate and income tax rebate.

BEREMEFEZHIA

EHRACEREER

BEASEERMERAEZ

e BHRRME

31 December 2020

—ZE-RF+-A=+—H

10. FRi§% (4

FA - AEHRAX (KR GRaBakE
e E s R ARR AT B IR 2 BRI T

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
(7,390,265) (3,527,325)
(1,503,545) (702,863)
(9,079) (1,162)
82,352 635,226
229,958 10,807

- (248,423)
1,200,314 -
- 683,360

- 376,945

305 B R B Z2 IR AR 5 B S B B A U <R
AfEBEHAMBH - LB EBHRETIRTE
FTS TR A B IR At 5 B I 4 SRR W A Rk
2 & M FT S A R 90% IR E 50% 2 B 5 Eb At
Ho LFEDMMEU(H1.5%IEEE5%)
EEBUGH - BT REME - BHIEE
SREARMITE U R ERTAFEE (LR
#%15,000,000 %€ 7T ) B 2 A4S 8 2 100% ©
FL AR5 15,000,000 5 7T 1Y BE 3518 7 U a5 FE ER
MBWAFEME - EREHESEN TAAEK
Fr5%i 2 90% 2 50% °

ZOAPIRRTE - EBHERMAIFTSHBGEZXE
Yeas i 2 B0 T 75 AR AE 5 B 55 4 AORUA
BN EMER - NEBMREZ SRR
XeMk bl s X aRaERER  BEHRE
BB PTISHURM ©
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>Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
/ Nt L
31 December 2020

—ZT-F+-_A=+—H

11. DIVIDENDS 1. RE

No dividends have been paid or declared by the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$7,390,265,000
(2019: HK$3,904,270,000). The weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 7,149,240,383 (2019: Restated as
7,149,240,383) in issue during the year, as adjusted to reflect
the effect of the share consolidation as disclosed in Note

41(b). Comparative figures have also been adjusted on the

ARRBERNAERBEE T _FF+ =
A=t—HLEFEZBRE(ZT—hF : 8)-

. ARFFEARLGEBRER

BREXREBIREBEARRFFE AELEE
7,390,265,000 70( —Z— L4 © 3,904,270,000
BIL)e FRBEHTLTBRMEFHE
7149240383 ( ZFE — N F: E3 A
7,149,240,383 1% ) 2 VE 8 5 LA S BR BT 51 41(b)
FIRBRGO & HNTE - LRBFTIHERE
B 1D & BHR BT S A M VB I 52 o

assumption that the Share Consolidation had been effective

in the prior year.

No adjustment had been made to the basic loss per share BHRERESERENSEEERBEY
presented for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 in 2 BEEE—T_TFR-_FT-IF+=
A=+—BILFEIAHBEEHMEIN 2T
BREABBRELEMNHAE BT EZ25E
PR 18

respect of a dilution as the impact of the share options had an
anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share and therefore

no diluted loss per share was presented.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 1% - BERRME
Right-of-use assets Owned assets
RRELE REgE
Gaming
machines  Furniture ~ Computer
Leasehold Motor  Leasehold and and  hardware Construction
land  Buildings  Subtotal  Buildings Yachts vehicles improvements  equipment  equipment and software Aircraft inprogress  Subtotal Total

BE#E  BAR  EHEH
BELE 8% bt L3 i d RE  REEE  RER B REK R ERIR bt ait
HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSODD  HKSO0  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSODD  HKSOD0  HKSO0O
Ter  TAT  TAn TEn TEn TEm TEx  TEr  TEr TER TEr TR TEm TEn
e

Cost: 7
At1 January 2019 RZF-NE-A-A 182832 86,060 28892 22333 134859 53,345 50,942 195,763 98,494 7857 - 3994186 6822769 7091661
Additions RE - 3552 3552 - - - 568 19,769 1,161 1563 113025 709,142 889,297 892849
Transfer g3 - - - 743143 - - - - 4928 - - (748,071) - -
Disposals i - (10,970) (10970) - - (2459 - - - - - - (2459 (13425
Exchange differences EizZE (1,198) (181) (1319 (10878) - 232 (30¢) (1137) (557) (337) - (20,039) (33486) (34865)
At 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020
181,634 78,461 260,095 2,955,588 134,859 50,658 51,204 214,395 104,026 17,152 113025 3935218 7,676,125 7,936,220
Additions HE - 2,008 2,008 - - - - - - - - 80,108 80,108 82,116
Transfer @3 - - - 42,421 - - - - 2412 - - (44,839) - -
Witen-off e - - - - - ) - - - - N )
Disposal of subsidiries (Note 23 EHBAF (H5£23) (10,729) - (10,729) - - - - - (445) (126) - - (571) (11,300)
Elimination bt ] - (38,275) (38,275) - - - - - - - - - - (38,275)
Exchange differences EizE (835) (242) (1,077) (31,347) - (537) (541) (2,273) (1,103) (1,242) - (42,008) (79,051) (80,128)
At 31 December 2020 e 23
TZA=+-8 170,070 41,952 212,022 2,966,668 134,859 49,850 45,208 212122 104,890 115,784 113025 3928479 7670885 7,882,907

Accumulated depreciation ZHITERAE
and impairment

At1 January 2019 RZF-NE-A-A - - - 82311 8303 25,6% 30,042 108272 48610 47,20 - - 385,194 385,194
Charge for the year FRik 381 2919 33069 55,464 13486 10410 10350 36907 19892 52441 9,909 - 208,865 2493
Disposals e - “ng) (4118) - - (1,648) - - - - - - (1,648) (5,766)
Exchange differences EiZR [t (26) (34) (699) - (189) (232) (858) (394) (549) - - 2921 (2955
At31 December 2019 and RZZ-hE
1 January 2020 TZAZ1-BR

—T-35-f-H 3,865 25,052 28917 137,136 56,509 34,229 40,160 144,321 68,108 99,118 9.909 - 589,490 618,407
Charge for the year ERfk 3,804 23,204 27,008 61,705 13,486 8,194 9172 36,752 16,613 14,565 11,302 - 171,789 198,797
Written-off HisH - - - - - (262) (5,455) - - - - - (5,717) (5,717)
Impairment HE - 18,754 18,754 1,814,902 - - 1,761 32,600 21,314 3213 - 2574776 4448626 4467380
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 23) ~ HEHBAR (323) @) - (377 - - - - - (#14) (116) - - (530) (907)
Elimination b2} - (38,275) (38,275) - - - - - - - - - - (38,275)
Exchange differences EiER (19) (22) (1) (2,370) - (365) (430) (1,551) (731) (1,056) - (875) (7.378) (7.419)
At31 December 2020 WZZ-%F

+-A=t-8 7213 2813 35986 2,011,373 69,995 41,796 45,208 212122 104,890 115,784 2211 2573901 5196280 5,232,266

Carrying amount: REE:

At31 December 200 R-E-ZF

TZA=1-8 162,797 13,239 176,036 955,295 64,864 8,054 - - - - 91814 1,354578 2,474,605 2,650,641
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-nE

+-A=+-8 177769 53409 81178 2818452 78,350 1649 1,04 70,074 35,918 18034 103116 393218 7,08663% 7317813
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e BHRRHME

31 December 2020
—ECTF+-A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2020, to cope with the
measures imposed by local government to deal with the
ongoing COVID-19 pandemic which started in 2020, the
casino in Imperial Palace ® Saipan has suspended operations
since 17 March 2020 to help curb the spread of the COVID-19.
The construction of the casino resort development in Imperial
Palace e Saipan has also been suspended. The management
of the Group concluded that there was an indicator for
impairment as at 31 December 2020 and conducted
impairment assessment on the recoverable amounts of the
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of the
Group belonging to the Imperial Palace ® Saipan resort.

The recoverable amounts of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets belonging to the Imperial
Palace e Saipan resort have been determined based on their
fair value less cost of disposal as at 31 December 2020 which
have been arrived at based on a valuation carried out by
Knight Frank Petty Limited (“Knight Frank”), independent
valuer not connected with the Group.

The fair value less cost of disposal was determined based on
income approach that includes assumptions regarding the
prospective cash flows to operate the resort hotel. The Villa
Portion was expected to be completed on 31 December 2022
and the Tower Portion Phase 2a and 2b was expected to be
completed on 30 June and 31 December 2023 respectively,
depending on whether the Group has the cash resources to
pay for the construction costs. For the purpose of estimating
the fair values of the property assets of the Imperial Palace
Saipan resort, consideration has been given to the fact that
on 23 April 2021, the IPI received an order from CCC that the
casino resort developer license was suspended. The revenue
from the casino gaming operation is highly uncertain unless
the IPl can resume the casino operation by retrieving the
gaming license. On 7 July 2021, a letter from CCC regarding
IPI ability to operate a hotel/resort stated that the
Commission Order suspended only the portion of the license
which pertained to casino gaming operations and IPI should
finish that resort as required by applicable law and the CLA as
soon as possible and begin operations forthwith. Accordingly
the projected cash flows used in applying the income
approach do not take into consideration any estimated future
cash flows to be derived from the casino gaming operation.
The valuation model involves the projection of a series of
periodic cash flows to the resort hotel by taking into account
the room rate, occupancy rate, growth rate, operating
expenses and other outgoings along with an estimate of the
reversionary or terminal value, anticipated at the end of
projection period, is then discounted at the discount rate with
reference to the hotel industry.

13.

ME - BERRE®

BE-_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE A
A T _ZFRMBERNTER
COVID-19Z 1B EMEENEE HES
He BIINIRAEE T _TF=A++H
FEE (= EE A% B) 8 1E COVID-19 8k IE - 1§
EDSE e EIMIRL B EBNEEERNY
c REEERBERAN_Z_EF+-A
+—BFERENS  THENEER
Be BMEBNZAEEME - BE MEHE
LA R {55 FRAEE A EE ) AT IR Bl 8 SR TRV E R T o

[ Jor

BEBNEEEE « EMEBRNZUE - HEX
REARFERAEEEN KRB 2 EHIRER
—E-TF+ A=+ —HEAABERE
HEKRAEE  AREBEDNBEEAEERD
ERE B ERM AT RIETRITT AR A A
([ ) ETHESRS °

NABEREDERADRIBEWRASEET
BIEHEEERBIEMNTERRSREBR - 7
FHESTEHR T _—F+-_A=1+—H®R
T MiBEI D 2a K2 HATEHAE DRI =
T-_=FXNA=ZF+BEEt+Z-A=+—8%
T SBIFEERGEBINEEKRNEAZE
SERME - RAEFHEEZ T o EMEHEMN
MEEBEZAAEBEAEMNS  REEZENZ
T-_—FNAZ+=H IPIREIBILEEISE
EEMIES  RESEBRNBEREREE
% o MEGBEEBHRAESTEE © B
JEIPIBEMEFESIEEERIRERES ¥
oM E-_—FtA+H BIPHESEE
S IPHE 2SR RRE B R
KPLZE QIS EY (SR HRAISIHTY
EBABENED - IPIERRIRBERERR
IREIZ ISR IG RN B KT EEZE BN
SLEDFIEEE - ALt - AW ASERTATER
REREWEE BB REG B ELF
ESMERARRBESRE - (HEENBEE
BEBINEEE AFXR - EEERK . ZEY
HREAMT Y - AR TE R B RS TEER A
ERENREEENG HERBEMN—XK
TITER S RETRA - RE2RBEEDN
BRI ERITE o
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The following were the key model inputs used in determining
the fair value less cost of disposal:

Villa Portion 31 December 2022
Tower Portion 2a Completion Date 30 June 2023
Tower Portion 2b Completion Date 31 December 2023
Net capitalization rate 6%
Terminal Value Capitalization Rate 6.5%
Stabilized Annual Average Daily Rate

Growth Rate 3%
Discount rate 9%

Occupancy rate 1st year 0%-30%
2nd-5th year 40%-70%
Beyond 5th year 70%-80%
Range from US$980 to

US$3,920

Average Daily Price

In assessing the fair value less cost of disposal of the
properties, Knight Frank has assumed that the proposed
development is ongoing and will be continued throughout a
reasonable outstanding development period and will be
completed as per the provided development scheme and
timeline and will be ready for immediate occupation with the
benefits of all approvals and permits, planning, building
regulations, guidelines and consents required from all
relevant government authorities will be issued without
onerous conditions and delays. There are no any legal,
planning nor construction impediments to interrupt the
completion of the proposed development. Also, the provided
capital expenditure will be sufficient for completing the

proposed development.

In estimating the fair value less cost of disposal of the certain
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, the
highest and best use of the certain property, plant and

equipment and right-of-use assets is their current use.

e BHRRME

31 December 2020
—ETF+-RA=+—H

13. W% - MERRE @)

AT AARETE AT EBERELEKRANE
ERA e ABIE

RIEED T H+-f=+—H
EEE 28 TS “T-=%"A=TH
BIEE S bR T A ZEZ=F+ZA=+—H
FEREE 6%
BEEARLE 6.5%
ST FETHEA
FEERE 3%
AR E 9%
AER 16 0%-30%
F2EE5F40%-70%
% 5E1%70%-80%
FHEREE NTBOETLE
3920% 7T

REHEZ M ERN RS EERE B ERAR -
RO ERREREREAR EHEETPAKRN
EEE R EMEEEETT - AR
mIRPTIR B R A B MBS R Tk - AR
EERMAMRBBNE RS — I LT
A ARE - EEGRD - B REEMERT
AHEIR AE - MASHIRES FM RIE
B o WEAMDER - RELEET ENER
TEEREZERER - I FRHER
SR ATEREREREAR -

REFTETYE  BERREBEAREREE
ENARBERELDEKRAR - HTHE
B MR mAREREEEN &S RRER
EREERMAE -
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31 December 2020
—ECTF+-A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
As at 31 December 2020, based on the result of the
impairment assessment described above, the recoverable
amount based on fair value less costs of disposal of the
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of the
Imperial Palace ® Saipan resort was determined to be
approximately US$307 million (HK$2,380,362,000).
Accordingly, management of the Group determined that the
recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets is lower than the carrying amount. The
impairment amount has been allocated to each category of
property, plant and equipment such that the carrying amount
of each category of asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less cost of disposal, its value in use and zero.

Based on the recoverable amount and the allocation, an
impairment loss of HK$4,448,626,000 and HK$18,754,000 have
been recognised against the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets respectively
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The fair value measurement of the property, plant and
equipment and rights-of-use assets of the Imperial Palace
Saipan resort was a Level 3 valuation in the fair value
hierarchy. Additionally, the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic has
resulted in greater market volatility depending on how the
COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve, which has led
to higher degree of uncertainties in respect of the valuations
in the current year, and independent valuers included
uncertainty clauses in the valuation reports in respect of
certain property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
located in Island of Saipan.

For the gaming machines and equipment, furniture and
equipment, computer hardware and software and leasehold
improvements and certain right-of-use assets, due to the
suspension of the gaming license, the management consider
there were no recoverable value on these assets, the
impairment loss of these assets of HK$58,948,000 have been
recognized during the year ended 31 December 2020 to fully
write down these assets to Nil carrying amounts.

For the remaining property, plant and equipment such as
leasehold land, certain right-of-use assets, yachts, motor
vehicles and aircraft, their carrying amounts approximated
their fair value and hence no impairment loss was recognized
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

13. W% - MERRE @)

HE_ZT-_FTF+_A=+—H BELM
BEFHER RAREBEALEEESZ
Ze EMEBN 2WE - BE K EBURSE
REEEZKAGTENTRESBETE AL
307,000,000 2 7t (2,380,362,0007% 7T ) °
I AEBEREET  WE - BERE
ARERAEEENTRESBENIREE -
BESHECOE TEEYE  WEKE&E -
FEBEEMNRAENMINEAR EBERE
HEXE  EFAEERTENRSE

RIEATKED2BEOE  BHE2E-_2 _FF

TZA=+—HItFE  2FtME - BE
BREAREAEEENREERRBEES

18 4,448,626,000 7% 7T }2. 18,754,000 8 7T °

BEZFENERNZ2VE  BERRELZ
RABEFERRABEEBRTHE =M
B thoh - COVID-19RBRHBEHMHE
MK E  RFCOVID-19 & 1T R REH
BRAFERHENRGETREN - BIUGE
BREMES RURERSHETYE  BE

REEAREREEENGBERS T IMAT
TETE MK

ERER MRS REARSE - BINE
HRBEGARBAERERETERAESE -
HREEBYRE EHERAZSEET
mOlEEE ZSEENREER
58,948,000 B TERBE_T T F+_H
=+—HIEFEAER  UHZEEETH
WA= ZRMAEE -

ERESFNYNE  BEREEGIOEEL
W BETEREEE - B - TERRE) -
HEEEREQAEERE  #RBE-F
TEFE+ A=t B IEFELEERRE
J&iE -
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BAMBERME \
31 December 2020

—E-TF+=-A=+—H

14. LEASE LIABILITIES 14. HEAE
Lease liabilities payables: ENHEEAE :
2020 2019
—B-F —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FETT
|
Within one year —ER 3,611 23,240
Within a period of more than one year Bl —FETBEMF
but not exceeding two years 887 2,613
Within a period of more than two year BBRFETBRAF
but not exceeding five years 1,271 1,291
Within a period of more than five years HBidAF 16,939 17,837
22,708 44 981
Less: Amount due for settlement with B RREBAaERINART @A
12 months shown under AEHEEN &R
current liabilities (3,611) (23,240)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months RIEREBIBE 2 AN+ @A
shown under non-current liabilities A1 B HR4E E £ 58 19,097 21,741
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied ERZEHEEENMMETIEEERTER
to lease liabilities at 12% (2019: 12%). 12% (ZZ—NEF : 12%) °
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15. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 15. R—BEEELEZRE

2020 2019

—E-FF —TNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT T
|

Share of net assets B EEFE 55,986 149,283
On 10 July 2019, the Group entered into an equity transfer R-E—-NFE+A+H NEFHE—ZFT
agreement with First Sinopan International Limited ("First E-HE—BMERAER AT ([FE—8])
Sinopan”), an independent third party, pursuant to which ST IR REEEAE A B F—HRIEESR
First Sinopan agreed to dispose of and the Group agreed to EmAEEREKEERRNAR AT ([E
acquire a 50% equity interest in American Sinopan LLC B FR BT |) 50% fAE - AR (B & 21,100,000 7T
("American Sinopan") for a consideration of US$21,100,000 (#8& 7 164,000,000 70) * BB UK
(equivalent to HK$164,000,000), satisfied by the Group's trade £ B JE B 5 BR 7k 48 58 164,000,000 7 7T 3%
receivables with a gross amount of HK$164,000,000. The fair fff o REBREEEETHKBHZAREBES

value of the consideration on the date of completion of equity 154,135,000 & 7T, °

transfer was HK$154,135,000.

The principal activity of American Sinopan is property ERERN T EBERAMEERE -
development.

The following table illustrates the financial information of the TRUEPAEETNEASLCLEZIBE
Group's joint venture that is not material: o

2020 2019
—ECEF —ENEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHERT TR
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Share of the joint venture's loss for the year [E{5 & & FNEE (927) (4,852)
Share of the joint venture's total EhaEtELHEIBERE
comprehensive loss (873) (4,852)
Impairment of investment in a joint R—EeErRZREZRE
venture (92,424) _
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s KNEBRELLEZIRE Y
investment in the joint venture REAE 55,986 149,283
The loans from a joint venture are unsecured, interest-bearing R —RALNE Y BEAamEEME  IREF
at 6% (2019: 6%) per annum and repayable on demand. ZEE(ZE—NEFE 6F)F A RABRENR
BE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)
The impairment losses for the year ended 31 December 2020
were mainly due to the adverse impact from COVID-19
pandemic, which resulted in significantly affecting the number
of visitors to Saipan. The impairment loss on investment in a
joint venture is supported by valuation report prepared by
independent valuer. The recoverable amount of the
properties of American Sinopan is determined by reference
to the income approach, discounted cash flow based on the
financial projections prepared by the management of the
associate covering a 5-year period, and the pre-tax discount
rate of approximately 10.98% that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the associate. Cash flows beyond 5-year period have been
extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate. The Directors of
the Company assess the recoverable amount of those
properties of American Sinopan and consider impairment loss
on investment in a joint venture of approximately
HK$92,424,000 was recognized during the year ended 31
December 2020.

The key assumptions included in the discounted cash flows

were as follows:

. For the business enterprise to continue as a going
concern, the business enterprise will successfully carry
out all necessary activities for the development of its

business;

o The availability of finance will not be a constraint on the
forecast growth of the business enterprise’s operations
in accordance with the business plans and the

projections;

15.

e BHRRME

31 December 2020
—ETF+-RA=+—H

R—BEEERZIRE(#)
BE-T-TF+_A=t+-BULFEHR

EETE T ZEHPCOVID-19&FE 2 TFIF
Z BETEENERTEAX -R—HEEeE

22 IRE REREE BB ER RS < b
BERESE XERIYE KBS ES
WA EREESTFHREMBLE QRS
BEMRE BT 2 MIRRE M2 AR
ATALIR = 4)10.98% (R & R HEEE 2 B
RIS AT B N A 2 FEE BBR ) B ET o
SFHMU B RS REBRBE IR IGREH
o RNREFTMERBIE 2 Y 2 I
eI EEREE_T_TF+=A
=+ HULEFERRARN—HeaELE2RE
SBERIE#992,424,000 8 7T °

BB RERENTIERRNOT :

<= o
/}I LE R

o DNAELERBELEEBME  BE

EERRINETUMHEBERE
E L

o BEBHBREMTERGIREES
BN FERAER AR ETRRIE
E .
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e BHRRHME

31 December 2020
—ECTF+-A=+—H

15. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

146

Market trends and conditions where the business
enterprise operates will not deviate significantly from

the economic forecasts in general;

The unaudited financial information of the business
enterprise as supplied to us has been prepared in a
manner which truly and accurately reflects the financial
position of the business enterprise as at the respective

balance sheet dates;

Key management, competent personnel and technical
staff will all be retained to support ongoing operations

of the business enterprise;

There will be no material changes in the business
strategy of the business enterprise and its operating
structure; Interest rates and exchange rates in the
localities for the operation of the business enterprise

will not differ materially from those presently prevailing;

All relevant approvals, business certificates, licenses or
other legislative or administrative authority from any
local, provincial or national government, or private
entity or organization required to operate in the
localities where the business enterprise operates or
intends to operate will be officially obtained and

renewable upon expiry unless otherwise stated; and

There will be no major changes in the political, legal,
economic or financial conditions and taxation laws in
the localities in which the business enterprise operates
or intends to operate, which would adversely affect the
revenues and profits attributable to the business

enterprise.

Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited % K ¥ EIBIZRGR A A
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16. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 16. FARNFIE - RERHEMbEWEIE
RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
|
Prepaid casino licence fees TENRESRRE - 70,437
Prepayments TR IR 10,928 79,544
Rental and other deposits HEREMRS 33,685 76,222
BGRT recoverable EEESE Wy 25,007 103,011
Other receivables (Notes) i R IE (M) 111,837 46,217
181,457 375,431
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses i : TEHA{E & Erig & (11,078) -
170,379 375,431
Less: Current portion W OmEE S (138,321) (346,362)
Non-current portion EREE D 32,058 29,069
The movements for allowance for expected credit losses of HEMEWRENTEHEEEBREHESN
other receivables are as follows: T

2020 2019

e —TNnEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT T
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|

At the beginning of year REH) - -

Allowance for expected credit losses TEEEEEERE 11,078 -

At the end of year RER 11,078 -
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31 December 2020
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16.

17.

14

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 16. EFRFIE REREMEBERFIEE)

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: s -

(i) Included in other receivables is an amount of HK$3,033,000 (2019: (i) HibEWFIE B IEEUCRER M TIRER A A
HK$3,033,000) due from Worldwide Asia Engineering Limited ([BREREEM | - AR BRI Z B 75 Wu
("WWA"), a company in which Mr. Wu Li Wen, a sibling of Ms. Wu Pei TzuZ 42 /L 2B Wu Li Wen %t £ B 7% A 7
Pei Tzu who is a related party of the Company’s controlling =) K IE3,033000% (=T — N F:
shareholder, is a director. The amount is unsecured, interest-free 3,033,000/7C) - BEEAKIBEAEET - 28K
and repayable on demand. AIRERIEE ©

(i) Included in other receivables is an amount of HK$8,071,000 (2019: (i) HEKRRECFERK —HE 2 tERE
HK$8,073,000) due from a joint venture. The amount is unsecured, 8,071,000/ 7L ( == —JL4F : 8,073,000/ 7T) ©
interest-free and repayable on demand. BEFESELER 2ERAKREREER -

(i) Included in other receivables is an amount of HK$76,776,000 (2019: (i) E b E UG FRIE B IR B SR AR IE R A B FE
HK$13,679,000) due from the ultimate holding company. The 76,776,000 7T ( — & — fL £ : 13,679,00078
amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The JL) c BRAREAEEE 2B NBRENRE
maximum amount outstanding during the year is HK$76,776,000 B FARERKSER76,776,0007%T(=
(2019: HK$13,679,000). T—LF ¢ 13,679,000 7T) ©

Details of impairment assessment of deposits and other 1B E K E AL W IERE R G B R B SR

receivables are set out in Note 38. FE38 e

EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR 17. BEBRAABEFAHMEZEK
VALUE LISTED SHARES THROUGH OTHER AZ LT REBRAKRE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2020 2019
i —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
|
Equity investments designated BERRAABERA
at fair value through other Hith2EBRA 2 REARE
comprehensive income
Listed equity investments, at fair value BRARBEIR ETRAKE 5,121 8,473

8 Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited % K ¥ EIBIZRGR A A
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31 December 2020
—ETF+-RA=+—H

EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR 17. EERRAAEBEFAHMEZENY
VALUE LISTED SHARES THROUGH OTHER AZETRGBBRERE (&)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)
The above listed equity investments represent ordinary shares Ll FHRRARERE -RREE ETHNEE
of an entity listed in Hong Kong. These investments are not MEBR -  ZFREAFFIEEE - MK
held for trading, instead, they are held for long-term strategic ERIRIEERS - AAREFTEERZSE
purposes. The directors of the Company have elected to WEEEREANBEFAEMEZEAKAZ
designate these investments in equity instruments as at fair BRAKE - RA/KERE  NERERZ
value through other comprehensive income as they believe ERENAEBEENRHEDTTRFEAER
that recognising short-term fluctuations in these investments’ REFBAZSERERRESRERRE D
fair value in profit or loss would not be consistent with the REE o
Group's strategy of holding these investments for long-term
purposes and realizing their performance potential in the
long run.
The market value of the Group's listed equity investments at REERZEGFaVBRATEBHZ EH
the date of issuance of these consolidated financial IR E T {EA 77,081,000 T (ZE—N1
statements was approximately HK$7,081,000 (2019: £ 1 5,393,000 7T) °
HK$5,393,000).
INVENTORIES 18. &
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
2020 2019
—EIEF —E-hEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
|
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ZA=+—HZKAE 24,118 23,466
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>Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
/ GO U B RENE
31 December 2020

—ZT-F+-_A=+—H

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

In relation to the VIP gaming operations, the Group grants

19. BWE 5 R
REEBYEBME  AKEGTHEER
FEERBAMER) - BEEBZEER—

credit lines (i.e., markers) to its VIP customers. The credit term

is generally 30 days (2019: 30 days) for gaming operations.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. For new

customers, up front money deposit or certain form of

BRABIBA(ZFE—NF:30R0) - BEEFP
UREREERE - 5P —RARNK
HRERETHAZRE - ERETHRE

BHR - NREHR - AEERERASE
EeARFRARBEFZRBEAEETREE
SHRB - PRMEAEEERKESERZ
12%(ZFB—NF:12%) R24% (ZZT—Hh
F :25%) - BB HIRAKITETE o

guarantee is normally required. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by management. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group has certain concentration of
credit risk as 12% (2019: 12%) and 24% (2019: 25%) of the
Group's trade receivables were due from the Group's largest
customer and the five largest customers, respectively. Trade

receivables are non-interest-bearing.

AERERBEEHRTHEERN KRB0
A RBWEMKR  BUESRFIZGEEE
BZREDITINT

The credit terms extended by the Group are generally 30
days for gaming operations. An ageing analysis of trade
receivables as at the end of the reporting period, based on

the program end date, is as follows:

2020 2019
=ECEF —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
|
Within 1 month —@E BN - 20,921
More than 1 month but within 3 months  ~ ZR—EAEB=EA K - 41,811
More than 3 months but within 6 months  ZR=1{& B1B;5{&@ B A - 60,855
More than 6 months but within 1 year ZWNNERIB—FRN 137,901 218,544
More than 1 year ZR—F 8,916,631 8,743,573
9,054,532 9,085,704
Allowance for expected credit losses TEEEEEERE (8,048,855) (6,961,044)
1,005,677 2,124,660

1 5 O Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited & KX ¥ BB ZERER A A
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had received guarantee
deposits of HK$1,005,677,000 (2019: HK$1,069,073,000) from
certain patrons/guarantors which can be used to offset
against certain of the above trade receivables in an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$1,005,677,000 (2019:
HK$1,009,386,000) due from certain patrons in the event that
the Group cannot recover the trade receivable amounts from
these patrons in the normal course of its business.

On 23 April 2021, IP| received the CCC'’s Order dated 22 April
2021 regarding to suspension of gaming license and those
overdue debts would be more difficult to recover. The
management consider to offset those overdue debts with
guarantee deposits of HK$1,005,677,000 which the Group has
the enforceable right to set off subsequently.

The movements for allowance for expected credit losses of
trade receivables are as follows:

e BHRRME

31 December 2020
—ETF+-RA=+—H

19. ERE SRR (&)
R-ZZE_EF+-_A=+—0 ~£EEBEH
FRE,/ERAMERE S 1,005,677,000 7%
T(ZZE— N 1 1,069,073,000587T) » R4
EEEZIN —REFBREFAZERTF KD
FEWESEFTMBRT  ATARKHEE
MEFEREFPHEIANETERESER
& #£ 491,005,677,000% T( =ZF — L F -
1,009,386,000 7T) °

MN-ZE-—FMB-+=08 - IPIWD# B
BEEBeAfA—ZS-_—FNA-+_-HH
REFEEERNES  ZSalESEE
U E - BEIREEERRE S 1,005,677,000
B Z SR EER - AEEEF A FIH
THEFREEBRESIEZ S OHETR -

RBWESEFRREEERREZ SN
T

At beginning of year F
Allowance for expected credit losses
Reversal of allowance for expected

credit losses

Written off Hh
Exchange differences 5 =R
At end of year FR

BEHEEREERE
BEHEERERERRE

2020 2019
—E-®E T A%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
6,961,044 4,690,161
1,119,764 2,569,641
- (246,731)

- (10,971)

(31,953) (41,056)
8,048,855 6,961,044
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31 December 2020

—ZT-F+-_A=+—H

19.

15

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a loss rate approach to measure expected credit losses.
The credit risk categorisation is determined based on a
number of factors which include (i) debtors’ ageing; (ii)
historical repayment behaviour of debtors; (iii) availability of
collateral in front money or guarantee deposits; (iv) wealth
proof; (v) other debtors’ specific information available to the
Group; and (vi) current industry conditions and future
economic outlook which are relevant for credit risk
assessment. The credit risk categorisation is adjusted to
reflect subsequent information uncovered to an extent that
such information provides evidence of conditions existed as
at the year end date and forward-looking information. The
expected loss rates are estimated based on the expected
cash flows that can be recovered from the collateral and other
estimated repayments based on historical recovery ratios.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group's trade receivables by credit risk

categories:

19.

FEWE 5 B (40)
AEBRBECDETEREREERSE - 1
EiE B HERBRRRETRED ITIART
ERHEEEE - EERRIBIREZ A
RERETE - AP0 BERFZIRE (i)
BB ABEERCE  (i)A & RERNK
SRBEEER: (MHMERH: VAKREA
BGEMBEBAREEH : kv)EEERAR
AHE B 2 BT R R ARG ER = -
AEBEBAEEERR D BIARRAKEER
ZIREEFR - BEAREMEHREEFRA
HIFTE G 2 BB R AT LB - TBEIE
BRDRBEFNE LY@ =G+ E A R R
NEAMAETERRE 2 AR REME -

BT A B R 58 SR S AR E R
BH 2 EERBER

Average loss rate

SES

Gross carrying amount

A — HIERE
B — RERAK
ClE—wZRak
D —R=RAR

Category A — Minimal risk
Category B — Lower risk
Category C — Moderate risk
Category D — Higher risk

2

FHEEER SR 4 E
2020 2019 2020 2019
—E-NEF BB —Z-NHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
- 14% - 1,441,541
- 79% - 330,518
- 80% - 2,350,845
89% 93% 9,054,532 4,962,800
9,054,532 9,085,704
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31 December 2020
—ETF+-RA=+—H

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 20. RERFRESEEYARZRERAT
RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT R
2020 2019
—BCEF —T-NF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&TT
|
Cash and cash equivalents RENREEEY 10,013 100,497
Restricted bank deposit (Note) PR HISR 1T R (M FE) - 44,621
10,013 145,118
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITR S DIRBIRITE B RRE 2 ZE 7
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and restricted bank EIREUK B, o IRITAESR R X PR BIIRITESRIF
deposit are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent MR R RIFEA BB S R RER R 2
history of default. AT °
Note: Pursuant to the CLA, the Group is required to place a certain MisT : ARBIREEG R R - AREERERSEA
amount of deposit as community development fund towards —EREERANEREELS - ARHE - B2
education, scholarships, infrastructure, healthcare and employee & HE BEREREERNEINE - R
retirement benefits, etc., in the Island of Saipan. On 23 April 2021, T —FUA-+=H @ NEBEEBILES
the Group received an order from CCC dated 22 April 2021 that IPI ZEgHBAZE-_—FMNAZ-+T-HMIE
failure to maintain a required amount of expected obligation in 2 IRIPIREEILFTETARKEFEER
cash and cash equivalents in a restricted account in the bank in BEORITHXREEFERATRELEES
CNMI or United States of America. Details of order from CCC was BEYHNEHRBLRE BMAESZEGESHK
set out in Note 33 and 41. BRI TE33 %41 -
=h
21. TRADE PAYABLES 21. BNES KX
e J=] +, 4o P T
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RBEPR - BRUEIRIZERAP LK
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: AT -

2020 2019

—ECEH —ZE-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FH&T
|

Within 1 month —fE AR - 6,928

More than 1 month but within 3 months ZR—EAE=EAR - 6,089

More than 3 months but within 6 months % =1& A{B/<& A K - 15,734

More than 6 months but within 1 year ZHRNERE—FR 2,301 12,455

More than 1 year ZR—F 69,795 35,817

72,096 77,023
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31 December 2020
—ECTF+-A=+—H

22. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 22. HMEARIER EETRRIE

2020 2019

—E-FF —TNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
LEs TER TAT

EPEEMEMEBY AR

Patron deposits and other

gaming liabilities 5 2,414,064 2,385,052
Deposits received [ 479,822 479,822
Loyalty program liabilities EPBHEEAE 5 232,612 232,451
Outstanding chip liabilities REZBZEEE 5 4,158 4,857
BGRT payable FERTEE AT - 73,230
Construction related payables JET SRR A 1,634,562 1,230,451
CN 2015 payable BN - — R B ERE 25 23,400 23,400
Provision for regulatory matters ELE RTR R 253,595 203,449
Other payables and accruals E At JE < RIE I JE T FRIE (@) 1,701,850 1,051,499

6,744,063 5,684,211

Less: Non-current portion B IERBE S - (418,157)

Current portion mENE S 6,744,063 5,266,054

Notes: izt -

(@)  As at 31 December 2020, included in the amount was interest (@) AT ZTFFA=+—H ZAEREE
payable of HK$Nil (2019: HK$13,591,000) to related parties and the NABAZNEEZTET(ZZ —-NF
amount interest payable of HK$853,194,000 (2019: HK$529,053,000) 13,591,000 7T) R EMBILE =7 2 F 8
to independent third party. 853,194,0007% 7T (= F—fL4F : 529,053,000/8

TT) e
(b)  Asat 31 December 2020, included in the patron deposits and other (b) NZEZEF+A=+—0 BEFEaRHA

154

gaming liabilities were deposits of HK$1,005,677,000 (2019:
HK$1,069,073,000) from certain patrons/guarantors who have
guaranteed the repayment of the trade receivables due from
certain of the Group's casino patrons (the “Guarantee”). In the
opinion of the directors, based on independent legal advice, the
Group has the enforceable right to set off the deposits against any
irrecoverable trade receivables due from these patrons under the
Guarantee.

On 23 April 2021, IPI received the CCC's Order dated 22 April 2021
regarding to suspension of gaming license and those overdue
debts would be more difficult to recover. The management
consider to offset those overdue debts with guarantee deposits of
HK$1,005,677,000 which the Group has the enforceable right to set
off subsequently.

Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited & KX ¥ BB ZERER A A
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CERAEEETRESRFERNERE S
BRFGER([HB4R 1)) 1% £ 1,005,677,000/8 (=
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23. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

On 27 March 2020, the Company entered into a
mortgage agreement with Joy Wealth Finance Limited
("Lender”), an independent third party, to share
mortgage in respect of 1 issued share (representing
100% of the issued share capital) of Keen State Limited
("Keen") to secure the aggregate outstanding loan
principal of amount HK$298,000,000. On 4 June 2020,
the Lender exercise their rights to transfer the share of
Keen State Limited to their nominee holding company
to set-off outstanding interest and principal under the
loan agreement in the amount of HK$15,000,000 due to
the Company has failed to settle the respective principal

amount and interest.

The net assets of Keen at the date of disposal were as

follows:

e BHRRME

31 December 2020
—ETF+-RA=+—H

23. HEMHBLQE

(a)

RZZFEZEF=A=-++H ~5£H
HBYEF=-FEMUBERAA
(TERADEIIRBHE - AR F
2 & Kt B A 7Keen State Limited
([Keen!) Z 1 BRE BT (FHER 2
HE2BITRA)ELRNDZS - ERE
R E FR & 4258 298,000,000 75 7T HY 12
Re-RZZEZFTFSAMNHE - EFRA
ITEREF# Keen State Limited 2 B9
ERTHARITRAT  UEBEER
MBETERZMNERAEASE
15,000,000 7T * RERARFIREE
NBEBASERFE -

REERMZEERENT

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost:

Right-of-use assets

Prepayments

Loan principal and interest payable

Other payables

Net liabilities disposed of

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:
Add: net liabilities disposed of

Add: release of exchange reserve

Gain on disposal

As at
4 June 2020
R-ZEZEF
ANAMAH
HK$'000
F&T
HhRERFIEZEER
BEDN:
PREEE 3,139
AN E ] 45
BRAe RERFE (15,000)
H A S TR (3,408)
T EaEFE (15,224)
HE—BHEB AR ZWE !
b EaE s 15,224
hn o BRERIE SR 2
s 15,226

155
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31 December 2020
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23. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

156

On 27 March 2020, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Pacray International
Holdings Limited (“Pacray”), an independent third
party, to dispose of 100% equity interest in |deal Best
Limited and its subsidiaries (“ldeal”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The consideration of
approximately HK$7,700,000 and HK$23,416,000 set off
against the loan principal and interest payable and the
whole amount of the debt outstanding to Pacray and its
subsidiaries respectively. The disposal was completed
on 31 July 2020.

The net assets of Ideal at the date of disposal were as
follows:

23. HEMBLQE (@)

b) RZZT_ZEF=A=-++tH KxAQHA
HBVE =N AETERZERARAR

(TKEDAILEE H#

A EARR

7l & & M1 E 2 Al ldeal Best Limited &2
Ht B A E (Ndeal |) 2 & ZBACHE -
& #97,700,000 % 7T £ 23,416,0007% 7T
DRI EE KA S REMNF B R
RREREWBRARZZEEHEEE -
HEER-ZE-_TEF+LA=F+—H%

AR o

Ideal RHEERHIZ EEFEWNT ¢

As at

31 July

2020

R=Z2=%F
tA=+—H
HK$'000

TR

Consideration received:
— Cash and cash equivalents
— Liabilities taken up and borne by the purchaser

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost:

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Other payables

Net liabilities disposed of

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:
Consideration

Add: net liabilities disposed of
Add: release of exchange reserve

Gain on disposal

Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
Bank balances and cash disposed of

ElARME :
—REMREFEY
—HEFAEZEE

HRAEZHENEER
BEDH

ME - BB MR

EREEE
BNER - BE MEMBREKKIR
Re kReEHEY
HAth & 30R

Frih &R EFEE

HE— B EBA Rz W :
RE

e FrHEREFE

o AREREE SR
&= W as

HEEEZRSREFHE ¢
PR ERITESR A
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31,116

41
7,213

(8,747)

(1,407)

31,116
1,407
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24. OTHER BORROWINGS 24. HAER
At the end of the reporting period, the Group's other interest- REERER AEEBEMGEEREEN
bearing loans were repayable as follows: T

2020 2019
—ECERHE —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&TT
|
Secured Vg 1,195,591 1,210,952
Unsecured i 2,970,748 2,239,804
4,166,339 3,450,756
The carrying amounts of the above Pt E M AR BREE
other borrowings are repayable: BATHREER :
Within 1 year or on demand —E R EESK 3,662,240 1,358,405
In the second year B_F 504,099 1,730,256
In the third to fifth years F-EERF - 362,095
4,166,339 3,450,756
Less: Non-current portion A IERENE D (504,099) (2,092,351)
Current portion mENE 3,662,240 1,358,405
During the year ended 31 December 2019, an independent HE_T-NFTA=+—H1LFE —
third party issued a deed pursuant to which this independent BT E=HEERE B LB E
third party has agreed that the Company shall have the sole CAHREAAF N EERNBATE TERE
discretion to determine the redemption dates of certain loans BESF S CERBE - Bt - 832 HE
together with the interest accrued thereon. Accordingly, the B BREFSHEARNANT Z KEEFT KN
loans were reclassified into perpetual loans under the EBGREMBIRR RN FEE - E— S5
Company and the Group's reserves in the statement of BN R A IS RERMIEE30 »

financial position from the date of the deed. Further details
are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Annual Report 2020 FE#E 1 5 7
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24. OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) 24. HiER (&)

158

As at 31 December 2020, the interest-bearing loans are
unsecured and interest-bearing at 6% to 15% (2019: 7% to
13%) per annum, save for (i) an interest-bearing loan amount
of HK$27,341,000 (2019: HK$42,602,000) which is secured by
the Group's aircraft with a carrying amount of HK$91,814,000
(2019: HK$103,116,000) and interest-bearing at LIBOR + 4%
per annum; and (ii) an interest-bearing loan amount of
HK$1,168,250,000 (2019: HK$1,168,350,000) which is secured
by the issued shares of a subsidiary of the Company (the
relevant shares charge arrangement has not been completed
as of the date of issuance of these consolidated financial
statements), guaranteed by Mr. Ji Xiaobo (“Mr. Ji”), Ms. Cui
and Inventive Star and interest-bearing at fixed rate of 12%

per annum.

As at 31 December 2020, an aggregate amount of
HK$688,417,000 (2019: HK$685,086,000) included in the
Group's other borrowings was pledged by certain patrons/
guarantors who have guaranteed the repayment of the trade
receivables due from some of the Group's patrons (the “Loan
Guarantee”). In the opinion of the directors, based on
independent legal advice, the Group has the enforceable
right to set off the pledged loans against any irrecoverable
trade receivables due from these patrons under the Loan

Guarantee.

As at 31 December 2020, the 2017 Notes with carrying
amount of approximately HK$467,017,000 were overdue and
being transferred from unsecured bonds and notes. All terms

remain unchanged with interest-bearing at 8.5% per annum.

As at 31 December 2020, the unsecured promissory notes
with carrying amount of approximately HK$26,362,000 was
transferred from unsecured bonds and notes, which are
interest-bearing at 8.5% per annum and repayable on

demand.

The Group’s other borrowings with aggregate principal
amounts of HK$466,240,000 were overdue for repayment as
at 31 December 2020 and together with the overdue interests
thereon of HK$27,691,000 were not repaid as at 31 December
2020.

W-Z-TF+-A=1+—08 T8 A
EXANIREFROERISEB(ZE—NF
7EZE13E)FHE - M) 5T R E 27,341,000
BIL(ZE—LF : 42,602,0007% 70) AR &
B BR M E 591,814,000 L (=& — N F -
103,116,000/ 70 ) 2 AL IEIE I - WiZ MR
RITRIZEFE S MEFNEAEE : R (i)ch
B B 31,168,250,0008 T ( =T — 1L F -
1,168,350,0007 7T) LA R BIMEB AR ZE
BTN GERARMDER TR SR EE
BmE T3 B HAE R TTA) 1EHE R B 42
BRE(RKE]) - £+t Kinventive Star
TERER - WIREEFFE12EFHEBRID o

RZEBEZZF+-_A=+—"08 XEHEHM
B E A $£688,417,00008 7T ( — T — fL4F -
685,086,000 7C) AE T &P R AR
BEEAEESHI>EFPERIZEKRE ZFERX
MEF((BRER]) - E[LLEFBLER
ERBRE  NEBEES P RBITERN G
BHERRBELERERBTZER P
Z A E R E 5 BRK -

R-E-_FTEF+_A=+—H FEEY
467,017,000 TR —_E—+FEZEE@BH
W EERELARER - FTAEGRRERS
TEWIRFFESERE ©

R-ZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—8 REEYD
26,362,000 7 7T & 4 35 175 5, 22 R R S 4
BHEFNER  EFHNESSEFTERA

BEREE -

MR-ZT-_TF+_A=+—H AEEEK
& 58 /5 466,240,000 7% 7T 2 H Ath {8 5 E 8 5
1838 - & [ Hm B F) 8 27,691,000 74 TT A0 A<
RZBEZEF+_A=1+—HERE
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25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

CN 2014

On 19 March 2014 (the “Completion Date"), the Company
completed the acquisition (the "Acquisition”) of the entire
issued share capital of and a shareholder’s loan to Excel Earth
Limited (“Excel Earth”) and obtained a profit guarantee
given by the vendor. The principal asset of Excel Earth was its
interests under, and entitlements to, the transfer of five
percent (5%) of the distributable profit of Hang Seng
Sociedade Unipessoal Limitada, for each 12-month period,
which had commenced on 1 January 2014 and terminated on
28 October 2015.

The Acquisition was satisfied by issuing zero coupon
convertible notes (“CN 2014") at the conversion price of
HK$0.05 per conversion share (as adjusted from HK$1.00 per
conversion share by the effect of the share subdivision) in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$400,000,000 due on the
sixteenth anniversary of the Completion Date to the vendor in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the acquisition
agreement. The conversion price had been subsequently
adjusted to HK$0.003125 per conversion share after the bonus
issue on 3 July 2015. On the Completion Date, the fair value
of CN 2014 was approximately HK$1,480,000,000, based on a
valuation report issued by an independent valuer, Roma
Appraisals Limited, dated 29 August 2014. Details of the
Acquisition had been disclosed in the circular of the Company
dated 8 January 2014. CN 2014 were recognised as equity in
its entirety without a liability portion in accordance with the

Group's accounting policy for mandatorily convertible notes.

25.

e BHRRME

31 December 2020
—ETF+-RA=+—H

AR RES

—E-IFTRRERE
R-TE-OF=A+HB(REBH] =~
AR EREEREARAR ([#HE) 22
MEHTRARBRRER((WBER) X
EEHRIETRE - MEZT2EERM
B-Z-MFEF—A—RRBE-_ZT—-HF1+A
“tNBEEREREAREREN AR
RARBSE A 2IKE M B 72 2 7 (5%) 2 #
o SRR -

RIBENEE i < IR G - W EIRE &
B H R E SR AR /D0.058 T (25K
DIFH 2 28 TR AIRARMN 1.008 7T T A
FEE) [ E 77 1T A& 458 /& 400,000,000 7%
LR TR A Bl m TN EF R A s TR A R
BREE(ZZ-—NETRREEDEN - R
—E-REEAZBETARETE Lk
BEZCAEAFR LB HK0.003125%8
TC o PATER BB - BB (HERM A S B
FEBERARMBTYERA-ZT—NFNA
“+HABZEERS - NEABRE
B2 A EEH51,480,000,000% 7T - UeiE
EHHBERAAREHA-ZT —NF—
RANBZREHNEE - REBEAEEE BRG]
ARREEZSFTBEE - —ZE—UF ARk
EEERARTEUEBGEI D 2
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25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 25. AIRMES (&)

160

CN 2015

On 21 August 2015, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$841,900,000 (“CN 2015"). CN 2015 matured after 24
months from the date of issuance and were convertible into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time between the date
of issue of the notes and their settlement date. CN 2015 were

convertible at the conversion price of HK$0.225 per share.

HK$213,000,000 and HK$300,000,000 of CN 2015 had been
converted into ordinary shares of the Company in 2015 and
2017, respectively.

CN 2015 matured on 20 August 2017 and an aggregate
principal amount of HK$305,500,000 had been redeemed. As
at 31 December 2020, the Company was in the process to
redeem the remaining CN 2015 of an aggregate principal
amount of HK$23,400,000 (2019: HK$23,400,000).

CB 2017

On 27 June 2017, the Company issued convertible bonds in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$50,000,000 which bear
interest at 4% per annum ("CB 2017"). CB 2017 matured after
24 months from the date of issuance and were convertible
into ordinary shares of the Company at any time between the
date of issue of the bonds and their settlement date. CB 2017

were convertible at a conversion price of HK$0.176 per share.

The interest amortised for the year was calculated by applying
an effective interest rate of 8.82% to the liability component

for the 24-month period from the bonds’ issue date.

CB 2017 matured on 27 June 2019 and the Company
redeemed CB 2017 with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$50,000,000 on 28 June 2019.

—E-RFNBKREE
RZZE—RAFNAZ+—H  NARFETE
& 4R FE £841,900,0008 L2 EE A MR E
BIZ2-—HEFWEREE] - —T—1F
AR IR A BT B HABRT 24 @ B & B H
ARETREOHRELEE A BRREEMA
FREEBRAARREER —F—RAFAIHR
IREE TR S ME SR 02258 L ik -

— T — R F AR E & E A 213,000,000 5
7€ }2.300,000,0008 TE B R —E— R 4F
FZE—tFHBARAR LR -

—E-RAFABRBEEER T —EF )\ A
—+HEIE - A& 4% H & 305,500,0007%
TEER  R_ZE_TF+_A=+—8"
AATEBLO - ZE—RFABREHG A
% #8 #23,400,0008 jt( — T — N F:
23,400,000/ 7T) °

TE-EFURRES
RZTE—EFRNAZTER  ARREITR
FAE4EF B RAE 45 /50,000,000 %
TZABBREF(Z2-—tFTRKRE
1) e —T - FABRREFNETT B HE
A2AEAREE  AIRBETESFRREERS
FHHIIHMREARELRRARARER
B —T—EFABREESFARARESR
0176 TR

FRBBENEMEFRITH L 24EA
HIfE B B A D B A ERA X 8.82%5t

H o
>t

TRt FABBREFR - NEFE XA
Z+tHEH ARRERZE—NEFRA
—+ N\ BHE B 7% 438 50,000,000 7T 2 =

T—tFABRES -
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25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
CB 2017 (Continued)

The net proceeds received from the issuance of CB 2017 had

25.

e BHRRME

31 December 2020
—ETF+-RA=+—H

AR A ()
“E-tHEURRESE)
BT tFURRESZERMEIA

been split into the liability and derivative components and FHEOOIRABRBRITES S  HEFHN
their movements are as follows: T
|
Derivative Derivative
Liability financial financial
component asset liabilities Total
T4 T4
BESD TREE TRBE @it
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i FET FET FERT FET
I —
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-AF—-H—H 48,879 (24) 1 48,856
Interest expense FBHY 7 2,091 - - 2,091
Coupon interest paid BEREE (970) - - (970)
Redemption EE (50,000) - - (50,000)
Fair value (gain)/loss DRABEMS)/BiE - 24 (1) 23
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NE+-F=+—H - - - -
Annual Report 2020 FE#{ & 1 6 1
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26. UNSECURED BONDS AND NOTES 26. WMERESRER
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
ZECEEYCAST-A —F-nNF+ZA=1-A
Effective Effective
interest interest
Notes rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
i BRAIE %) BH ThEx  EBREE) 55 ThR
|
Current: itk
— 2017 Notes — 8.5% — 5 tFEE—85% (a) 8.65 2021 77,835 8.65 2020 467,290
— 2017 Bonds Al —5.25% —ZE—tEEFA—525% (b) - - - 953 2020 13,067
— 2018 Bonds AAI —5.25% — 25— JVEEHAA—525% (d 9.53 2021 25,162 - - -
102,997 480,357
Non-current; ERE:
Repayable in the second year RE-FEE
— 2017 Notes — 8.5% — 2 tEZE—85% (a) - - - 8.65 2021 77,880
— 2017 Bonds All — 6.0% — 2T HEBHAI-60% (0 9.56 2022 14,370 - - -
— 2018 Bonds AAI —5.25% — 22 \ERFMI—525%  (d - - - 953 2021 2,151
— 2018 Bonds AAIl —6.0% — 22— \EEHAAI—60% (e) 9.56 2022 6,571 - - -
— Promissory Notes —ERRE ] - - - 012 2021 26,499
20,941 128,530
Repayable in the third to fifth years, RE-ZERE (REERME)
inclusive Big
— 2017 Bonds All — 6.0% —ZZHEBHAI—-60% G] - - - 956 22 13,915
— 2018 Bonds AAIl — 6.0% — 2 \EBHAAI—60% (e) - - - 9.5 2022 6373
— 2017 Bonds B— 6.0% — T+ EB5B—60% f) 9.56 2025 24,502 - - -
— 2018 Bonds BB — 6.0% — 2% \EEHBB—6.0% (9 9.56 2025 4312 - - -
28,814 20,288
Repayable beyond five years REEREE
— 2017 Bonds B— 6.0% —ZE—FBEFB—60% ] - - - 9.56 2025 2871
— 2018 Bonds BB — 6.0% —ZZ-)\EB5BB—060% (9 - - - 9.56 2025 4,205
- 28076
49,755 176,894

1 6 2 Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited & KX ¥ BB ZERER A A



26. UNSECURED BONDS AND NOTES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 25 January 2017, 27 January 2017 and 7 February 2017, the
Company issued the 2017 Notes — 8.5% with an aggregate
principal amount of US$70,000,000 (approximately HK$543,380,000)
to certain independent third parties, which are interest-bearing at
8.5% per annum and repayable on 24 January 2020, 26 January
2020 and 6 February 2021 (2018: 6 February 2020), respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the 2017 Notes with carrying amount of
approximately HK$467,017,000 and interest payable amount of
HK$52,046,000 were overdue and being transferred to other
borrowings and other payables. All terms remain unchanged with
interest-bearing at 8.5% per annum.

On 15 September 2017, 20 September 2017, 13 October 2017, 3
November 2017 and 17 November 2017, the Company issued the
2017 Bonds Al — 5.25% with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$13,500,000 to certain independent third parties, which are
interest-bearing at 5.25% per annum and repayable in 2020.

On 15 September 2017, 3 November 2017 and 9 November 2017,
the Company issued the 2017 Bonds All — 6.0% with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$15,000,000 to certain independent third
parties, which are interest-bearing at 6% per annum and repayable
in 2022.

On 18 April 2018, 8 May 2018 and 28 May 2018, the Company
issued the 2018 Bonds AAl — 5.25% with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$25,500,000 to certain independent third parties,
which are interest-bearing at 5.25% per annum and repayable in
2021.

On 15 May 2018 and 14 June 2018, the Company issued the 2018
Bonds AAIl — 6% with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$7,000,000, to certain independent third parties, which are
interest-bearing at 6% per annum and repayable in 2022.

e BHRRME

31 December 2020
—ETF+-RA=+—H

26. EEAESREE @)

B e -

(@)

RZZE—+F—A=-+HA - ZZ—+F—A4
—++tHE_ZE—+tF-_AtH  ARAFAE
FIB L E = 1T A& #8%8/470,000,000 % 7T
(49543,380,000 8 L) 2 —E—tFEH —
85%  REFKSSETE  WHRER=ZF
—EE-f-+WNE —ZE-TFE-A-+K
AR-ZZ-_—F_ARNB(ZE-N\F: =%
“EEZANE)EE

RZZB-ZTE+-_A=+—HB EEELD
467,017,000% 7T X &1~ F1| 2. 52,046,000 7 7T )
T EERERCANTEREEMERRE
HRERTFRIR © FTB IRERME R N IR F 7] % 8.5
e S

R-ZE—+tFNA+RBE - —ZT—+tFNA
—+tB - ZE—+Ft+A+=H - —FT—tF
+—AZBR=_Z—+tE+—A++tA8 A2
AIMETBYLE=FRTASAER
13,500,000/ 7T 2 = & — £ F & FA —
5.25%  HLERKRS525EFFE - WEAR T
THEEE -

R-T—+FNA+TEBR —T—+F+—A8
ZARZE—EF+—ANB  ARAFMET
BN FE = EITALBEE R 15,000,000 T2
T FEEAl — 60%  HERKR6E
B WEAR-T-—FHEE-

RZZE—N\FMA+NR ZZE—N\FHAN
BER=ZZ—/\ERA=-+N\B  ARAHET
BN FE = EITALBEE A 25,500,000 T2
T N\FEEHAA — 525% » HEF|E525
EitE WEARZTB-—FEE -

R-ZE—NFEA+RBNE-_Z—N\FXA
THE  AARAETBYLE=FTETRER
%8 /57,000,0008 T2 —F— \EEHAAIl —
6% REFRGEFE - WEAR T _FE

iR o
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26. UNSECURED BONDS AND NOTES (Continued) 26. BERBESREE®)

Notes: (Continued) Mzt (8&)

(f) On 12 September 2017, 6 November 2017 and 20 November 2017, ) R-ZZB—+FAA+=H  ZZE—+F+—A8

the Company issued the 2017 Bonds B — 6.0% with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$28,000,000 to certain independent third
parties, which are interest-bearing at 6% per annum and repayable
in 2025.

On 17 April 2018 and 1 June 2018, the Company issued the 2018
Bonds BB — 6% with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$5,000,000, to certain independent third parties, which are
interest-bearing at 6% per annum and repayable in 2025.

In 2018, the Company issued certain unsecured promissory notes
with principal amounts of US$11,700,000 (approximately
HK$91,258,000) and US$3,400,000 (approximately HK$26,499,000)
to Inventive Star and certain independent third parties, respectively.
Except for a note amount of US$2,550,000 (approximately
HK$19,874,000) that is interest-free, all notes are interest-bearing at
12% per annum and repayable in 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, the unsecured promissory notes with
carrying amount of approximately HK$26,362,000 was transferred
to other borrowings, which are interest-bearing at 8.5% per annum
and repayable on demand.

On 22 August 2019, Inventive Star issued a deed pursuant to which
Inventive Star has agreed that the Company shall have the sole
discretion to determine the redemption dates of certain notes
together with the interest accrued thereon. Accordingly, the notes
were reclassified into perpetual loans under the Company and the
Group's reserves in the statement of financial position from the
date of the deed. Further details are set out in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ANARZZ—tF+—A=+R ARFERE
THIUFE =77 %ATA S #8574 28,000,000 % 7T
2R LFEHFB—60%  BRFNFOEF
B WER-ZT-RFEE -

(9) R N\FENA+EtAER-_Z—N\FA—
B ARAIABTFBYLE=FETASRES
5,000,000/ L2 = F — )\ FE#BB — 6% -
REFROEFE  WEAR-T_RFEE -

(h) R=ZZ—\F N2 a%5 FA Inventive Star &
ATEILFE=HETHETALEA 11,700,000
%7t (#791,258,000 7% 7T ) & 3,400,000 2 7t (4)
26,499,000 7T ) 2 EERE L FE - R AR
2,550,000 7T ( £919,874,00078 7T ) 2 % B2
BN MEEBRERFEMNE12EFS - XA
R —FEE8 -

R-ZTZ-_ZTE+_-_A=+—80 REHEY
26,362,000 B T EE R AR RRERZHM
B REFRSSEFERAREREE -

RZZFE—NENA=Z+=H ' Inventive Star %
HE2E - it 0 Inventive Star A B AR R A[ 2
BERERAETE TERERENF S ZERA
e At BRIBEHER  EREFHDEANR
RAEIZKBEERRAEBHBRARAZH
& o #E— BB RS B BWERMFE30 ©

The unsecured notes issued by the Group are denominated AREFBET 2 EBIKIFEEUEITEE - AE
in US$. The unsecured bonds issued by the Group are B 31T 2 EIRES B TEHE -

denominated in HK$.
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27. DEFERRED TAX 27. EEBIR
The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are as RIEMIBEERFN 2 ZEBNT :
follows:

Deductible
temporary
differences
A HIA
TRHER
HK$'000

THETT
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|

At 1 January 2019 R-ZE—NF—H—H 513,181
Deferred tax debited to profit or loss AERFIE B AR 8558

during the year, net (512,474)
Exchange differences M 5 Z 5 (707)
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 R-ZE—NEFE+=-_HA=+—8"

and 31 December 2020 —ETF-A-HRK

—E-_THE+A=t+—H -

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong and CNMI of AEBNREBERIEGREDREENTIEEE
HK$1,305,474,000 (2019: HK$1,174,271,000) and % Bl %1,305,474,000% 7T( = & — L4 -
HK$1,540,301,000 (2019: HK$548,346,000), respectively, that 1,174,271,0007%8 7T ) % 1,540,301,000 % 7T (=
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable T — JL4F 1 548,346,000/ 7T ) + I A (AR
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred R M £ B B 1B B A Rl 2 R R FE AR B it
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses Mo HRIEEERCDEE - RERAERR/E
as they have arisen in these entities that have been loss- JERBUR N T R A SH AT B A 2 BT B8
making for some time and it is not considered probable that O B Sh L E IR R IR IE R IH B E o

taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses

can be utilised.

Annual Report 2020 FE#E 1 6 5
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28.

29.

SHARE CAPITAL 28. A
2020 2019
—EC-BE —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
|
Authorised: SETE
300,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 300,000,000,000 A% =A% &
HK$0.0005 each 0.0005 % 7T 2 & 3@AX 150,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
142,984,807,678 ordinary shares of 142,984,807,678 I8 & IX HEIE
HK$0.0005 each 0.0005 % 7T 2 & 3@AX 71,492 71,492
Share options R
Details of the Company'’s share option scheme and the share NG DN e ARt
options issued under the scheme are included in Note 29 to THBEHN G A REMNETE29

the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME 29. B2

Equity-settled share option scheme R EEREsE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the ARNT R TBERRESZ([5E8 ) BMETE
"Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and M REEBRNELIEL TR 2 A BBRHE
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success RSB N OER - STEIMABIRREER
of the Group's operations. Eligible participants include the EAANBIRARNBHBAT Y 2B R E
full-time and part-time employees, executives, officers, B {THAE BBAB - BF. ¥
directors, business consultants, agents, legal and financial B - (018 =2 N BITEERR - BIESTEID EL
advisers of the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries. SWeEigs] e —T—mE+—/B=H
The Scheme became effective on 3 December 2014 and, AN WEZB R FERRERY -

unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force

for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently IR EAR IS 21 AT 2~ R T B IS
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount BiTERTESR ARG D 3T G5 H®
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the 10% o MEA+—E B BN E LA BKRE
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of B 2 AR 4 ) T B I ARE T B JE R AT 2 PR 1
shares issuable under share options to each eligible ESEE  UARRTEDRTIRND1% 5
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period, is R o — IS Bm IR Y B A SRS
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any BHEREAE FHE -

time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit

is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company's shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a

general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
30 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and
ends on a date which is not later than five years from the date
of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the

Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company's shares on the date
of the offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company'’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of
the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends

or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

e BHRRME

31 December 2020
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29. BBRAERTEI ()

BEaEBRETE (#)

AARNRIES TBITBRAE - TERRN
MEZEMBEATRLBRE  AELB
MIEMITE R o tbsN - RER+ @A
HIRARARRERRRABLIFNTES
HIREF 2 EAIBEA LR HERE - ATS
KD BB AR B A E TR 0.1% 3K
REMRERRL ARz ARRRER &) #
BSAEEET AIALKBRRERRA® L
HEE

RERHNBERE 2 ZHANZHOE B
VEAREM  ARALAINEKIEBTH
SBMERE - FIREOBRENTEHRE

ST YHETEBRKFALG  mER
AN SER 2B AE B HEs A F et
B2 EHEMRTE -

BRETEERHESET @ HEAAER
TMI=FFz&ERE  (VEE2ERREEOE
BARRBRMDRBER P2 WTHE : (i) BIEIR
ZEXNE BRI AER S A ARRE D REBER
PRz FHWRmE: RMRIEZRHEBRAR
REREEE

BRI TR T A A WERB B HORER - IR
BREEABRRAGLER -
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31 December 2020
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 29. BRESTE(®)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) R EERERTE(E)
The following share options were outstanding under the SFEIE TS ARITEBRAENT
Scheme:
2020 2019
—E-%F —FNE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number
per share options per share of options
BRmAE S
FHTRE BREZE FHTRE BiERR
HKS HK$
BT BT
____________________________________________________________________________________________|
Outstanding as at 1 January R—A—BRATE 0.127  1,521,268,016 0.128 1,534,781,992
Lapsed during the year FRER 0.187 (77,234,168) 0.168 (13,513,976)
Outstanding as at 31 December ~ A+ = A=+—HHEKITE 0.124  1,444,033,848 0127 1,521,268,016
Exercisable at 31 December BTZA=+—Ba 17 0.121  1,400,828,396 0.119 1,353,096,861
No option was exercised during the year ended 31 December HE_Z_ZTF+_A=1+—HILEFELE
2020 (2019: Nil). BREETE(ZE—NF - |) -

1 6 8 Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited & KX ¥ BB ZERER A A



29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements</<

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting

period have the following exercise periods and exercise

prices:

e BHRRME

31 December 2020
—ETF+-RA=+—H

29. BRETE (&)
REEEBRESTS (&)
RIRE BRI AT 2 1T R ITE
BaR :

Grant date

Exercise period

KILAH 76

Number of Number of

options options

Exercise price 2020 2019
e “T-NF

T8 ZBREHE 2 BIREHA

HKS

BT
I

3 December 2014 3 December 2014-2 December 2024

“Z-MFE+ZA=H —T-MET-AZHZE
—ECME+ZACZH

18 June 2015 Note 1

TR ATN\H Bzt

26 November 2015 Note 2

“T-AFT-A-+AB W2

5 April 2017 Note 3

“Z—+FMNARA PEE3

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at the end of period

RERERITERRESR TIMET IR OFH

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

25% of the options granted will be vested on the third anniversary
of the date of grant, another 25% of the options granted will be
vested on the fourth anniversary of the date of grant, another 25%
of the options granted will be vested on the fifth anniversary of
the date of grant and the remaining 25% of the options granted
will be vested on the sixth anniversary of the date of grant, up to
17 June 2025.

25% of the options granted are vested on the first anniversary of
the date of grant, another 25% of the options granted are vested
on the second anniversary of the date of grant, another 25% of
the options granted are vested on the third anniversary of the
date of grant and the remaining 25% of the options granted will
be vested on the fourth anniversary of the date of grant, up to 26
November 2025.

One-third of such share options are vested on the first anniversary
of the date of grant; another 33.3% of the options granted will be
vested on the second anniversary of the date of grant, the
remaining 33.4% of the options granted will be vested on the
third anniversary of the date of grant, up to 4 April 2027.

0.105 1,120,000,000 1,120,000,000
0.220 172,821,808 214,090,896
0.255 3,800,000 3,800,000
0.150 147,412,040 183,377,120
1,444,033,848 1,521,268,016

4.04 years 5.21 years

4.04% 515

fsE

MizE2 -

MizE3 -

R R D 25% B0 & B S =B
FHB SREBRESIN25%BREE B
HEMEFRE - X HBRESSN25% 1§
RELEBRERBFRE  BROERER
T25% BREBEHARERNBERE B2
E_RFARATERRBL -

ERHEREET 2% BN RHBHE—A
BE EELBRESINS%HREL B
HEAFRE O HBERERIN25%5
RELBHNE-ZRTRE  CREBRERS
T2% N ELARENEFRRE B2
ToRHE+—A=-+BAL-

BRBRENER =S —RAELBHE—E
FHEB - BEDERESIINZ33%ERF N
BEHE_BFRE CELIERESRT
BVBARBRIFELERE-RFEE  HEE =
T +EFANB AL -
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29.

17

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has
recognised a share-based payment expense of HK$932,000
(2019: HK$6,805,000) in respect of the share options granted
in the prior years.

Share options granted to consultants were incentives for
helping the Group expand its business network, acquire and
explore new business projects and opportunities. The fair
value of such benefit could not be estimated reliably and, as a
result, the fair value was measured by reference to the fair

value of share options granted.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
1,444,033,848 (2019: 1,521,268,016) share options outstanding
under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 1,444,033,848 (2019:
1,521,268,016) additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital and share premium amounts of
approximately HK$722,000 (2019: HK$761,000) and
HK$178,259,000 (2019: HK$192,440,000), respectively.

29. BBRAERTEI ()

EREEBREE(E)
HE_ZT_ZEE+_-_A=+—RHBILtEE"
AEBEECHREAMFEEREBERERR
LARRAD AR 2 5K F X 932,000 T (=&
— L4 : 6,805,000/87C) °

BYEE < BREDR B ARERRER
B WBERSHRMEREE g 2 %
B - BRARA 2 AL BETER S fhat
At - EAREBEID2EMRLBREZ A
REEE -

RERERR - ARERFEIB THARITEZ
BE A% #E 51,444,033,84810 ( — T — S & -
1,521,268,01610 ) « TR A RIIR B AR
T EMARITEEREEREITERERAR
A ERANEE 1T 1,444,033,848 % ( — T — N 4F -
1,521,268,016 % ) & iBAx - AR A & IR 0 5%
ERI5 R AN # 722,000 T (—Z T — NL4F
761,000 7T) F 178,259,000 7T (—E— A,
1 192,440,000/ 7T) °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Share options offered by the controlling shareholder
on 14 December 2015

On 14 December 2015, the controlling shareholder of the
Company offered 3,191,666,665 share options (“Option A")
to independent investors and 77,066,668 share options
("Option B”) to consultants and employees (collectively the
"Offerees”) enabling the Offerees to subscribe for an
aggregate of 3,268,733,333 shares under the Share Option
Scheme. The exercise price is HK$0.24 per share. Under
Option A, the vesting period commenced 16 days after the
grant date and grantees can exercise 100% of the share
options. Under Option B, grantees can exercise 25% of the
share options 3 years after the grant date, 25% of the share
options 4 years after the grant date, 25% of the share options
5 years after the grant date and 25% of the share options 6

years after the grant date.

At the end of the reporting period, none of the options
offered by the controlling shareholder have been taken up by
the Offerees. Correspondingly, the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 have not

reflected the effects of such share-based payments (2019: Nil).

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 73 of

the consolidated financial statements.

Other reserve
Other reserve represented deemed capital contribution

arising from interest-free loans from a shareholder.

29.

30.

e BHRRME

31 December 2020
—ETF+-RA=+—H

BREE (#)
o B B R R

RZZE—RF+ZA+IMA - RREHERE
ROBMBILIEEE N LERREES (5
[ASE A )1 3,191,666,665 17 B8 B 4 ([ 4
B REAL [ 77,066,668 17 fE I #E ([ B8 AR HE
Bl) ' AR ANREBRESIRES K
3,268,733,333 1% fx {7 » 1T1H B AT 0.2475
TL e IRIEBEIREA BEHAERLBHE 16
HE8E - 2R ARTITE 100% 8 I i - 1R 1%
BB - AR AR R BHEIFITE
25% BT HE - IR B ER1R 4 F1T{F 25% 88
BEHE - AR B BB1R 5 F1T1E 25% BB AR &
B B A& 6 1718 25% FE AR o

R EHIR - AR AL AR BRI R %
HZEEE - Bt #E-_F-_FTF+ A
=+ BUEFEZEEUBREIARE RRZ
EUBRM RER ZNRZEZE(ZT—NEF
&) -

(EX]
AEERREE RBEFE 2 RARERA
BHRRANBREBTIEF RSB
E2HR27 -

Hith %
HitFEERRZREERELEZR/LE -
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30.

31.

17

RESERVES (Continued)

Perpetual loans

During the year ended 31 December 2019, certain related
parties issued deeds pursuant to which these related parties
have agreed that the Company shall have the sole discretion
to determine the redemption dates of certain loans and
unsecured notes with an aggregate outstanding carrying
amount of HK$2,394,698,000, together with the interest
accrued thereon of HK$163,335,000. Accordingly, these
amounts were reclassified into perpetual loans under the
Company and the Group’s reserves in the statements of

financial position from the date of the deeds.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, an independent
third party issued a deed pursuant to which this party has
agreed that the Company shall have the sole discretion to
determine the redemption dates of certain loans with an
aggregate outstanding loan carrying amount of
HK$545,824,000, together with the interest accrued thereon
of HK$8,453,000. Accordingly, these amounts were reclassified
into perpetual loans under the Company and the Group's
reserves in the statements of financial position from the date

of the deed.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

Other than transactions disclosed in Notes 15, 23, 24, 30
and 31(b) to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group has the following major non-cash transactions

during the year:

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of HK$2,008,000 (2019: HK$3,552,000) and
HK$2,008,000 (2019: HK$3,552,000), respectively, in
respect of lease arrangements for office premises which

included in “Building” set out in Note 13.

30. & (#2)

31.

XEER
BE_T-NFt+-_A=t+—HUILFE &
TRAM T EHRE Bt ZERBE SRR
ARRA] 2EMBERES TERMERTR
B OCREEREAER2,394,698,00048 7T ) 38
[ /& 51 F) 2.163,335,000/% 7T 2 fE 6] H & -
Rt - BREEHE - BRAFEEFIER
RRBZXBEERRAEEIBEARRRAZ
& -

HE-_ZT—NF+_A=t+—HULEFE —
BEUR=FRERE Bt ZBUE=
FRBEARARFRAIEENERESE TERCGE
B2 B3R M 4818 /4 545,824,000 75 7T ) 12 A
FEETH2.8,453,00078 7T, fE G A & o A )t -
BREBAE  BEREENSEAERAT
ZKBE AL B I IEAR R TR A2 -

REREREBRMEE

(a) FEIBREXRH
BRERE B IESREZ M FE15 23~ 24~ 30
KNP FTEBRRZ SN AEBRFA
EUTEBHAERS -

HE_Z-_ZTHF+-_A=+—HILHF
B ANEBERBRAEMEZRERH
EFERAEEERTHEABIIIEREF
E 7 52,008,000/ 7T ( =T — fL4F ¢
3,552,000 7T ) 1 2,008,000 7 (=&
— fU%E : 3,552,000 7T) » 5 A M &E
13F78L [1EF] -
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

e BHRRME

31 December 2020

—F_FF+_HA=1+—8

—=—=

31. REBRERERME#E)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) MEXBKEECEEETH
activities
Interest CN 2015
payable payable Loans
included  Loans from Convertible included  Unsecured from
in other related Other Lease  bonds and inother  bonds and ajoint
payables parties  borrowings liabilities notes payables notes venture
AR HES
AR B ES
Efif8e REBHA T8R —%-1F BER RE-HEE
EfHE ZER Rfhfez HEEE EHREE TEREE EEREE  LE0ER
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Thr L T Thr T T ThL Th
|
At1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-A 483676 574214 2962525 76237 48879 23,400 1922724 -
Changes from financing cash flows BERLRES (146,108) (55,323) 1,400,476 (36,843) (50,000) - - 10,046
Interest expenses fsHx 5229 55,754 - 9,265 1121 - 3226 -
Assignment of loans, deposits received ~ EFET  BREE R
and related interest HENE (158.956) 611423 (358,236) - - - - -
New leases HHg - - - 3552 - - - -
Termination of leases RIS - - - (7,084) - - - -
Deemed capital contribution from RE—LRELE
ashareholder (Note 30) (H30) - (54277) - - - - - -
Reclassification upon amendmentof B2 ERERZ f5ERE
payment clauses of notes and EprGE )
borrowings (Note 30) (171,788) (1,131,397) (545,824 - - - (1,263,301) -
Exchange differences ERZE - (394 (8,189) (148) - - (5,399) -
At31 December 2019 and REB-NETZA=1t-BR
1 January 2020 “3-%F-8-H 529,053 - 3,450,756 44,981 - 23,400 657,251 10,046
Changes from financing cash flows BEBSREY (102,608) - 250,190 (29,616) - - (7,283) (1,569)
Interest expenses FlERET 375,490 - - 5,456 - - 54,882 -
Reclassification of unsecured bonds BRARBERERENNE
and note 52,046 - 493,379 - - - (545,425) -
New leases il - - - 2,008 - - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 23) LEMBRF (H3H23) (787) - (21913) - - - - -
Exchange differences ERZE - - (6,073) (121) - - (6,673) -
At 31 December 2020 RoB-FE+-A=1-H 853,194 - 4,166,339 22,708 - 23,400 152,752 8471
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 31. ZEBEEREXRMT 2)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEZHSRHALZE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the HAGABRERERZHEEZEHSR
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: HAARENT ¢
2020 2019
—E-EF ZE-NF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
|
Within operating activities BEEKRA 16,034 15,594
Within financing activities BB EBA 29,616 36,843
45,650 52,437
32. COMMITMENTS 32. &¥E
The Group had the following commitments at the end of the AREBRFREHRZAFENT ¢

reporting period:

2020 2019
—B-%F —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Capital commitments BRELE
Contracted, but not provided for: BET4 - (BREE
Property, plant and equipment M BENERE 434,549 466,989
Leasehold lands HELH 77,617 77,971
512,166 544,960
Other commitments H e
Casino licence fees: IRELISIRRE -
Within one year —FR 116,304 116,835
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~ £ _ZEFhE (BDIEERME) 465,217 467,340
After five years hFi& 1,511,956 1,635,690
2,093,477 2,219,865
Community development fund fees: HEZEEZELEMR :
Within one year —FR 155,072 155,780
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~ E-ZFERAF(BIHEERMRF) 620,290 623,120
After five years hFi& 1,705,796 1,869,360
2,481,158 2,648,260
4,574,635 4,868,125

1 74 Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited & KX ¥ BB ZERER A A
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

Regulatory oversight — BSA compliance

The Group is subject to the jurisdiction of the
Regulatory Authorities in the conduct of its casino
operations through Imperial Pacific International (CNMI),
LLC (“IP1"), its wholly-owned subsidiary. Specifically, IPI
is required to comply with the rules and regulations of
the CCC in the conduct of its gaming operations. IPl is
also under the jurisdiction of the FInCEN in terms of its
compliance with the anti-money laundering provisions
of the BSA. Should IPI violate the requirements of the
Regulatory Authorities, it could be subject to various
sanctions and disciplinary actions including monetary
fines and penalties, restrictions and conditions in the
scope of operations, and the potential suspension or

revocation of its gaming license.

In March 2019, the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS")
issued a report ("IRS Report”) with findings on IPI's
compliance with the BSA. IPI, through its external legal
counsel, had responded to the IRS Report and
acknowledged certain of the findings of violations noted
in the IRS Report. IPl then received a letter from FinCEN
dated 4 March 2020, which has requested IPI to provide
certain information and documents relevant to
compliance with these regulatory requirements from
October 2016 through the present. FInCEN has
indicated in the letter that there were apparent
violations of the BSA and its implementing regulations
and it is considering whether to impose civil money
penalties or take additional enforcement action against
IPI. As of the date of this report, IPl is still in the process
of preparing for the information to be submitted to
FinCEN. Accordingly, it is not practicable for the
Company to accurately predict the resolution of this
matter, including timing and amount of any possible
impact to the Group. Notwithstanding the aforesaid, as
at 31 December 2020, the Directors, based on external
advice, have made a provision for the estimated civil
money penalty in respect of the identified and potential

violations.

e BHRRME

31 December 2020
—ETF+-RA=+—H

33. REE

(a)

REEE — EFRITREE

RNEEFEBE 2 ENE QA Imperial
Pacific International (CNMI), LLC
(MPIN R ETEBESEBREXEEK
BAEE - BRME - IPIRETHEE
MEBRABRBHESZES N
B FOE#M - EERIRITRE A AL
BEBEXFTE  IPITFXSRETIE
MU FTESR o WIPIE REEE BB Z IR
FE - RIEL AT BEE BRI [R &L K B 5
BIEEE R - R R AR E &
B - AR ATREE (S MR E B RIS -

RZZ-NF=F BEHRB(EBE])
EREBIPIRITREAGRITIN 2 H
EHERENHE (TARRRE ] - IPI
EEBHINEEREMD RN R K
T UAREHRBREMLE TER
HEBR - IPIEREESRIFITIR
BRAEEARAR T _FTF =AW
BZHH  ERIPHRHE T —RF
TAZSHBTHEFEERTARLZ
ETEREXM - RETHEBS
R FERBEERBITR
EORREERGOI 2ER  XIEEE
BREHIPIFEINRFTRREREE M
HETH BEARSEH IPHIE
ERENSBETHEIABRIERZE
Fto Btk - AR ENE B EEERETRR
WEEZBANE  BEFTERER
BAREEAIREER CFE - @EWLL
RESIBER R-E_FF+_H
=t BREFCHABRIREEER
Bz At REE A =B -
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b)

176

Investigation by Federal Government
Authorities

On 7 November, 2019, the Federal Government
Authorities conducted a search of IPI offices requesting
certain documents and information. Subsequently, a
federal grand jury issued two grand jury subpoenas on
IPI to provide additional documents and information in
December 2019. IPI has fully cooperated with the
Federal Government Authorities in providing

documents and information.

The Group has engaged external legal counsels to
conduct an independent investigation on the financial
transactions undertaken by the Group with the named
parties in the two subpoenas for the period from 2013
to 2019. Based on the findings from the investigation
reports, the Directors have not identified any
transactions which were assessed to be either of a high
or moderate risk to a criminal liability exposure. The
external legal counsels of IPI have also opined that the
criminal liability exposures which were assessed to be of
a low to moderate risk in the investigation reports do
not amount to a material breach of any provisions of
IPI’'s CLA or the CCC's regulations. The Directors also
believe that IPl had not undertaken any unlawful
activities, and IPI has sound defenses that it had acted
in good faith and conduct. The Group continues to
cooperate with the Federal Government Authorities. As
of the date of this report, the investigation is still
ongoing and it is premature to predict the eventual
outcome. Accordingly, the potential for any fines,
penalties or other consequences cannot currently be
assessed. It is also not yet possible to identify the

timescale in which these issues might be resolved.

>Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

33. FREE®)

(b)
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Commonwealth Casino Commission

On 23 April 2021, the Licensee received an order from
the CCC dated 22 April 2021 that, among other matters,
the casino resort developer license as granted under
the Casino License Agreement (as amended) between
the Licensee and the CNMI is suspended, the Licensee
shall pay the Annual License Fee of approximately
US$15,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$120,373,000) and the Casino Regulatory Fee of
US$3,100,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$24,075,000) immediately, maintain a required
amount of expected obligations in cash and cash
equivalents in a restricted account in the bank in the
CNMI or United States of America of amount
US$8,400,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$65,130,000) and that the Licensee shall pay penalties
of US$6,600,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$51,256,000). The Board considered that pursuant to
the force majeure clause under the Casino License
Agreement, the Licensee is not required to pay the
Annual License Fee in the event of natural disasters.
However, the CCC raised disputes and alleged that the
COVID-19 pandemic does not constitute a natural
disaster or force majeure. As a result, the Licensee has
filed a review with Superior Court in Saipan to
determine whether the pandemic constitutes a natural
disaster or force majeure. If it is determined that the
pandemic constitutes a natural disaster or force
majeure, the Licensee will not be required to pay the
Annual License Fee and reactivate the casino gaming
licence and resume the casino gaming operation
business. As of the date of this report, such review is still
ongoing. A provision has been made in the
consolidated financial statements.

Other litigation matters

As at the end of the reporting period and up to the date
of this report, apart from expressly stated above, the
Group is a party to a number of civil litigation cases, as
either a plaintiff or defendant. In the opinion of the
Directors, after taking into account of the respective
legal advices, adequate provision has been made in
financial information.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other

significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020.

e BHRRME

31 December 2020
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33. FREE®)

(c)

(d)

BREXHEEEN B

BABSEER
RZZFE-—FWMUA=-+=H"  [B8AH
WH RIS EEeH A - T — —
FOAZ+ZAMES  AABHE(HE
FEE) EEREERE T EIE S BEER
RN 2 RIS B R ek (BYEET) B
IR EBRNFAEEER - BB
JE N7 BN S 5 49 15,500,000 3 7t (F8°E %
#9120,373,0008 ) M FE R B
3,100,000 3 7t (48 & 72 49 24,075,000 7
JL)RIRSESEEE - HAL B E MR
HEMEBEBREMRITHZRGIERS
#IRFFTHE IR e MR e FE 8,400,000
=70 (88 7 4965,130,0007 7T ) H9 78
HEHKSERERIEXF IR
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31 December 2020
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34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 34. EEER
As at 31 December 2020, interest-bearing loans of R-ZEBE-TFE+-A=+—H " tB2EX
HK$27,341,000 (2019: HK$42,602,000) and HK$1,168,250,000 27,341,000 7T (ZF — N9 : 42,602,00078
(2019: HK$1,168,350,000) were secured by the Group's aircraft 7T ) 5.1,168,250,000/% 7T( — & — JL &F:
included in property, plant and equipment with a carrying 1,168,350,000/8 7T ) 7 B AR L B 5T AW 2 -
amount of HK$91,814,000 (2019: HK$103,116,000) and the B P= I 3% # B BRI B /91,814,000 7T (=
issued shares of a subsidiary of the Company (the relevant Z—AF 1 103,116,000 7T ) 7 M A K2 K
shares charge arrangement has not been completed at the NEINB AR 2B EITRD (Rt E&RE 8
date of issuance of these consolidated financial statements), TR T3 H B R D IR B R 7Rk
respectively. TEH A
35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BBARS
(@) In addition to the transactions disclosed elsewhere in (@) BRESAVBREXEMEHEEZR
the consolidated financial statements, the Group had S8 REBRERNE T BB H
the following transactions with related parties during 5
the year:

178

2020 2019
i —E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B E FEx THET
|
Continuing connected FERERS
transactions:
Salary paid to Mr. Ji XN FREEZHFE (i) - 7,831
Exempted connected BRRHELS -

transactions:

Interest expense on loans from 2K B B84 5 B 5 &

and notes issued to related Bl
parties BITEB M EAX (i) - 135,717

Rental expenses paid on behalf  R&HLIER AR T2

of the ultimate holding company &% 106 13,679
Other borrowing’s interest WEEREARAMNZ
paid by Mr. Ji on behalf H A & RN R
of the Company - 10,200
A joint venture: —EEETF -
Interest expense on loans from KA —EALEERZ
a joint venture FEFRX (i) 508 170

Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited & KX ¥ BB ZERER A A



35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@) (Cont
Notes:

@

(iii)

inued)

On 8 December 2017, Best Fortune Corporation Limited, a
directly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an employment agreement (the “Employment
Agreement”) with Mr. Ji, the son of the ultimate controlling
party of the Company, pursuant to which Mr. Ji was
appointed as the Project Director of the casino resort project
on the Island of Saipan. According to the Employment
Agreement, Mr. Ji is entitled to a basic annual salary of
US$1,000,000 (equivalent to HK$7,831,000) and a
discretionary bonus. The aggregate amount of remuneration
has a cap of US$2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,578,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, interest expense
of HK$135,717,000 was charged on loans from and notes
issued to related parties. The interest rates ranged from 7.5%
to 12% per annum. During the year ended 31 December
2020, no interest expense was charge on loans from and
notes as all loan and notes were reclassified as perpetual
loans and interest-free.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, interest expense
of HK$508,000 (2019: HK$170,000) was charged on loans
from a joint venture. The interest rate was 6% per annum.

e BHRRME

31 December 2020
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35. BABARS (#)

@ (&)

BT

0]

(iii)
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TAREINEETZIRESERINEER
ZIEBRE - RIBEAWS  LAEE
T FUERE AR $ 1,000,000 % 7T (18
E 77,831,000 7T) REIIBIEAL © Fr
4 % F R /2,000,000 7T 48 & »®
15,578,000/87T) °

BE-_ZE—-NF+_A=+—8BLHF
£ RABESERR AR ETE
&2 F B R X A135717,0008 7T - &
FENFIS%E12% - REE-_ZT =
TE+-A=+—HIFE  TEKH
BREEEZMNEAX RARFMEER
IREZEEFHERXEERRES

HE_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HIL*F
E - RE—MEEECEEREF EH
57,508,000 7T ( — & — fL4 : 170,000
BIT) o FFIE A6 °
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31 December 2020
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35. BEARXS (&)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the b) AEBFEEEBABZHE :
Group:
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEBTEEBABZHFM(RELZN
Group, including amounts paid to the Company's FARBREELSMEEEBZ )W
directors and the senior management, is as follows: K

2020 2019
—EC-BE —ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
|
Short term employee benefits REEBET 17,250 36,400
Post-employment benefits BEEB12 4E A 50 203
Share-based payments VAR D R EME 2 MK 130 841
17,430 37,444
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in EEWE v E—FEBEHRGEEUH
Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. REMNES ©
36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. REHE S 2EMTA
Other than the equity investments designated at fair value BREREVBRERWT17HRBEBCIEERZA
through other comprehensive income as disclosed in Note 17 AEEFAEMPEIAZ REAKREIN - K
to the consolidated financial statements, all financial assets SERZZT_EFR_FT-NLF+H
and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and 2019, =T+ —RAZFEsREERBES HIRETE
are financial assets at amortised cost, and financial liabilities HRATHEC SRMEERIZBIENTTEY
at amortised cost, respectively. TRIAEE -

180
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

e BHRRME

31 December 2020
—ETF+-RA=+—H

37. EMITAZAABERAREER
il
rEESBRTAZERERAABENAT
WEREERAR BEARRAEERIN -

Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE NAEHE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—B-RF TN ZBZERF TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHExT FET THERT FET
|
Financial assets TRIEE
Equity investments designated EEABRALBETA
at fair value through Hib2ERAZ
other comprehensive income AT E 5,121 8,473 5,121 8,473
Financial liabilities SRAE
Other borrowings HAfE R 4,166,339 3,450,756 4,168,653 3,497,531
Loans from a joint venture RE—HARETEZER 8,477 10,046 8,477 10,046
Unsecured bonds and notes mIRHEFREZE 152,752 657,251 152,723 648,279
Lease liabilities HERE 22,708 44,981 22,708 44,981
4,350,276 463034 4,352,561 4,200,837

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank deposit, trade receivables,
trade payables, financial assets included in deposits and other
receivables, and financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely

due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

EREDE RehReFEY  XRH
RITER - BB SRS BNESERN
ArAR S R E YRR 2 & B E B A S AT
AHMENRAREFFAZERAEND

AEEEEREEHERE  TEHAUHEIA
BB HREI -
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37.

18

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group's finance department is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The Chief Financial
Officer reports directly to the Directors. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the Chief Financial Officer. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the Audit Committee

twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the non-current portion of other borrowings,
lease liabilities, and unsecured bonds and notes have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in
fair value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk
for other borrowings, and unsecured bonds and notes as at

31 December 2020 were assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on

quoted market prices.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had financial assets
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
amounting to HK$5,121,000 (2019: HK$8,473,000) measured at

Level 1 fair value based on the market price of stock market.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2019: Nil).

37. ERMIRAZAABERAABER

Bl (&)
AREBNMKHFIAEREERTARAE
B EZBERER - BRMBEERAE
ZER - -NEHREAH  YHBHAIT R
TAZEEZS YEEFHETEANIR
BAE - BRVHERMRMERE X5t
R R EEMBERENEERELGERER
BEREEBFETMR®

HipfER HEREMEARERRRIEFE
mBED 2 AR EBETVIREERERR &
B MR T FR T AR AT AL KA
BEHARKREREFNE R_T_FTF+—
A=+—8  AREREXREHEMETAR
BEAEZRREZIEORBRMER 2N
REEEHHFSLTEK -

EEAREN A EEIRTISRETSE -

R-ZE-EF+-_A=1+—H AEEEF
RIEAABEFAHMEZERAZEREE
5,121,000 70( =& — JL4F : 8,473,000/ 7T)
TIRERT 2 S ERIRE R AR EER

5 -°

FRN - F-REE_FEAREEARIAE
BFfEZE8E  EeREENESRBEDE
BARELE=R(—T—NLF 8-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments and equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, comprise other borrowings, lease
liabilities, loans from a joint venture, unsecured bonds and
notes and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which

arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity
price risk. The Directors review and agree policies for

managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities, net investments in foreign
operations or expenditure of operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currencies. During the year,
the Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging

purposes.

The majority of its foreign currency exposure comprises assets
and liabilities denominated in US$. The exchange rate of the
HK$ is pegged to the US$ and has remained relatively stable
over the past years. The Group manages its foreign currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign

currency rates.

Credit risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Group to
concentrations of credit risk consist principally of trade

receivables.

e BHRRME
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38. I ABEEBEREE
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38.

18

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. The Group issues credit in the form of markers
to approved casino customers following investigations of
creditworthiness. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt regularly to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for

irrecoverable amounts.

For other receivables and deposits, the management makes
periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The management believes that there were no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment based on
12m ECL except the debtors who the director consider
cannot be recovery due to circumstances arose from
COVID-19 pandemic and lost contacts with the debtors.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has
fully impaired on certain other receivables of HK$11,078,000
(2019: HK$ Nil) which the directors consider cannot be
recovery due to circumstances arose from COVID-19
pandemic and lost contact with the debtor. For the remaining
other receivables and deposits, the directors consider the
expected credit losses on those other receivables and
deposits are insignificant and thus no loss allowance is

recognised.

8. MKEMEREBZEREXK &)

=ERRE)

REEEERR  AREEEEKIERA
RETEERB FEMEREMERRE
Fro BERERBRETBWREBMER - A&
BABENOEARBEBEREENRESE
FPHEUEE - s AEBETERRHES AR
MEZEEHAIRE SRR - AR ZEKD
SRRIEH RSB ER R -

HREHMENRIERLZEMS @ BEERER
FREL  BELBRURTEERTEMEER
(AIEERBEREMMEEER)  THEHH
ity JIE USSR T8 R AR & 19 m) Uk B 1 1T (R B ET
o BIRERE  BYIFSHERUK - ZEFXK
EREERRITEBEZEIN  RESFRAH
FACOVID-19 & 55 BB 1E R R EEB A K
KB A M EERE R ERIN - NEEIRR 12
MABEBEERBEIERE B2 =%
FH+ZA=+—HILFE AEEERET
H fth E UL FRTE 11,078,00058 7T (—ZE— NL4F
TEL)2ERE EERAELZFTHMEYK
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. BiIEMREEEEREE#)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging EERBRELERER

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum TRERNTZAZ+—BRELAEEEE
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, BERMEBEEEERGEEERE(EEE
which is mainly based on past due information unless other BEZmBERAKE  RIFHBANTE
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year- RS AE BN ERS E &R A R F 45
end staging classification as at 31 December. FEEZ D48 o

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12f8REH
FEER 2HRSEEFR
Stage 2 Stage 3
(Non-credit (credit Simplified
Stage 1 impaired) impaired) approach Total
FRR Y
E-KR (BEEHE) (EEERE) b5 % @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December 2020 R-Z-%f%
+=ZA=+-H TR TR TR TR TR
|
Trade receivables* PR 5 B0 - - 9,054,532 - 9,054,532
Financial assets included in FARE R EMERERIE
deposits and MEREE
other receivables** 134,444 - 11,078 - 145,522
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReSEY 10,013 - - - 10,013
144,457 - 9,065,610 - 9,210,067
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. BiIEMREEEEREE#)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) BoRBREELERR(E)
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 ATEH]
B HRREEER
Stage 2 Stage 3
(Non-credit (Credit Simplified
Stage 1 impaired) impaired) approach Total
E_RER 1
F-RBER (BEERE) (BEEAE) ELAE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December 2019 R-Z-1%
+=A=+-H TEx TiEx FER TEx THER
|

Trade receivables* e E FBEa - - - 9,085,704 9,085,704

Financial assets included in FARE R

deposits and Hit B RIEH)
other receivables** TRERE 122,439 - - - 122,439
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBeSED 145,118 - - - 145,118
267,557 - - 9,085,704 9,353,261

* As at 31 December 2019, the trade receivables to which the Group * RZZBE-AF+TZA=1T—0  HEEEEA
applies the simplified approach for impairment, information based B EAFEREZERNESERME - RE
on the provision matrix is disclosed in Note 19 to the consolidated BHEEAEZENNGEAMBHRRMT19
financial statements. As at 31 December 2020, the gross amount of HE - R_ZT_TFT_A=1+—H %%
HK$9,054,532,000 have been transferred from simplified approach 9,054,532,000/8 7L B L 7 A BB = S =
to Stage 3 lifetime ECL (credit impaired) given customers failure to BxHEHEEREB(EEERE)  TERE
make contractual payment within the credit period. PARENEESAEL SR -

*k As at 31 December 2020, the gross amount of HK$11,078,000 has *x R—_ZE_ZETF+_A=+—H &8
transferred from Stage 1 (12-month ECLs) to Stage 3 (credit 11,078,000 THE R (12EATEHEE
impaired) which the directors considered those other receivables BRIEREE-—[RER(EEERE)  EER
cannot be recovered due to circumstances arose from COVID-19 7%k S H A E YRR IE E COVID-19 % 15 51 R 6
pandemic and lost contact with the debtors. B0 R BRAE T A SR A B 48 i A U] ©

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure BRAEERWE SRN - E M EYWRIAK

to credit risk arising from trade receivables, other receivable HeEEEERR ZE—SEEIETIR

and deposit are disclosed in Note 19 and Note 16 to the A EmARM 19 KM 16125 -

consolidated financial statements.

1 8 6 Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited & KX ¥ BB ZERER A A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements</<

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

e BHRRME

31 December 2020

—ZE-RF+-A=+—H

38. MKEKREREBERBE#)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g. trade receivables) and projected cash flows from

operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of loans
from related parties, other borrowings and unsecured bonds

and notes.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

REE T E

AEEERRFUERDECRE TAERE
THERzER ZTAZESRIARDH
BE(NEYE SRR 22BN - KA

AREREEBDCHENRE ©

AEEMBNREERREREB T 2N
HipfER R BERRESFAREEESHER

FEETA 1 2 FME S T o

AEERREMRRIBSAFFMRAINS

BAEIZHBERET

2020
ZBIEF
Within Over 2
1 year years but
oron 1to2 within Over
demand years 5 years 5 years Total
—FRAg BBmE
EZEX —EmF BREFR BBRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR THER THET TR
I
Trade payables ENEHEH 72,096 - - - 72,096
Accruals and other payables JE T FUE R A R R 6,744,063 - - - 6,744,063
Lease liabilities REAE 6,281 3,132 7,685 71,676 88,774
Other borrowings HhfE 3,873,176 511,492 - - 4,384,668
Unsecured bonds and notes EIRHEFRERE 107,056 24,645 37,699 - 169,400
Loans from a joint venture RE—HEERELER 8,477 - - - 8,477
10,811,149 539,269 45,384 71,676 11,467,478
Annual Report 2020 FE#{ & 1 8 7
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. BiIEMREEEEREE#)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESERE)
2019
—E-NF
Within Over 2
1 year years but
oron Tto2 within Over
demand years 5 years 5 years Total
—FRK HBME
EEX —EWF BERER HBAnF st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TR TR THET TR
C__________________________________________________________________________________

Trade payables e E SN 77,023 - - - 77,023
Accruals and other payables  FEETEUE L E A B A 2,163,872 - - - 2,163,872
Lease liabilities MEGE 28,343 5,162 7,401 75,522 116,428
Other borrowings HhfE K 1,438,302 2,010,459 410,537 - 3,859,298
Unsecured bonds and notes ~ EIRFELELZE 568,254 55,805 28,582 33733 686,374
Loans from a joint venture RE—HEENEER 10,342 - - - 10,342

4,286,136 2,071,426 446,520 109,255 6,913,337

Equity price risk 1A E AR

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity R A (B AR BB BN R K 255 A £ (B8 E IR A 1
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of SOk T RERIZSABEEHTHRL ZAE
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The o R E-—TER-—FE—HE+— A
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual =+—\A . AEEEEHSEAETARA
listed equity investments classified as equity investments L EESAEBEERA Y FiRGRAR
designated at fair value listed shares through other B (7)) BB A B ARG - NEFE Y
comprehensive income (Note 17) as at 31 December 2020 PR RNE BB T WRERE IR
and 2019. The Group's listed investments are listed on the IRFTER T EEE -

Hong Kong Stock Exchange and are valued at quoted market

prices at the end of the reporting period.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Equity price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date. For
sensitivity analysis of equity securities with fair value
measurement categorised within Level 1, the sensitivity rate is
increased to 10% in current year as a result of the volatile
financial market. If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 10% (2019: 10%) higher/lower, the post-
tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 would
increase/decrease by HK$512,000 (2019:HK$847,000).

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to

support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.
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31 December 2020
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8. MKEMEREBZEREXK &)

RAER R (&)

BBE ST

BURE DI T ARE BB ABRER A
EEMETFE - AN BEAENEAE &
MRAFEHFNSEHESNT  FBELRES
RIS EBMAATEEZINZE10% © f§E8
ATEMERS,/ KI0%(ZF—NF:
10%) BE-_ZE-_FTF+_-_A=+—A801
FERT%EFBEE M,/ 512,000 T
(ZZ— L4 : 847,000587T) °

EXEHE

AEEERNEEZ T BB FABRAKERE
WFFBIRE  WHRHRBROEARLE - UX
FEEBEENZGAREMIRESRREE -

REBERBLEBEMRR 2B RBBEE R
DIFHREIRHEERERWIELTHE - BER
WABREARERE  AEESISABRIMN TR
RoBe  REERTREXIEITHR - &
SEHEETEMIIMNNEREE - BHE=
ToEER_FE-NFTZA=T—HIF
B AEBEARERZBE  BERIREL
IR o
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. MKEKMEEBERBUR (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management (Continued) EXEE (&)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net AEBRBEEABLER(AFEBSHBREH
debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. Net debt BERIFER) EEER - FEKBIESE
includes, unsecured bonds and notes, loans from a joint KHEENEE K —BEeaeECE
venture, other borrowings, lease liabilities, less cash and cash T EMmER - HEAE HKRREMRSE
equivalents. Capital represents total equity attributable to ZEY  BRIERNGEAR NE(FIRER
owners of the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of o NREHARMNEEAGBLRNOT ¢
the reporting periods are as follows:
I —
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
— i —T-hF
+=ZHA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
|
Net debt FETS 4,340,263 4,085,937
(Deficiency in assets)/total equity ~ (BEE4L) 4@k (2,733,345) 120,913
Capital and net debt BARRFER 1,606,918 4,206,850
Gearing ratio EEAFELE 270.1% 97.1%
39. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 39. kB2 EE
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified and re- EThReBEEEHNOEREY - HAFE
presented to conform with the current year's presentation. ZE2F =5
The comparative figures of loss per share attributable to RATHBAEREBREBENLERETES
owners of the Company have been restated to reflect the Bl URMR T = —F A+ <BERD
share consolidation which effective on 16 September 2021. &0
190 Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited & KX ¥ BB ZERER A A
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE = 40. &2 R &R RT T

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment VI~ BB KR ERE - 15,320
Deposits and other receivables e hEMRERFIE 1,500 1,266
Interests in subsidiaries RSB ARz = - 5,257,170
Equity investment designated at fair value #8E AL AR BETA

listed shares through other B2 EIRAZ

comprehensive income BAKE 5,121 8,473
Total non-current assets EMBEELE 6,621 5,282,229
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIE -~ me &k

other receivables E b jE W GRIE 102,111 82,542
Cash and cash equivalents RENREEEY 1,530 69,387
Amount due from a joint venture JEW—EA & EFIE 7,790 7,790
Total current assets MENEEMEE 111,431 159,719
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals H RSB R BT R 1,448,681 1,071,920
Other borrowings HinfE 3,585,501 1,325,347
Lease liabilities HeEaE 1,007 14,289
Unsecured bonds and notes EINRE S 2B 102,997 480,357
Loan from a joint venture RE—EEEREZER 8,477 7,709
Total current liabilities MBI BERRE 5,146,663 2,899,622
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEFHE (5,035,232) (2,739,903)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERABEBRRBEE

LIABILITIES (5,028,611) 2,542,326
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. xR EARRA TR (&)
COMPANY (Continued)

2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FET
|
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Other payables and accruals At BT FRIE R AT 3RIE - 283,876
Other borrowings H g 492,998 2,062,947
Lease liabilities HeEaE 550 -
Unsecured bonds and notes mIKHESENRERE 49,755 176,894
Total non-current liabilities EREEELRER 543,303 2,523,717
Net (liabilities)/assets (Bl BEFE (5,571,914) 18,609
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAR &
Share capital R& AR 71,492 71,492
Reserves (note) fHfE (MIsE) (5,643,406) (52,883)
(Deficiency in assets)/total equity (BEEBH) s (5,571,914) 18,609
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. XA RBEMRRT (&)

COMPANY (Continued)

Note: fEE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KRR Z HEHBERT -
Convertible Share Share Investment
notes premium option Other Perpetual reserve  Accumulated
reserve account reserve reserve loans  (non-recycling) losses Total
EE: REmE
FEGE  ROMEER  BRERR AfbRE &R (FUEE) ZitEE st
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Tin Thn Tin TR Fin Thr TEn Thn
(Note) (Note 30) (Note 30)
(M) (B230) (HizE30)

At 31 December 2018 and RZE-NFTZAZ+-RR
1 January 2019 “Z-hE-F-H 1,480,332 2,265,719 73218 45,000 - (97,582) (3,705,036) 61,728
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (3,278,005) (3,278,005)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: £RZH2EE :
Changes in fair value of equity ERBRAREBHAZL
investments designated at fair RERAZRARERARE
value through other 2938
comprehensive income, net - - - - - (9.998) - (9.998)
Equity-settled share option REfERRELS
arrangements - - 6,805 - - - - 6,805
Transfer of reserve upon the lapse of ~ BRES B ERES
share options - - (2,264 - - - 2264 -
Deemed cepital contribution from -~ H/E— AR E
ashareholder - - - 54,217 - - - 21
Reclassification upon amendment of 5312 RIEF 2 31 578
payment clauses of notes and Exipy
borrowings - - - - 312,310 - - 312,310
At31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA=1-H 1,480,332 2,265,796 71,759 99,217 3,112,310 (107,580) (6,980,777) (52,883)
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - (5582525  (5582525)
Other comprehensive loss for the year:  EREM 2EEE :
Changes in fair value of equity ERARLAEETALL
investments designated at fair PEYACREREDRBE
value through other 2558
comprehensive income, net - - - - - (1,884) - (1,884)
Equity-settled share option ERfRRRERH
amangements - - 932 - - - - 932
Transfer of reserve upon the lapse of ~ BREXHEEREE
share options - - (7,046) - - - - (7,046)
Transfer of reserve upon disposal HERRABEFALL
of the investment i an equity RERAGEZRATAY
instrument measured at fair value RERELER
through other comprehensive income - - - - - 998 (998) -
At 31 December 2020 RIZZZEFZA=1-H 1,480,332 2,265,796 71,645 99,217 3,112,310 (108,466)  (12,564,300) (5,643,406)
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. XA RBEMRRT (&)

COMPANY (Continued)

Note: The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options MizE - BIRERELEMAITECREEREZ AR

granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments in Note 2.5 to the
consolidated financial statements. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the related options
are exercised, or transferred to retained profits should the related
options expire or be forfeited.

BlE  HE—SREBEHNGAMIEREME2S
AR BEREZ R Z GFTEK - REBRHR
BB TERSRERMDAER - 0
BB SRR BB ERE RN

41. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 41. SREEEE
(@)  On 23 April 2021, Imperial Pacific International (CNMI), (@ MZE-_—FWNUAZ-—+=H' ' &ARQAa

LLC (the “Licensee”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, received an order from the
Commonwealth Casino Commission ("CCC") dated 22
April 2021 that, among other matters, the casino resort
developer license as granted under the Casino License
Agreement (as amended) between the Licensee and the
CNMI is suspended, the Licensee shall pay the Annual
License Fee of US$15,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$120,373,000) and the Casino Regulatory Fee of
US$3,100,000 (equivalent to HK$24,075,000) immediately
and that the Licensee shall pay penalties of
US$6,600,000 (equivalent to HK$51,256,000). The Board
considered that pursuant to the force majeure clause
under the Casino License Agreement, the Licensee is
not required to pay the Annual License Fee in the event

of natural disasters.

However, the CCC raised disputes and alleged that the
COVID-19 pandemic does not constitute a natural
disaster or force majeure. As a result, the Licensee has
filed a review with Superior Court in Saipan to
determine whether the pandemic constitutes a natural
disaster or force majeure. If it is determined that the
pandemic constitutes a natural disaster or force
majeure, the Licensee will not be required to pay the
Annual License Fee. As of the date of this report, such

review is still ongoing.

194 Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited % K ¥ EIBIZRGR A A

< [E1# 2 & i B A 7] Imperial Pacific
International (CNMI), LLC([ f& B F 1)
WEHMAREEZES((HABEEBEER
gDRAR T -_—FMNA=-+=H
WES REEHE(HFaE) =R
R AL B BT 2 IR
MR (BT ) R 2 1RG5 B R
NHERER MRS EZAEM
15,500,000 % 7t (48 & 7 120,373,000/5
JT) B A 2 2 B8 & 1 3,100,000 Z 7T (8
E $224,075,0007% 7T ) HY IR 4 35 BL
B KB RR 5 FE 5 &1 5K 6,600,000 3
JL (& F51,25600087C) - EE &
RE - BIBIRGEISZ BRI HZ T A
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41. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

(b)  On 16 August 2021, the Board proposed to implement
a share consolidation on the basis that every twenty (20)
issued and unissued existing shares of the Company of
HK$0.0005 each will be consolidated into one (1)
consolidated Share of HK$0.01 each (“Consolidated
Share(s)") (the “Share Consolidation”), details of which
were set out in the circular of the Company dated 25
August 2021. The Share Consolidation was approved by
the shareholders at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 14 September 2021. The Share
Consolidation became effective on 16 September 2021
and thereafter there were 7,149,240,383 Consolidated
Shares in issue.

() On 30 March 2022, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with, CNI Securities Group Limited, an
independent placing agent pursuant to which the
placing agent has agreed to act as the sole placing
agent, on a best effort basis, for the purposed of
arranging independent placees to subscribe for the
Bonds up to an aggregate principal amount of
HK$800,000,000 at 6% per annum.

42. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March
2022.

(b)

e BHRRME

31 December 2020
—ETF+-RA=+—H

41. REPREE (@)

RZBZ—FN A+ B E5g2
HETRDAH EEAET_TQ0)K
TR EE0.0005 8 LA A B B 1T
RABITRERGEHA—(NRER
EE0.01 BT A IR % ([ & B )
Gﬁﬁéﬁh~ﬁ%ﬁ%$@ﬂﬂ%
BZE——FNAZt+EAZAE
BHEHBERAEAR Tﬂ_j_—ih
A+HBRITZBRERFINAE LER
B - ROBEHRZZE=Z—FNA
TRBAER - &8 E7,149,240,383 J%
BEITE RN -

RZZFEZZF=A=+H AAFH
ﬁi@ﬂiﬁﬁﬂplibﬁE %E.ﬁ@
NAIRI B S - BIEA W - B
%ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁ%@ﬂ%
RIB - AL BB A EL AR T F 6% 1Y
FEERREA S ¥ %5 5% 800,000,000

BILHES ©

42. HEFEESMBHRE

FEMBHREAENR T __F=A=+—H
EEESHE MIRETE -
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ive-Year Financial Summary

EFMBHRE

The following table summarises the results, and the assets and

liabilities of the Group for each of five years ended 31 December:

RESULTS

AEEEET _A=+—RILABAFERFZE
BUARBERBEBER TR :

ES

—=

—=

2016
NE
HK$'000

TET

For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=t-HLEE

2017
—T—tF
HK$'000
FHT

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FET

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FAT

2020
gt 3.: 3
HK$'000

TR

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Revenue

Profit/(loss) before tax
Income tax (expenses)/credit

Profit/(loss) for the year from
continuing operations

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Loss for the year from a discontinued

operation

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable

to owners of the Company

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

BREERE

LG

FRBEATE T (B1R)
FiisE (X)), E%

REFBELEB
FREA/ (ER)

BRIERE

RE-HEKLEER
FRBE

ZNNSIESYPN A
FREF,/(BE)

3,925,726 7,793,546 3,254,587 539,266 26,507
1,096,803 870,960  (3,421,311) (3,527,325 (7,390,265)
(160,910) (233,487) 456,288 (376,945) -
935,893 637,473 (2,965,023)  (3,904,270) (7,390,265)
(318) - - - -
935,575 637,473 (2,965,023)  (3,904,270) (7,390,265)
BEERERE

As at 31 December

R+=RA=t+-H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—EAF ZEEF I\ ZF-NF ZRDRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TRT
|
Total assets BERE 9613103 15641294 12,722,242 10,144,244 3,921,935
Total liabilities BfEeE (6,752,206)  (11,788,329) (11,831,989) (10,023,331) (11,187,483)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(AF)FE 2,860,897 3,852,965 890,253 120913 (7,265,548)
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